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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Good morning,

          3  everyone. This is the Subcommittee on Landmarks,

          4  Public Siting and Maritime Uses of the City

          5  Council's Land Use Committee, and I'm John Sabini, I

          6  Chair the panel, the full Land Use Committee is

          7  Chaired by June Margol Eisland of the Bronx, who

          8  joins us, today, as well.

          9                 We have three matters on the calendar

         10  today.  One of them obviously is controversial and

         11  has brought out a lot of people.  We have two items

         12  on the agenda that we will hear right away, because

         13  we can be finished with them in a matter of a couple

         14  of minutes.  I will read the whole calendar and then

         15  take the items in a particular order.

         16                 Let me introduce the members of the

         17  panel and other members of the Council who are here.

         18    On the far right, my left, Councilman Michael J.

         19  Abel from Queens; Council Member June Eisland, Chair

         20  of the full Committee from the Bronx, to his right;

         21  next is Council Member Adolfo Carrion, Jr. Of the

         22  Bronx, member of the Subcommittee; next to me is

         23  Council Member Priscilla Wooten of Brooklyn, member

         24  of the Subcommittee.  We're joined by Pat Prothrow

         25  (phonetic) of our staff.  Council Member Bill
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          2  Perkins of Manhattan, member of the Subcommittee,

          3  and lurking about in the back, is Council Member

          4  Walter McCaffrey, who had nothing better to do

          5  today, he is just hanging out.  No, he is a member

          6  of the Land Use Committee.

          7                 We're going to hear three items, I

          8  will read them, and I will tell you the order we

          9  will hear them.

         10                 Land Use 458 in Brooklyn, Community

         11  Board #6, an application by the Fire Department and

         12  the Department of Citywide Administrative Services

         13  for the acquisition of property that they now use

         14  for continued use as a warehouse, that is in Council

         15  Member Steven DiBrienza's District.

         16                 Land Use 471 in a joint interest area

         17  of the Bronx, Community Board # 7, 8, and 12,

         18  application by the Department of Environmental

         19  Protection and the Department of Citywide

         20  Administrative Services pursuant to Section 197- C

         21  of the New York City Charter, per site selection of

         22  City- owned property in Van Cortlandt Park on the

         23  Mosholu Golf Course, west of Jerome and Bainbridge

         24  Avenues for use as a water treatment facility.

         25                 And Land Use 476 in Manhattan
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          2  Community Board #1, an application from the School

          3  Construction Authority for a public school facility

          4  playground addition at PS234- M, which is in Council

          5  Member Freed's District.

          6                 I'm going to hear the first item and

          7  the third item, and then the second item will be

          8  last, because the first item and third item we can

          9  dispose of rather quickly and it will be voted on at

         10  a later hour.  I would like to call, do we have

         11  witnesses listed, someone from the Fire Department

         12  here, or DCAS, please, come forward, for Land Use

         13  458, Brooklyn Community Board #6.  Step up to the

         14  table and identify yourself for the record, please?

         15                 MR. MITCHELL:  Good morning, Mr.

         16  Chairman and members of the Committee.  I am David

         17  Mitchell.  I am Assistant to the Assistant Fire

         18  Commissioner for Support Services, Roy Katz.

         19                 This application is for a renewal, to

         20  allow us to renew the lease on our existing

         21  facility, which is responsible for maintaining the

         22  overhead and underground wiring and all the rest of

         23  the equipment that comprises the alarm box system of

         24  the City of New York.  This specific facility

         25  located in the Columbia Street Section of Brooklyn,
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          2  is responsible for all the alarm boxes in the

          3  Borough of Brooklyn and in the Borough of Manhattan.

          4                 We have occupied the facility for

          5  approximately 15 years, although we have been in the

          6  neighborhood for over 50 years, and we simply need

          7  to follow this process so that we can continue to

          8  utilize this vital facility.

          9                 I would be happy to answer any

         10  questions that the Committee might have.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I understand

         12  that we have a letter, if our Counsel, Chris

         13  Collins, we have a letter on this item?  We

         14  understand that there has been some concern over the

         15  past months about vehicles parking on the street, on

         16  the sidewalk, by Council Member DiBrienza and

         17  members of the community.  We have a letter from

         18  Commissioner Tierney from the Fire Department that

         19  addresses those concerns to Council Member

         20  DiBrienza.  Are you aware of this letter?

         21                 MR. MITCHELL:  Yes, Sir, I have a

         22  copy present.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, in the

         24  letter and to sum it up, basically, it addresses the

         25  concerns and says that concerns brought to our
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          2  attention more than five months ago, the facility

          3  managers have made every effort to ensure that

          4  sidewalks on Sackett and Union Streets are clear and

          5  that the perimeter is continually maintained and

          6  litter free.

          7                 I understand that Council Member

          8  DiBrienza is satisfied with this letter, I'm going

          9  to enter it into the record, even though it

         10  addressed to him, we will enter it into our record.

         11                 Any questions from members of the

         12  panel?  Hearing none, thank you.

         13                 I'm now going to call Land Use 476,

         14  Manhattan Community Board #1, an application by the

         15  School Construction Authority for the proposed

         16  public school facility PS234- M, it's a playground

         17  addition.  We have witnesses from the Board of Ed

         18  and SCA, I believe.  State your names for the

         19  record, please?

         20                 MS. PRESHEVELCO (phonetic):  Good

         21  morning, Council Member Sabini and Council members.

         22  My name is Gerry Preshevelco. I'm Section Chief for

         23  Site Planning Administration for New York City Board

         24  of Education, and with me is Tammy Rachelson, Real

         25  Estate Manager for the New York City School
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          2  Construction Authority.

          3                 We are here today to present for your

          4  consideration and approval, site selection for a

          5  project site located on the west side of and

          6  adjacent to the existing school building of PS234 in

          7  Community School District #2, Community Planning

          8  District #1.  The site is for a playground addition,

          9  it would be located between Chambers Street and

         10  Western Grennin Streets in the Tribecca Section of

         11  Manhattan.

         12                 The project site is approximately

         13  7,400 square feet or .17 acres in area, it is a

         14  portion of site 5- C in the Washington Street Urbal

         15  Renewal Area, currently under the jurisdiction of

         16  the Department of Housing Preservation and

         17  Development, therefore, City- owned property.  The

         18  project site is currently paved and vacant.

         19                 What we will be doing is the

         20  installation of the following improvements at that

         21  location:  Site drainage, grant access to a new

         22  school door, playground equipment, safety surfaces.

         23  The site will generally remain a paved area with the

         24  playground equipment, it is permitted to construct

         25  this playground expansion in the area where it now
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          2  lies, which is a C- 6- 4 zoning district.

          3                 The Community School Board and the

          4  Community Planning Board held a joint public hearing

          5  on April 27th on this item and submitted comments

          6  supportive of this site.  The City Planning

          7  Commission was also notified, but did not submit any

          8  comments.

          9                 We would now like your consideration

         10  and approval.            Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         12                 MS. RACHELSON:  The only thing that I

         13  would like to add is that this will almost double

         14  the outdoor play space for the existing 234 school.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  For the members,

         16  identification, this school is right near City Hall

         17  at 292 Greenwich Street, it's one of the finest

         18  school facilities that I know of in the City, and

         19  anything we can do to help that facility along I

         20  think is noble.

         21                 Any questions from the panel?

         22  Hearing none, thank you very much.

         23                 MS. PRESHEVELCO:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:   I'm now going

         25  to call Land Use 471, in Bronx Community Board, in a
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          2  joint interest event in Cortlandt Park, Bronx

          3  Community Boards #7, 8, and 12, an application

          4  submitted by the Department of Environmental

          5  Protection and the Department of Citywide

          6  Administrative Services, pursuant to Section 197- C

          7  of the New York City Charter, for site selection of

          8  the City- owned property located in Van Cortlandt

          9  Park on the Mosholu Golf Course, west of Jerome and

         10  Bainbridge Avenues, Block 5900, part of Lot 1, for

         11  use as a Water Treatment Facility.

         12                 Let me tell you the ground rules that

         13  we're going to abide by today, and everyone can go

         14  home happy and healthy.  This is, obviously, a

         15  controversial project that people have very strong

         16  opinions on.  We're going to hear a presentation as

         17  is our usual custom that we tend to vary

         18  occasionally, but we're going to hear a presentation

         19  from the Department of Environmental Protection as

         20  to why and how and why this site was selected for an

         21  application. We're then going to hear from members

         22  of the public, depending on how it goes, we will

         23  probably have alternating testimony, people in favor

         24  and against.  After Commissioner Miele makes his

         25  presentation and members of the panel asks
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          2  questions, and then members of the Council at large

          3  ask questions, then we will have testimony from the

          4  public, every one will be heard, I will be here

          5  until the cows come home, whatever time that is, I

          6  have never been out until the cows come home, but we

          7  will be here as long as you're here, but we will

          8  abide by a three- minute rule, after Commissioner

          9  Miele gives his presentation, and we would hope that

         10  you would abide by that rule and have us have our

         11  burly Sergeant- At- Arms' staff come after you and

         12  toss you out of the building, or worse, get the

         13  Mayor really mad at you and they play much rougher.

         14                 So with that I will, oh, the Mayor's

         15  representatives are here.  Commissioner Miele,

         16  welcome, state your name and introduce members of

         17  the panel who are with you.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Thank you.  Good

         19  morning, Chairman Sabini and members of the

         20  Subcommittee.  I am Joel A. Miele, Sr., professional

         21  engineer, Commissioner of the New York City

         22  Department of Environmental Protection.  I thank you

         23  for the opportunity to comment on our application to

         24  site the Croton Drinking Water Filtration Plant and

         25  related facilities under the Mosholu Golf Course in
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          2  Van Cortlandt Park.

          3                 I would like to introduce some key

          4  staff with me this morning, at the table with me at

          5  this point is First Deputy Commissioner Diana Chapin

          6  to my right, and Charles Sturckin, Chief of Staff

          7  and Special Counsel to my left, other staff will be

          8  called up as appropriate.

          9                 Filtering the drinking water supply

         10  delivered by the New Croton Aqueduct from our

         11  surface water system in Westchester and Putnam

         12  Counties is on of the most significant and

         13  contentious issues that DEP has ever addressed.  In

         14  addition to opposition to the project based on its

         15  siting, the Croton filtration has raised numerous

         16  public policy issues that go well beyond siting.  At

         17  various times during the process that has led to

         18  this hearing, DEP has convened countless other

         19  hearings, public meetings, panels, or citizen

         20  advisory committees at which speakers discussed

         21  matters such as:  The role of Congress, EPA, or the

         22  State in setting water quality standards; the

         23  failure of, or alternatively the need for, multiple

         24  barriers to waterborne disease; the relationship

         25  between land use development in Westchester County
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          2  and the quality of Croton water; the need for water

          3  conservation in the City; the impact of the project

          4  on water rates; and the wisdom or folly of various

          5  actions taken by prior Administrations.  The process

          6  that led to this hearing has often been contentious,

          7  but that is only because all the various

          8  participants, including myself and my staff, feel

          9  very strongly about what we are doing.  Although

         10  somewhat adversarial; the process has been very,

         11  very public.  In 1998 alone there were 13 public

         12  hearings in connection with this project.

         13                 While the issues I just mentioned are

         14  all of interest in their own right, in my prepared

         15  remarks this morning I will only address matters

         16  that help me answer two questions of immediate

         17  relevance to this application.

         18                 First, why does the City need to

         19  build a Croton filtration plant at all?  And,

         20  second, if the City must build a filtration plant

         21  why can't it be built at some other site, especially

         22  one in Westchester County?

         23                 Following my prepared remarks, with

         24  the permission of the Chair, DEP staff will make a

         25  short, more technical presentation about the Mosholu
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          2  site, the proposed plant itself, and issues raised

          3  by the public during the course of the project.

          4                 Why do we have to build a filtration

          5  plant for the Croton system?  Before I provide a

          6  more complete answer, the short answer is that the

          7  Federal and State Governments say we have to, and

          8  the City has agreed in a Federal Consent Order to

          9  build such a facility.  The Federal Government has

         10  since told the City on numerous occasions that they

         11  are not going to change their minds. The reason they

         12  say we have to do this is that the relevant law and

         13  regulation requires filtration unless you have

         14   "exceptional" water quality and enough control over

         15  the derivative watershed to restrict, over the long

         16  term, activities that can adversely affect water

         17  quality.  Croton water has consistently met public

         18  health standards for prevention of pathogenic

         19  contamination; however, its intrinsic chemical and

         20  biological characteristics are such that the United

         21  States Environmental Protection Agency does not

         22  believe that Croton water can reliably be considered

         23  to be a supply of exceptional quality into the next

         24  century as water quality standards become more and

         25  more stringent.  The Croton system has periodically
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          2  failed non- health based standards for color, taste

          3  and odor, and occasionally, small larvae have

          4  appeared in this water supply, leading to public

          5  complaints.

          6                 Then there is the issue of control.

          7  The population residing in the Croton watershed,

          8  about 168,000 souls, greatly limits, in EPA's

          9  estimation, the extent to which the watershed can be

         10  permanently protected from attendant adverse

         11  impacts.

         12                 Notwithstanding anything you will

         13  hear today from very well- intentioned opponents of

         14  the plant, neither EPA nor the United States

         15  Congress is going to ride to the rescue and tell the

         16  City that because Croton water remains very good, we

         17  can take a few more years to experiment with water

         18  quality protection techniques in lieu of building a

         19  filtration plant.  Reasonable people may differ over

         20  whether or not the applicable law and regulation

         21  represents the best public policy.  But anyone who

         22  suggests that the Federal Government is willing to

         23  release the City from an obligation to filter is,

         24  with all due respect, indulging in wishful thinking.

         25                 In 1997, after I had publicly
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          2  suggested that we might be able to make a case for

          3  filtration avoidance for the Croton system, the

          4  United State Government sued the City to force it to

          5  agree to a filtration schedule.  The settlement of

          6  that lawsuit is a Consent Decree reached among the

          7  City, the United States, and the State of New York.

          8  That Consent Decree provides, among other things,

          9  that if the City does not complete the ULURP process

         10  for siting a filtration plant by July 31, 1999,

         11  approximately one month from today, the Federal

         12  Government will hit us with huge new penalties.

         13  Those new penalties would be in addition to the $1

         14  million in civil penalties already assessed; and the

         15  $5 million we have to set aside for Supplemental

         16  Environmental Projects.  A six- month delay in

         17  obtaining a site would cost the City in the range of

         18  $14 million in new penalties.  After 18 months a

         19  delay would cost upwards of $50 million in

         20  penalties.  And that is the short answer, the

         21  applicable laws and regulations mandate that the

         22  City filter the Croton water supply, under the

         23  threat of significant financial penalties.

         24                 A more complete answer to this

         25  question is as follows:
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          2                 In 1986, Congress enacted amendments

          3  to the Safe Drinking Water Act wherein it ordered

          4  EPA to promulgate a set of rules that would force

          5  all of the nation's surface water suppliers, like

          6  ourselves, to filter their systems by June 1993,

          7  unless they met certain criteria that EPA was to

          8  specify by regulation in 1989. The rationale behind

          9  these amendments was to further protect the public

         10  health against waterborne disease by making public

         11  water supply systems filter their water unless they

         12  met very stringent criteria concerning the quality

         13  of their water and their ability to control their

         14  watersheds.  Although disinfection via chlorination

         15  effectively kills most disease- causing organisms in

         16  drinking water, filtration of drinking water

         17  provides an additional barrier and removes many

         18  contaminants independent of chlorination.

         19                 As the science of public health

         20  protection has improved, the standards governing

         21  drinking water supplies have become more protective.

         22    From the regulatory standpoint, filtration is a

         23  straightforward and effective way to improve water

         24  quality and protect public health.  As a result of

         25  the 1986 amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act,
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          2  filtration became the law of the land, unless EPA is

          3  convinced otherwise.  Filtration will also remove

          4  the natural organic material present in the Croton

          5  Water supply, which reacts with chlorine to form

          6  disinfection by-products.  These by-products are

          7  suspected of being carcinogenic.  They are now being

          8  regulated and the Croton system might not be able to

          9  consistently meet those health- based regulations

         10  without some amount of treatment before

         11  chlorination.

         12                 The City actually has three different

         13  surface water systems, each of which is composed of

         14  a number of separate drainage basins.  The largest

         15  and newest supply is the Delaware system, started in

         16  the 1930's and fully operational by 1965.  The

         17  Catskill system, built between 1909 and 1917, is so

         18  named because it was created from impounding waters

         19  in the Catskill Mountains.  The Catskill and

         20  Delaware systems are both largely on the west side

         21  of the Hudson River.  They are the largest of the

         22  three systems, providing together an average of 90

         23  percent of the City's daily needs which are now

         24  running at about 1.3 billion gallons each day.

         25                 The Croton system is the oldest and
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          2  smallest of the three.  It was originally put into

          3  operation in 1842 after the construction of a dam on

          4  the Croton River in northern Westchester and was

          5  expanded at the end of the 19th Century.  The

          6  creation of the Croton system to supply

          7  free-running, gravity-driven water to New York

          8  City's growing population has been heralded as one

          9  of the hallmarks of this City's survival through the

         10  19th Century and its emergence into the 20th Century

         11  as the capital of the world. Croton water once

         12  provided all of the City's water, but now provides

         13  only about 10 percent of the City's average daily

         14  supply in normal years, and up to 30 percent during

         15  drought periods. During normal years the Croton

         16  system serves only communities in the eastern and

         17  southern Bronx, and parts of the Upper West Side of

         18  Manhattan, Harlem, the Lower East Side, Clinton and

         19  the West Village.  The reason for this has to do

         20  with the relative elevations of those areas in

         21  relation to the elevation of the Croton reservoirs.

         22  In non- typical periods, such as ones where we are

         23  experiencing a drought, the Croton system can be

         24  pumped to serve all of the other areas of the City.

         25                 In 1989, EPA issued its rules on how
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          2  a surface water supplier might avoid filtering their

          3  systems, including the requirement that a request to

          4  waive the filtration mandate must be submitted by

          5  the end of 1991.  By that time the City had decided

          6  that it would apply for a filtration avoidance

          7  waiver for  the Catskill and Delaware supplies and

          8  that it would not apply for a Croton waiver.  After

          9  considerable effort and expense, a five- year waiver

         10  from filtering water from the two west of Hudson

         11  watersheds was obtained in May 1997.  About 140

         12  public water systems also received filtration

         13  avoidance waivers.  Approximately nine of those

         14  systems serve populations greater than 100,000

         15  people.  Most of them control a majority of the land

         16  in their watershed which we do not.  After

         17  filtration waiver to a system as large as our

         18  Catskill Delaware systems, where we only own a

         19  fraction of the watershed, was unprecedented.

         20                 It is my understanding that the

         21  City's decision not to apply for a filtration waiver

         22  for the Croton system was made for two reasons.  The

         23  high level of natural organic material that has

         24  always been present in Croton water, combined with

         25  the fact that the system is highly populated, led to
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          2  the conclusion that the City would not be able to

          3  convince either EPA or the State that it could meet

          4  the necessary standard for water quality or control

          5  of the watershed.  The City then entered into an

          6  agreement with New York State to start the process

          7  of siting and building a filtration plant for the

          8  Croton system.  At that time the City's preferred

          9  site was the Jerome Park Reservoir.  The basic

         10  reason for that is that the Jerome Park Reservoir is

         11  both the terminus of the New Croton Aqueduct, which

         12  carries all the Croton water and the point at which

         13  the Aqueduct connects to the distribution system.

         14  In fact, when the Jerome Park Reservoir was built it

         15  was intended to be the site for a filter plant.

         16                 In 1993, the Department initiated the

         17  environmental review process for the Croton

         18  filtration project.  In 1995, at the request of the

         19  Bronx communities surrounding the Jerome Park

         20  Reservoir, Mayor Giuliani directed DEP to do four

         21  things:

         22                 1.  De-select the Jerome Park

         23  Reservoir as the preferred site.

         24                 2.  Analyze all available alternative

         25  filtration sites at an equal level of detail.
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          2                 3. Examine the capacity necessary for

          3  a plant to filter the system.

          4                 4.  Thoroughly review the case for

          5  any treatment techniques that might improve water

          6  quality such that filtration would not be needed.

          7                 The 1991 decision not to seek a

          8  filtration waiver for the Croton supply has been

          9  severely criticized, in hindsight, mostly by those

         10  fearful at the prospect of a construction project at

         11  the Jerome Park Reservoir.  Then, our success in

         12  obtaining a filtration waiver for the Catskill-

         13  Delaware systems inspired the belief that it must be

         14  possible to obtain a waiver for the Croton system as

         15  well, regardless of the decision made by the City in

         16  1991.  Those objecting to one or another site for

         17  the plant have often held open the beguiling

         18  prospect that the City need not be faced with the

         19  difficult siting decision before you now, because it

         20  is argued the City could obtain filtration avoidance

         21  status for the Croton system, if it really wanted

         22  to.

         23                 The implication is made that DEP

         24  enjoys large, multi- year, consent- order driven

         25  construction projects and therefore is unwilling to
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          2  pursue and obtain a filtration avoidance waiver for

          3  the Croton system, as we did for the Catskill-

          4  Delaware system.  The further, and even more

          5  disturbing implication is that the City is in league

          6  with Westchester and Putnam developers and is

          7  encouraging them by agreeing to build a filtration

          8  plant for the Croton system.

          9                 Although I and my staff do enjoy our

         10  work at building and repairing the City's

         11  infrastructure, we would consider it a greater

         12  success if we could successfully obtain a filtration

         13  waiver for the Croton system, as we did for the

         14  Catskill and Delaware systems.  And if we were

         15  actually in cahoots with Westchester and Putnam

         16  developers, then they probably wouldn't have 80

         17  legal actions, give or take a few, pending against

         18  the agency because they are concerned about the

         19  standards embodied in the City's new watershed

         20  regulations which might preclude or limit the

         21  construction of projects in sensitive watershed

         22  areas.

         23                 The hard reality that many people

         24  fail to recognize is that the Croton system is

         25  physically, biologically, and chemically different
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          2  from our other two water supply systems in ways that

          3  make filtration avoidance for Croton a much more

          4  difficult argument, even if the City had met the

          5  1991 deadline for filing for a waiver.  Furthermore,

          6  because the Croton watershed is extensively

          7  developed EPA has taken the position that it is not

          8  possible for the City to exercise the degree of

          9  control over its watershed that is a necessary

         10  condition for a filtration avoidance waiver.  In the

         11  words of the Regional EPA Administrator, Jeanne Fox,

         12  as quoted in the New York Times on May 21, 1998, the

         13  decision over whether or not to consider the City's

         14  request for filtration avoidance for Croton "wasn't

         15  even a close call."

         16                 Although the Croton system, in one

         17  form or another, has served the City well for over

         18  150 years, and will continue to do so for many more,

         19  it has been since its inception a shallow, nutrient-

         20  rich system that is affected by algal blooms which

         21  imparted to the water a taste and odor that other

         22  City water supplies do not have.

         23                 Although this situation has probably

         24  not been improved by population increases in

         25  Westchester, itself, since the inception of the
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          2  system, the population of Westchester is not

          3  critical to some characteristics of Croton water

          4  which make it an unlikely candidate for filtration

          5  avoidance.  In fact, if Westchester were completely

          6  unpopulated we might still be required to filter the

          7  Croton system.

          8                 We know that because of the study I

          9  mentioned earliest that the Mayor directed us to

         10  perform at the request of Bronx communities and

         11  Council Member Eisland.  This $2 million study,

         12  usually referred to as "The Extended Special Study,"

         13  included an evaluation of techniques to improve

         14  water quality that do not involve filtration.  Some

         15  of these techniques are extremely promising but

         16  controversial.  One of them involves adding alum, a

         17  metallic salt coagulant, to the New Croton

         18  Reservoir.  The alum coagulates with naturally-

         19  occurring organic material suspended in the water,

         20  settles to the bottom of the reservoir, and leaves

         21  the reservoir water cleaner.  Unfortunately

         22  implementing this technique, even on a pilot basis

         23  needed to validate the technique, requires

         24  permission from the State and localities in

         25  Westchester. Both are very hesitant about giving

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  such permission.  In fact we already applied for

          3  permission to conduct this pilot, but have not yet

          4  received any approval or response.

          5                 In all candor the reason for that is,

          6  first, the fisherman's associations and

          7  environmental groups have indicated that they will

          8  oppose the use of alum in our drinking water

          9  reservoirs because of their concerns over the health

         10  of the bottom stratum of the reservoir Waters where

         11  the coagulated alum would be deposited.  The

         12  fishermen's lobby has often opposed what we believe

         13  are appropriate water management activities, but

         14  which they believe might result in a decrease in

         15  fish populations.

         16                 The second difficulty in obtaining

         17  permits for further studies of alum addition is that

         18  we have to build a storage facility next to the

         19  Muscoot Reservoir, probably in the towns of Somers

         20  and Bedford, so that we can store and dispense the

         21  alum that is needed to conduct a pilot non-

         22  filtration project.  I guarantee you these towns are

         23  not going to embrace our applications to site such a

         24  storage and application facility in their

         25  communities.
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          2                 The problems of implementing even

          3  pilot studies of filtration avoidance techniques

          4  aside, the techniques themselves, and alum addition

          5  is only one of them, are theoretically promising, in

          6  that they may be effective in meeting certain water

          7  quality goals.  Therefore an argument has arisen

          8  that the City should delay moving forward with this

          9  ULURP applications while we petition EPA for

         10  reopening the Consent Decree based on the possible

         11  potential for certain non- filtration techniques to

         12  improve water quality.

         13                 Again, with all due respect to people

         14  making this argument, it is a non-starter.  EPA has

         15  made it abundantly clear orally that they would not

         16  consent to filtration avoidance for the Croton

         17  system because the law and regulation does not

         18  support the City's case for a Croton waiver from the

         19  requirements of the Safe Drinking Water Act and the

         20  Surface Water Treatment Rule.  You will doubtless

         21  hear, in the course of this public hearing, from

         22  many well- meaning  citizens and their elected or

         23  community leaders, mostly but not exclusively from

         24  the Bronx.  You will probably be told that if only

         25  the City would go back to the table with EPA and the
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          2  Justice Department they will give the City the

          3  chance to experiment further with filtration

          4  avoidance technologies without having to incur

          5  penalties.  This position is not based on any facts

          6  or reasoning, but the desire to avoid a construction

          7  project.  The reason we had to sign a Consent Order

          8  in the first place was that the City avoided

          9  starting construction at Jerome Park Reservoir,

         10  while we re- evaluated and re- evaluated and re-

         11  evaluated the need for filtration in the first

         12  place, as well as the suitability of the site.

         13                 The final point I want to make with

         14  respect to the question of the need for filtration

         15  of the Croton supply is that while nobody wants a

         16  construction project, with the attendant disruption

         17  in their neighborhood, a filtration plant improves

         18  the water supply.  Filtration improves water quality

         19  by removing many contaminants in the water supply,

         20  by providing a physical barrier that minimizes

         21  public health risk as compared with unfiltered

         22  water.  This Administration fought long and hard,

         23  and eventually with success, to obtain a five- year

         24  filtration waiver for the water from the Catskill

         25  and Delaware systems.  That doesn't mean we think
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          2  filtration is bad.  It's expensive, sometimes

          3  unnecessary and, in any case, we must keep the raw

          4  water quality as high as possible through watershed

          5  protection.  Even so, the Federal Government is so

          6  fundamentally concerned about the success of

          7  filtration avoidance that the City is required to

          8  continue siting, preliminary design and

          9  environmental review, even for the Catskill and

         10  Delaware systems, regardless of being given a

         11  filtration avoidance waiver for those watersheds.

         12                 We have an extensive watershed

         13  protection program active in all of our watersheds.

         14  However, there are inherent differences between the

         15  various water systems.  Furthermore, the Croton

         16  watershed has a resident population of around 400

         17  persons per square mile.  The Catskill and Delaware

         18  watersheds have about 40 persons per square mile,

         19  and I ask that anyone who has my written remarks,

         20  please, correct that typographical error.  Despite

         21  that, we argued vigorously to EPA that the current

         22  water quality is still very good, there are

         23  promising treatment techniques besides filtration,

         24  and that we could continue designing a filtration

         25  plant while we research further how to improve the
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          2  quality without filtration.  The Federal Government

          3  continues to reject that position, and I refer you

          4  to today's New York Times for the current statement.

          5                 Why do we have to build the

          6  filtration plant in the City?  The short answer to

          7  this question is that you don't have to build the

          8  filtration plant in the City.  The Mosholu Golf

          9  Course is the best site, but it is technically

         10  feasible to build the plant at a site in Westchester

         11  County.  The consequences of such an unfortunate

         12  decision would be as follows:

         13                 First, even if we build the treatment

         14  plant in Westchester we would still need significant

         15  construction in the Bronx.  This is because the

         16  project's related facilities, a treated water

         17  reservoir and pumping stations for the treated water

         18  must be close to the City's distribution system, and

         19  most likely located at the Jerome Park Reservoir.

         20  So, if the goal is to avoid any construction in the

         21  Bronx, that is not possible.  I will explain that

         22  further, later.

         23                 Second, the cost of the project

         24  increases by a minimum of $200 million if the plant

         25  is built in Westchester.
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          2                 Third, the property owners and

          3  ratepayers of this City, the same ones who will bear

          4  the burden of the demise of the City's commuter tax,

          5  will end up paying $8 million a year in real estate

          6  taxes to Westchester County filter plant, and

          7  there's no guarantee that Westchester County and

          8  local governments won't raise taxes once the City

          9  has a captive facility there.

         10                 Fourth, all the positive economic

         11  impacts of constructing and operating the plant

         12  would be enjoyed by Westchester County, not by City

         13  workers.  During construction of the project there

         14  will be 6,160 new jobs created; during operation of

         15  the plant 190 permanent new jobs will be created.

         16  Needless to say, these jobs can't be in the City if

         17  we're building this capital project in Westchester.

         18                 Fifth and last, we expose the City's

         19  water system to the increased risks of contamination

         20  and sabotage posed by the remote, and less protected

         21  Westchester sites, and the distance the filtered

         22  water must be conveyed.

         23                 Obviously the Administration's

         24  position is that the best available site is under

         25  the Mosholu Golf Course.  The application to use the
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          2  Mosholu site was filed last year, well before the

          3  demise of the commuter tax.  That was an unfortunate

          4  decision that I mention because in the course of

          5  today's hearing you may hear that the plant should

          6  be built in Westchester because the Supervisors of

          7  Mount Pleasant and Greenburg have both stated that

          8  the plant would be really, really welcomed up there.

          9    I think it is safe to infer that the reason they

         10  want it there is that it serves the economic

         11  interests of their communities, the same way ending

         12  the commuter tax served the economic interests of

         13  communities surrounding the City. I think there's a

         14  strong chance that elected officials representing

         15  Mount Pleasant and Greenburg supported that, too.

         16  You can't blame them for looking after their own

         17  interests.  The problem is that to the extent they

         18  gain economically from this project, the City, once

         19  again, loses.

         20                 How did the City decide the Mosholu

         21  site is the best one?  Before I end, I will give you

         22  the highlights of a very long, very complicated

         23  siting process.  Then Warren Kurtz, our project

         24  manager, who has spent the last several year working

         25  on this matter, will review the technical details of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            38

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  this project for you.

          3                 The New Croton Reservoir in northern

          4  Westchester County is the collecting point for all

          5  of the drinking water gathered in the Croton

          6  watershed system.  From that reservoir the 24- mile

          7  long New Croton Aqueduct, a subsurface tunnel with a

          8  diameter ranging between 12 and 14 feet, carries all

          9  Croton water south through Westchester County to the

         10  Jerome Park Reservoir, the terminus of the Croton

         11  system.  At the Jerome Park Reservoir, Croton water

         12  is transferred from the aqueduct to the City's water

         13  mains through a network of gatehouses, valves and

         14  pumping stations.

         15                 In planning for the current Croton

         16  system at the end of the 19th Century, City planners

         17  had already contemplated filtering the City's water

         18  and acquired extensive land around the Jerome Park

         19  Reservoir to site a filtration plant which was

         20  actually designed in 1911 and a contract, therefore,

         21  bid in 1913.  The City never built that plant

         22  because of new technology came along, the use of

         23  chlorine as a disinfecting agent, which achieved the

         24  goal of waterborne disease prevention at that time

         25  more economically than filtration.  But, by 1970,
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          2  water quality concerns and episodes of insect larvae

          3  in the Croton system led to a new review of sites

          4  for a Croton filtration plant.  The conclusion of

          5  that study was that the Jerome Park Reservoir was

          6  the best site.  During the 1980's a pilot filtration

          7  plant was built at the reservoir, a dividing wall

          8  was constructed to facilitate the construction of a

          9  filtration plant and preliminary designs were begun.

         10    In 1986, the Congress amended the Safe Drinking

         11  Water Act, thereby setting in motion the chain of

         12  events that led to the 1989 Surface Water Treatment

         13  Rule, the City's 1991 decision to filter Croton

         14  water, a Federal lawsuit, and, ultimately, this

         15  hearing today.

         16                 DEP initially identified 120 sites

         17  that fit the four most basic criteria, it had to be

         18  within a two mile swath centered on the New Croton

         19  Aqueduct; it had to be between Yorktown, the start

         20  of the Aqueduct and the Jerome Park Reservoir, and

         21  it had to be at least 50 acres to accommodate the

         22  plant, its related facilities, construction staging

         23  needs and buffer space.  The list was reduced when

         24  we eliminated sites that contained parklands,

         25  significant wetlands, endangered species or fragile
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          2  habitats, or were steeply sloped.  The list grew

          3  again, when with the assistance of the project's

          4  Citizens Advisory Committee and after receiving

          5  public input, we began looking at other sites

          6  including Van Cortlandt Park.  The list also changed

          7  when further engineering analysis showed that a

          8  parcel as small as 20 acres could be considered.

          9                 The Final Environmental Impact

         10  Statement contains a complete analysis of the eight

         11  most promising sites for construction of the

         12  treatment plant.  Four of these sites are in the

         13  City, and four are in Westchester County.  A ninth

         14  site, Harris Park, located near the Jerome Park

         15  Reservoir, was analyzed as the site for a treated

         16  water reservoir and pumping station only, not as the

         17  site for a treatment plant.  This requires a little

         18  explanation as it refers back to an earlier point in

         19  my testimony where I promised to explain why it is

         20  that even if a treatment plant were constructed in

         21  Westchester, we would still need to construct some

         22  related facilities in the Bronx.

         23                 If a treatment plant were constructed

         24  at one of the Westchester sites, raw untreated water

         25  would be drawn out of the New Croton Aqueduct north
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          2  of the City, filtered and then returned to the New

          3  Croton Aqueduct to flow south into the City's

          4  distribution system.  Currently, that Aqueduct

          5  terminates at Jerome Park Reservoir which now serves

          6  as a holding tank, we call it a balancing reservoir,

          7  from which water is constantly being added to and

          8  withdrawn, in response to the variations in water

          9  demand at any given point in a day.  We will not be

         10  able to continue to use the uncovered Jerome Park

         11  Reservoir as a holding tank for filtered water

         12  coming down the Aqueduct from Westchester because

         13  storing filtered water is an uncovered reservoir

         14  would severely compromise the purpose of filtering

         15  and would not be permitted by our Federal and State

         16  regulators.  This covered storage must, however, be

         17  at or near the Jerome Park Reservoir.

         18                 A treated water reservoir at the site

         19  of the treatment plant is built into all the site

         20  proposals for the sites near the Jerome Park

         21  Reservoir.  The Westchester and Croton Woods sites

         22  are too remote physically and hydraulically from the

         23  point where the distribution system begins to be

         24  sites for treated water storage facility.  The

         25  analysis of the treatment plant at the Westchester
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          2  sites had to assume that the covered water storage

          3  would occur either at the Jerome Park Reservoir or

          4  across the street at Harris Park.  We did consider

          5  routing all Croton water from a Westchester plant

          6  through the Hillview Reservoir which currently

          7  receives only Catskill- Delaware water. We rapidly

          8  concluded that this would pose an unacceptable risk

          9  to the security of the City's entire water supply.

         10  We consulted with the Office of Management and

         11  Budget, the Police Department and outside experts

         12  who strongly concurred with us on this.

         13                 Of the eight treatment plant sites

         14  analyzed in the final EIS, if you rule out the four

         15  Westchester sites for reasons already mentioned,

         16  then the four remaining are the Jerome Park

         17  Reservoir and three other Bronx sites.  If you

         18  exclude the Jerome Park Reservoir because of the

         19  construction impact on the surrounding community,

         20  then the remaining sites are all sections of Van

         21  Cortlandt Park.

         22                 As I mentioned a few minutes ago, an

         23  earlier list of siting criteria had deliberately

         24  excluded parklands.  The reason for that being,

         25  simply, that we have no desire to choose a park as a
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          2  site if there are reasonable alternatives available.

          3    When it became clear that there were no reasonable

          4  alternatives, if you exclude Jerome Park Reservoir,

          5  we began to analyze the Van Cortlandt Park sites.

          6  We have ample experience building beneath parks.  In

          7  the 1960's, DEP built vast underground storage tanks

          8  under the Silver Lake Park in Staten Island.  In the

          9  1970's and 1980's, Stage One of City Tunnel No. 3

         10  was constructed under Central Park, with a valve

         11  chamber, and the Van Cortlandt Park Valve Chamber

         12  was constructed under the northeastern section of

         13  Van Cortlandt Park.  In the 1990's we began building

         14  an underground combined sewer storage tank underwent

         15  Flushing Meadow Park in Queens.  In the case of the

         16  examples above that are actually completed, one

         17  would never know what was built underground without

         18  being made aware of it.

         19                 Of the Van Cortlandt Park sites, the

         20  Golf Course at Mosholu was the most advantageous

         21  because it has the minimum impact on the park, would

         22  not require construction vehicles to enter the

         23  community, and would result in significant

         24  improvement to the park. In a moment, I will turn

         25  the presentation over to Warren, who can describe
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          2  the project in more detail.

          3                 In closing I want to mention again

          4  the two questions that I hope I have addressed in

          5  these remarks.

          6                 First, we must filter the City's

          7  Croton water supply because law and regulation

          8  require filtration unless EPA grants a waiver and

          9  the City has accepted that.  EPA is not willing to

         10  entertain the City's request for a waiver of the

         11  filtration requirement for the Croton water supply

         12  system at this time.  Let me point out that if EPA

         13  was willing to seriously entertain non filtration

         14  status for the Croton system they would not have

         15  sued us in 1997, nor have been as adamant in denying

         16  a non- filtration track in the Consent Order.  They

         17  took us to court precisely because they believed the

         18  City was not committed to constructing a plant.  If

         19  by rejecting this application the City violates the

         20  Consent Decree which settled the Federal lawsuit, we

         21  will incur substantial financial penalties which

         22  would be borne by the ratepayers.  We have learned a

         23  great deal about watershed protection and water

         24  quality enhancement through our work on all three of

         25  the City's systems, two of which enjoy filtration
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          2  avoidance status as a result of our work.  With

          3  regard to the Croton system, we intend to continue

          4  our work in devising and implementing treatment

          5  techniques aside from filtration that will give us,

          6  in partnership with filtration, improved water

          7  quality.

          8                 Finally, to stress again, the reason

          9  why we should build this project in the City are:

         10                 There would be major construction in

         11  the Bronx even if the plant itself were located in

         12  Westchester County.

         13                 If the project is built in

         14  Westchester it will cost a minimum of $200 million

         15  more.

         16                 The economic benefits the project

         17  brings should be enjoyed in our own backyard, not in

         18  Westchester County.

         19                 The improvements we will make at Van

         20  Cortlandt Park during the course of construction and

         21  when we are done will greatly benefit everyone who

         22  uses this park.

         23                 And, we have developed a construction

         24  plan at the Mosholu site that will isolate impacts

         25  from the surrounding community.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the

          3  opportunity to delivery these remarks today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you,

          5  Commissioner.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  If I may, I will

          7  ask Warren to continue on?

          8                 MR. KURTZ:  Good morning.  My name is

          9  Warren Kurtz. I'm responsible for facility planning

         10  at DEP, and that includes the Croton Project.

         11                 The action before you today is site

         12  selection for the Croton filtration project below

         13  the Mosholu Golf Course Driving Range in Van

         14  Cortlandt Park in the Bronx.  I want to tell you a

         15  little bit more detailed information about the

         16  project, why we selected Mosholu, show you some

         17  pictures of what the project would look like after

         18  it is done, and address some issues raised by the

         19  public during the ULURP process.

         20                 As Commissioner Miele pointed out,

         21  the Croton Project is a large project, but it is

         22  composed of three large components.  Everyone has

         23  been focusing on the water treatment plant, but yet

         24  there are two other large components the treated

         25  water reservoir and a finished water pump station,
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          2  which on their own are significant projects.  To

          3  give you an example, the treated water reservoir and

          4  the pump station would occupy about 8 acres of space

          5  if they were built on their own.  The proposal at

          6  Mosholu envisions a structure 11 acres in size,

          7  incorporating the treated water reservoir and the

          8  finished water pump station.  Now that is what the

          9  Croton Project is, let me touch upon what it is not.

         10                 Even though waste are removed from

         11  the water, this is not a sewage treatment plant;

         12  this is not a biological process that has odors

         13  associated with it, so we should not think of it in

         14  terms of sewage treatment plant.  Again, although

         15  there are large amounts of chemicals that are used

         16  at this facility, this is not an industrial chemical

         17  facility where there might be risks to the community

         18  from these chemicals.  These chemicals are routinely

         19  used in other water treatment plants, over 1,000

         20  water treatment plants in the United States, and

         21  many of these chemicals are safely used by DEP right

         22  now at Kensico and Hillview in treating our water

         23  supply, and similar chemicals are used at the City's

         24  14th Sewage Treatment Plants throughout the City.

         25                 The Commissioner touched upon the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            48

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  need to filter for legal requirements, I just want

          3  to reiterate, the water quality problem, they are

          4  color, taste, and odor, and sometime midge fly

          5  larvae, little red worms from insects, those

          6  problems have resulted in the Croton system being

          7  shut down fairly routinely over the past several

          8  years.  There are other future water quality

          9  problems that the system will not be able to comply

         10  with, disinfection by products, the interaction of

         11  chlorine with a natural forming organic material

         12  that is in the water formed by disinfection by

         13  products that are suspected carcinogenic agents.

         14  And the Croton system will likely not be able to

         15  comply with those regulations on a consistent basis.

         16                 When these problems occur, when these

         17  aesthetic problems of color, taste, and odor, and

         18  larvae do occur, we get complaints about them, and

         19  we get complaints from some of your constituents.

         20  Croton water routinely serves the East Bronx,

         21  Harlem, the Lower East Side, Clinton, and the West

         22  Village in Manhattan.   When we pump Croton water,

         23  we can pump it directly into Lower Manhattan,

         24  Washington Heights area of Manhattan, and central

         25  areas of the Bronx.  When we pump Croton water to
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          2  the high level systems of Catskill/Delaware that

          3  gets blended with Catskill/Delaware water and goes

          4  throughout the City.

          5                 We considered eight sites for the

          6  treatment plant, four of them in Westchester, four

          7  in the Bronx, and one site Harris Park directly

          8  opposite Jerome Park Reservoir for the related

          9  facilities of the treated water reservoir and the

         10  finished water pump station.  Only four sites in the

         11  Bronx are suitable for the treated water reservoir

         12  and the pump station because they must be located

         13  near the distribution system connections near Jerome

         14  Park. Even if the plant is built in Westchester, the

         15  large treated water reservoir and pump station must

         16  be built in the Bronx, either at Jerome Park

         17  Reservoir, Harris Park, Mosholu, or the Shandler

         18  Recreation area.  And that construction will be

         19  major in nature and have similar impacts to the

         20  filter plant construction overall.

         21                 The recommended site is at Mosholu

         22  Golf Course, let me show you where that is, it is in

         23  the southeast corner of Van Cortlandt Park.  Van

         24  Cortlandt Park is 1,146 acres in size, the finished

         25  facility will be 11 acres in size, the project
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          2  impact area is 23 acres and the fenced area around

          3  the project during construction will be 28 acres.

          4  We recommended Mosholu for four reasons:

          5                 The site is relatively close to

          6  Jerome Park Reservoir where the connections have to

          7  be made to the distribution system.  Jerome Park is

          8  right down here at the bottom of this visual and I

          9  will show you some more in a minute on that.

         10                 It's the only site, because of its

         11  elevation that allows stacking of facilities, the

         12  plant, the treated water reservoir and the pump

         13  station, thus minimizing the site impacts and

         14  minimizing the construction impacts.

         15                 Construction access, construction

         16  traffic access to the site is good and also

         17  minimizes construction impacts which have been the

         18  major issue addressed in the EIS.

         19                 Costs at this site are moderate,

         20  there neither the lowest cost nor the highest cost.

         21  The capital cost of this project is in the order of

         22  $680 million, total life cycle cost in the order of

         23  $750 million.

         24                 Next, what the site currently looks

         25  like - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Before you go

          3  on, would you just go back to that slide for second?

          4    I would like to see where were the other three

          5  sites in the park that you considered?

          6                 MR. KURTZ:  Okay.  The Shandler

          7  Recreation area is just north of Mosholu, and the

          8  Croton Woods site is at the northern end of Van

          9  Cortlandt Park abutting the Major Deegan Expressways

         10  and Yonkers.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Heavily wooded

         12  sites.

         13                 MR. KURTZ:  Heavily wooded sites.

         14  Next.  This is an aerial view looking to the

         15  southwest, this is the Mosholu Golf Course Driving

         16  Range.  Let me orient you to the site, you see

         17  Jerome Park Reservoir in the distance, a little bit

         18  less than a mile away, in the foreground is the

         19  Woodlawn IRT Station, the last station on the

         20  Woodlawn No. 4 Line, Jerome Avenue curves around to

         21  the right.

         22                 The Golf Course was an 18- hole golf

         23  course, about 10 years ago it was converted into a

         24  9- hole golf course and a driving range, trees were

         25  left on the driving range, that is a little bit
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          2  unusual, but the Parks Department wanted to keep

          3  those trees there. To the south is a playground,

          4  that playground will not be impacted by the project,

          5  there will be a berm and a sound barrier created

          6  around the treatment plant during construction to

          7  further dissipate noise and any dust.

          8                 Next.  Again, construction access to

          9  the site is very good.  The Major Deegan is the

         10  major north/south arterial in the Bronx, the 233rd

         11  Street off ramp from there meets up with Jerome

         12  Avenue, and truck traffic to the site can come down

         13  Jerome Avenue passing other areas of Van Cortlandt

         14  Park, the Shandler Recreation Area, and Woodlawn

         15  Cemetery, no residential communities are along this

         16  route, then the trucks will go directly into the

         17  site.

         18                 After construction the project would

         19  be fully restored to all park uses.  The facility is

         20  completely underground, a new driving range would be

         21  built, fenced in, a new club house for the golfers,

         22  a new parking lot for the golfers, a new access road

         23  into the site.  Any parking related to the facility

         24  is underground within the plant structure.  A

         25  service road going into the plant would go into a
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          2  tunnel and all vehicles, workers, deliveries to the

          3  plant would go through that tunnel and then exit

          4  next to the clubhouse and into the parking lot and

          5  out of the site.  The site would be relandscaped and

          6  restored, the golf course would be improved, it

          7  needs work right now.

          8                 As far as park uses, DEP has agreed

          9  with the Parks Department to restore any park use

         10  that the Parks Department agrees upon with the

         11  community.  We have encouraged the community to meet

         12  with us during the designed process to go over

         13  ancillary related areas adjacent to the driving

         14  range and whatever types of community treatment

         15  would be desire in those areas.

         16                 Next I want to go over three items

         17  that Commissioner Miele addressed in his prepared

         18  remarks, three items that we heard from the public,

         19  basically, number one, make the project go away

         20  through filtration avoidance.  Number two, make the

         21  plant go away, let it go to Westchester, and number

         22  three, questioning the use of parkland.

         23                 The first is non- filtration

         24  alternatives, as Commissioner Miele and I said

         25  earlier, Croton currently does not meet some
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          2  standards part of the year and will not consistently

          3  meet recently promulgated standards for disinfection

          4  by- products.  As I said earlier, the system is

          5  taken out of service routinely for these aesthetic

          6  problems, and by the end of this year the City will

          7  be in violation of a health- based standard.

          8  Watershed protection alone is not enough to meet

          9  water quality standards.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  If I might, a

         11  lot of this was gone over in Commissioner Miele's

         12  testimony, we have a lot of people who want to

         13  testify here, in all fairness to them, if you could

         14  sort of not go over the stuff that we have heard

         15  already, and try to condense it a little out of

         16  fairness to the several hundred people who are here?

         17                 MR. KURTZ:  Okay.  Very quickly,

         18  next, filtration avoidance does not seem to be in

         19  the cards, although we are going ahead with a pilot

         20  work, we have made application for that.  It is a

         21  long- shot by all means.

         22                 The treatment plant being sited in

         23  Westchester, again, the related facilities which are

         24  large facilities must be built in the Bronx.

         25                 Next.  Use of parkland the issue of
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          2  alienation of parkland has been raised by the

          3  public, the construction does only effect the golf

          4  course, and all lands will be restored, completely

          5  restored to park use after construction.  There is

          6  no permanent taking or alienation of parkland.

          7                 I want to show you two photos of two

          8  other facilities.  This is the Valve Chamber that

          9  the Commissioner spoke about underneath Van

         10  Cortlandt Park right now.  It is a structure that is

         11  about 700 feet long, the plant that we're talking

         12  about will be about 1,000 feet long, so it is a

         13  similar size structure, it is currently under Van

         14  Cortlandt Park.

         15                 This is the Silver Lake Reservoir, or

         16  Silver Lake Park in Staten Island, the grassed area

         17  in the foreground, underneath that is a 50 million

         18  gallon water storage tank, two and one- half times

         19  the size of the treated water reservoir that we are

         20  proposing here.  As you can see this is completely

         21  restored to park uses.

         22                 Now that is the conclusion of my

         23  remarks, and we're available for questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

         25    Commissioner Miele, why is that in Massachusetts
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          2  they were able to pursue more filtration avoidance

          3  than we are here, what is the difference?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The difference

          5  is they made the decision to go with filtration

          6  avoidance in 1999 when they were entitled to legally

          7  make that decision.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  In 1999?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I'm sorry, in

         10  1991, my apologies.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, all right.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  And we chose,

         13  for whatever reasons and we have discussed those

         14  earlier, not to seek filtration avoidance for

         15  Croton.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  When this plant,

         17  if it is sited as cost out, and one of my problems

         18  on this whole thing is that as a member of the

         19  Environmental Protection Committee I almost know too

         20  much, because I have sat through many, many policy

         21  hearings on filtration avoidance, but what do you

         22  estimate the cost of the plant is going to be?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The

         24  construction?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Yes.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The $600 million

          3  that we have talked about, spread out over the years

          4  2002 to 2007, which in terms of those dollars would

          5  probably be somewhat under one billion dollars.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, and

          7  compared to that, we, I assume that Federal edicts

          8  could raise fines against the City if did nothing,

          9  not just keep them at the - -

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  They're outline

         11  in the Consent Decree.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right, but what

         13  I'm saying is that do they escalate over a period of

         14  time?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  They absolutely

         16  do, they become accumulative.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  All right, okay.

         18    One of the concerns that has been raised, well,

         19  not a concern, but a point that has been raised is

         20  that the Council doesn't take action on this, or if

         21  the Council refuses to site this, that the Federal

         22  Government can't hold your agency responsible for

         23  our action, do your attorneys agree with that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  My attorneys

         25  don't agree, I don't know of any attorney in the
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          2  room or in the City, the State,- -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We're going to

          4  here from some later, I think.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: - -  or in the

          6  Federal Government who believes that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  I know

          8  there are questions from others and we have a

          9  lengthy witness list, so, Council Member Eisland.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman. While this is a siting hearing,

         12  unfortunately, at Van Cortlandt Park, I do not feel

         13  constrained not to talk about how we got to the

         14  point that we are at here today, and I think it is

         15  important for that history to be put on the record

         16  in a somewhat different matter perhaps then has been

         17  put on the record, and then also to ask some

         18  questions, as well.

         19                 I guess the first thing that I woke

         20  up to was reading the New York Times, Commissioner,

         21  and was quite surprised to see in the B Section the

         22  quote from you, "that citizens suggested Mosholu at

         23  a public hearing and the City took up the idea."  It

         24  further states, "that this is not a location people

         25  objected to during the whole process of selection,"
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          2  and that is a quote directly from you.

          3                 During the whole process, which has

          4  taken many years, the public process and the

          5  announcement by DEP of the sites to be considered in

          6  both Westchester and the Bronx, originally to the

          7  best of knowledge, did not consist to the site that

          8  we're considering today.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  To the best

         11  of my knowledge, and you and I spoke before, I don't

         12  have the exact date, but I believe that the site

         13  that we're now considering today came online, or on

         14  your line a little bit more than a year ago.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is

         16  approximately correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I also in my

         18  recollection believe that the public hearings that

         19  you began to hold approximately over a year ago with

         20  a schedule in mind did not, in fact, consider in the

         21  announced public hearings the Mosholu Golf Course.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Obviously not in

         23  the beginning, because in the beginning that site

         24  had not been laid on the table. The site came on the

         25  table later during the course of the public hearing
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          2  process.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  It is also

          4  my recollection that there was no notice or official

          5  hearing within the context of all of your hearings

          6  on this Mosholu site.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I'm sorry, I

          8  don't understand, what was the point that you were

          9  making?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  The point is

         11  that there were announced hearings on the previous

         12  sites that were considered by DEP in the Bronx, but

         13  not for the Mosholu Golf Course.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, yes, just

         15  a second.

         16                 MR. KIETAS:  My name is Joe Kietas.

         17  I was in charge of the Environmental Impact Process

         18  for the facility.  Council Member Eisland is

         19  essentially correct, when we issued the draft scope

         20  of work for the Environmental Review Process after

         21  the Jerome Park draft EIS process was terminated,

         22  the Mosholu site was not included in the draft scope

         23  of work.  However, at public hearings on the draft

         24  scope of the work, the issue was raised and the

         25  final scope of work included the Mosholu site and
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          2  subsequent to that every public hearing that was

          3  held had Mosholu on it as an agenda. And as you all

          4  may recall, a lot of people in this room, we did an

          5  extraordinary thing with the EIS Process, we issued

          6  for one of the first times in the agency's history a

          7  preliminary draft EIS to comply with the commitment

          8  that the Mayor asked us to do this, analyze all

          9  sites at an equal level.  We put that out for public

         10  comment and held public hearings on that, and the

         11  Mosholu site was included in that preliminary draft

         12  EIS.  And, again, subsequently included in the draft

         13  EIS and now in the final EIS.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I quite

         15  frankly would say the only way I would use the word

         16  extraordinary, was that it was extraordinary to make

         17  the statement that there were no complaints or

         18  objections to the Mosholu site, because at the

         19  moment that it was mentioned and from that moment

         20  till today, there has been extraordinarily

         21  vociferous objections both to the process of putting

         22  it on at that late date, at the behest, supposedly

         23  of a citizen, number one.  And number two, the

         24  presentation before showing the map where the site

         25  is, I think portrays it in a manner that it's in a
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          2  golf course without any kind of impact on a

          3  community, and I would say that that is absolutely

          4  not so, directly across the street is a struggling,

          5  but thriving community that you will hear from

          6  later, that you have heard from in the past years,

          7  since the site was suggested, that will be directly

          8  impacted on it.

          9                 And quite frankly, putting that site

         10  on at the end run, so- to- speak, and then saying

         11  that there aren't objections is more than troubling.

         12    What is equally troubling is the fact that

         13  statements are made about once construction is

         14  finished that it will be restored, and the

         15  description is that this will be an underground

         16  facility, that there will be a berm that is covered

         17  with some kind of materials, when, in fact, the

         18  underground will reach over three stories high and

         19  will form a wall outside or on the perimeter of Van

         20  Cortlandt Park between the thriving community that I

         21  described and the Park.  So I just want to make it

         22  clear to my colleagues that we are not talking about

         23  something deep in the bowels of Van Cortlandt Park,

         24  and we are not talking about something that is only

         25  underground, we are talking about something that is
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          2  above ground.

          3                 Also, the description of how the area

          4  will be restored vexes me, because I think about the

          5  good people of Woodlawn that live almost adjacent to

          6  this site that are still waiting 30 years later to

          7  have restoration completed to the various central

          8  third water tunnel.  They have lived with the

          9  inconveniences and the promise of restoration, as I

         10  said, for almost three decades.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

         12  Eisland, if I may, and you can pursue your question,

         13  we have just been informed that the Parks Department

         14  is here, and I am going to put them on with DEP to

         15  answer questions like that, so, I didn't know that

         16  they were here until just now, so.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I have no

         18  objections to that, but I have a lot more things to

         19  run through before we do that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  No, fine, just

         21  for everyone's edification.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  There was

         23  mention of the comparative costs and the concern

         24  about costs for a building whether it be in

         25  Westchester or building the filtration plant in the
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          2  Bronx, particularly at Van Cortlandt, the

          3  approximate cost that is mentioned is about $750

          4  million, I believe.  I have been in government most

          5  of my adult life and I have never found any

          6  construction project a lot smaller than this ever

          7  coming in at the point that it is supposed to, and I

          8  would suggest that $750 million probably is a point

          9  where it will probably move up to close to one

         10  billion dollars.

         11                 I would also say that you would

         12  really have to compare that, and I will get into

         13  more detail about filtration alternatives, but to

         14  implement filtration alternatives, and these are

         15  stats that I have gotten from the Department as well

         16  as from other cities, would probably depending on

         17  your strategies, if you were to come up with any

         18  successful ones, I noticed that you described the

         19  one that is probably the most controversial that

         20  you're working on, which includes alum, but

         21  depending on the strategies, we're talking about

         22  anywhere as low as $20 million to, say the highest

         23  figure, which could be up to $200 million, that is a

         24  far cry from one billion dollars and the operating

         25  expenses of the plant obviously have to be taken
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          2  into consideration compared to the operating of

          3  filtration alternatives, which I think are

          4  approximately two to three million dollars a year.

          5                 And I do want to go back to talking

          6  about alum, that certainly is not something that is

          7  a slammed dunk, if you were able to get permission

          8  to try the pilot project, which I have attempted to

          9  help you get that permission, but I believe I have

         10  been told that you have other filtration

         11  alternatives that you are, in fact, studying, which

         12  we felt very heartened about and those projects and

         13  those modalities are considerably, I believe, less

         14  controversial than the one that you did mention.

         15                 I'm also concerned when we give up

         16  the ship, so- to speak, I believe that the people of

         17  Boston are quite lucky.  First of all the City in

         18  the early nineties had the good fortune of making

         19  the decision to apply for the possibilities that

         20  have now hit us all today, but I never believe that

         21  it is over until its over.  And I honestly don't

         22  know why even if the City were to lose once again,

         23  why the, pardon me, why they're not in fact willing

         24  to go back to the Feds, even if they lose, to ask

         25  for a reopener.  If in fact you are pursuing all the
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          2  different filtration alternatives, it would seem to

          3  me that you would have a progress report, you have

          4  more to say than you had to say the last time the

          5  City lost, and that even going to court and losing

          6  is better than just giving up the ship.  So I really

          7  applaud the elected officials in Boston who have

          8  pursued and have been able to buy time to continue

          9  to look at their filtration alternatives.

         10                 Also we have had discussions about

         11  building the plant in other locations other than the

         12  Bronx.  Those, I believe, were not sufficiently

         13  pursued by the Administration.  We, at one time, did

         14  have the agreements from the two town supervisors

         15  that you are familiar with that they would be more

         16  than willing to look at the sites there.  I haven't

         17  pursued that, simply because, obviously, if the

         18  Administration, and I'm told by the supervisors the

         19  Administration was not very aggressive in that

         20  pursuit, that it really seems to be derelict of the

         21  Administration not to have further pursued the sites

         22  that were studied by you in Westchester. And, again,

         23  its never over till it's over, and it might make

         24  some sense to revisit some of those as well.

         25                 There is also the description of the
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          2  plant that would be built underground that there

          3  have been similar things that have built in other

          4  places in the City, I would dispute that.  I think

          5  that while holding tanks, valves, and various other

          6  things have been built underground, those are, in

          7  fact, passive, they're not active, they're not

          8  active in the same way that the filtration plant

          9  would have to be as a regular industrial site, that

         10  people come to work to every day and that work in,

         11  and the kinds of chemicals that would be used there

         12  may not be of concern to you, but I believe the

         13  people are concerned and justifiably so.

         14                 You know when you talk about

         15  chemicals being used up in Kensico you can stand in

         16  the middle of that area and not see people living

         17  directly across the street, you can't see anything

         18  but beautiful trees and water and a bucolic setting.

         19    All you have to do is stand on top of this three

         20  and one- half story building that is going to be

         21  built above ground, not just underground at Van

         22  Cortlandt Park and see upwards of 25,000 people

         23  going to church, synagogues, going to the largest

         24  hospital complex in the Bronx, and living there in

         25  small buildings and in individual homes in a very
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          2  traditional and in a very familial way.  And I don't

          3  think it is fair to compare that kind of

          4  neighborhood setting to the Kensico area.

          5                 I know that there are a lot of people

          6  that will be raising questions.  I believe that we

          7  have an option here, I believe that you should

          8  continue to pursue, and I believe you, you have said

          9  to me that you would do a two track system, and you

         10  said that a year ago, and I have no reason to

         11  believe that you're not on a two track system.  I do

         12  have reason to believe though that the enthusiasm

         13  for the two track system is somewhat less than the

         14  siting of this plant.  You may believe that is your

         15  mandate, I would hope that this Council does not

         16  believe that that is your only mandate.  And I would

         17  ask that you continue to pursue those filtration

         18  alternatives, I would certainly ask this Council to

         19  realize that you are doing that by your own

         20  admission, you may want to talk about that even

         21  more, and there are other alternatives than just

         22  adding alum to the water, as we have spoken about,

         23  and you alluded to, but didn't go into any

         24  description on, and it would certainly behoove us

         25  both from a monetary point of view, and frankly,
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          2  from a point of view of caring about the good

          3  citizens that live directly next door to this

          4  proposal.  For this body to turn down this request

          5  at this time, continue to pursue the filtration

          6  alternative, and go back to the Federal Government.

          7                 Again, I always believe in going back

          8  to the Federal Government with the best case

          9  possible, with the best enthusiasm, and if we lose,

         10  we really haven't lost anything more than we can

         11  lose in the next days here at this Council.  And

         12  that would be my request for support from you for

         13  that position and also from this Council, and I will

         14  be making that request both today, tomorrow, and in

         15  the days to come.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  If

         18  we could, the less audience reaction that we have,

         19  the quicker we will all get out of here.

         20                 Commissioner Moss is here from the

         21  Parks Department, and you have a brief statement,

         22  and also, I'm sure there have been questions raised

         23  about what happened in the other Van Cortlandt site,

         24  and maybe you could address those, and identify

         25  yourself for the record, park name Northside, and
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          2  the Bronx Parks Commissioner is here I understand,

          3  and Beeker is here, too, I think.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:  Good

          5  morning.  My name is Allen Moss, and I am the First

          6  Deputy Commissioner of Parks.  I'm here to testify

          7  before you on behalf of Henry Stern.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Commissioner

          9  Moss, could you put the microphone a little close to

         10  you?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:  I

         12  could also turn up the volume a little bit.  About

         13  assessment of the environmental impact of the

         14  proposed water filtration plant at Mosholu Golf

         15  Course in Van Cortlandt Park.

         16                 In response to the EPA's mandate to

         17  construct a water filtration plant, Parks assessed

         18  the potential impact of constructing a filtration

         19  plant at three proposed sites in Van Cortlandt Park,

         20  Croton Woods, Shandler Recreation, and the Mosholu

         21  Golf Course.  Our review consisted of a

         22  comprehensive study of the operational, ecological,

         23  recreation and revenue generating impact on each

         24  site for the short and long run.  While the

         25  construction and operation of the proposed plan
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          2  would have serious environmental impact on each of

          3  these three sites, we have concluded that the

          4  Mosholu site would receive the least negative impact

          5  if the plant is to be constructed in the park.  We

          6  have worked closely with DEP to develop a mitigation

          7  package for the project, which will address the

          8  immediate and long- term restoration needs of the

          9  site, including lost use, reforestation and

         10  recreation.  The mitigation package includes a

         11  comprehensive forestry management and storm water,

         12  ground water plan, which is valued at about $16.5

         13  million, complete reconstruction of the Mosholu Golf

         14  Course, as well as improvements to other golf

         15  courses to accommodate increased use during

         16  construction and compensation for loss revenues to

         17  parks. The entire mitigation package for Mosholu,

         18  including a noise impact mitigation and adjacent

         19  street improvements is estimated to cost $36.4

         20  million.

         21                 Parks is satisfied that the proposed

         22  package will allow for the complete restoration of

         23  the golf course and clubhouse, and that the plan

         24  goes a long way towards addressing our primary

         25  concern, the loss of scarce woodland and
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          2  ecologically important wetlands at the proposed site

          3  and in the surrounding area.

          4                 The Environmental Impact Statement

          5  points out that a substantial number of trees will

          6  be lost in the construction of the plant, additional

          7  trees will be directly threatened and the change in

          8  soil hydrology could threaten trees under story and

          9  vegetation throughout the area.  The proposed

         10  reforestation and wetlands management plan calls for

         11  planting in Van Cortlandt Park to begin prior to the

         12  construction at the site and to continue for three

         13  years after the completion of the facility, a 10-

         14  year reforestation restoration plan.

         15                 DEP will also ensure the integrity of

         16  the wetland area through the construction of a

         17  ground water control devices, which will be in

         18  operation during the construction phase of the

         19  project and beyond.

         20                 In conclusion, we believe that the

         21  mitigation package proposed by DEP is dynamic and

         22  fair, Mosholu Golf Course is the least used

         23  recreation of its kind under our jurisdiction and we

         24  view the post construction restoration of the course

         25  as an opportunity to make a substantial improvements
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          2  in the facility. The Comprehensive Forestry

          3  Management component of the project also allows us

          4  to respond to the predicted environmental impact of

          5  the plan, and Parks and DEP will jointly monitor the

          6  project closely to ensure that we react quickly and

          7  effectively to any unforeseen impacts that may

          8  arise.  We expect that Mosholu and the surrounding

          9  areas of Van Cortlandt Park will not only recover

         10  from this project, but will benefit from the long

         11  term restoration measures that DEP will enable us to

         12  carry out.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Commissioner

         15  Moss, and either Commissioner can answer this, the

         16  marvel of the Van Cortlandt Valve Chamber Room, and

         17  I have been there a couple of times, and it is a

         18  marvel, and it is built underground and it doesn't,

         19  you can't tell it's there if you go there.  However,

         20  some have argued and to their credit, that it

         21  doesn't really look like lush park land either, and

         22  it was supposed to, what is going to be different

         23  here, and why didn't that, and why, who has been lax

         24  there in making that site look better?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Okay, while my

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            74

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  colleagues confer, let me just start, first of all,

          3  we had construction going on up until just recently.

          4    We have, in the last six months so removed the

          5  last construction trailers and the fencing around

          6  it. There is a component of the project that calls

          7  for restoration, the restoration, I understand will

          8  be going out to bid within sixty days.  So this is

          9  the end of a long- term project.

         10                 Now clearly Parks has more interest

         11  in how this ends up than we do, we interest in

         12  making sure that the valve chamber functions, but

         13  we're also interested in making sure that we're a

         14  good neighbor.  The issue of what gets restored in

         15  that area is essentially one that we have negotiated

         16  with the Parks Department, and I think they can

         17  speak to what they expect it to be when it is

         18  completed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I mean, the

         20  major construction there has been over for a long

         21  time.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is

         23  absolutely correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Like decades.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, one of the
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          2  problems is, like a home, you can put the shell of

          3  that home up in two weeks and then it take you the

          4  better part of a year to complete it.  That is

          5  obviously not a minor construction project, and we

          6  have been doing work in there.  Obviously, if we

          7  could have gotten the contractor out of there

          8  sooner, we certainly would have been pushing to do

          9  that, we have been pushing to do that.  I was

         10  uncomfortable with the fact that we still had work

         11  ongoing there, and, in fact, we had to do some

         12  shooing to get them moving.  But, again, the final

         13  restoration of the top area of the Valve Chamber

         14  location is a matter for the Parks to determine and

         15  they have negotiated with us for what should come

         16  out of there.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:  Of

         18  course there is a very substantial difference

         19  between the Parks posture on these two different

         20  projects.  This current project we have the

         21  involvement of our Natural Resource Group, and I

         22  think that makes a very, very big difference in what

         23  the outcome is going to be.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Why didn't you

         25  in the prior project?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:  I

          3  must say I don't know, that goes back, that may go

          4  back many, many years, 30 years, I was just a little

          5  fellow.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

          7  Eisland.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I never met

          9  a tree that Henry Stern didn't love, embrace,

         10  cuddle, and protect.  And I can appreciate his not

         11  being here today, I can appreciate his discomfort.

         12  From what I have read and what I have been told

         13  there are upwards of 400 trees, mature, magnificent

         14  trees that will be lost in this process.

         15  Reforesting, building them are not going to restore

         16  this area in your lifetime, my lifetime, our

         17  children's or our grandchildren's lifetimes.  I

         18  really understand his not being here, he is part of

         19  a team and appreciate the discomfort.

         20                 I'm also, as I mentioned before, very

         21  concerned, because Commissioner Miele this was

         22  before your time, before other Parks officials time

         23  that are in office now, this promise that is being

         24  made today was also made to Woodlawn.  Now probably,

         25  I guess, spurred on by having to think about
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          2  reforesting a new area, the attention being given to

          3  Woodlawn is most commendable.  I wonder if that

          4  attention would have been given if we weren't being

          5  faced the despoiling of the park area in Van

          6  Cortlandt Park.  Nobody will convince that upwards

          7  of 400 magnificent trees can be replaced in the

          8  lifetimes of us and our progeny to be.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:  I

         10  just want to say that Henry would be here today, you

         11  know Henry doesn't back away from controversy, and -

         12   -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I never said

         14  he did, but I think you will agree with me that you

         15  never met a tree that he doesn't adore.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: - -

         17  he is right now out in Seattle, he had been booked

         18  into a meeting out there, he is addressing a

         19  conference out there on Parks and Recreation, but

         20  for that, he would have been here.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  My statement

         22  was meant as no slap at Henry Stern, it was simply

         23  pointing out his caring and love, which I share, for

         24  mature trees.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:  Yes,
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          2  and I have to tell you that his concern is

          3  reflective in the very, very significant involvement

          4  of the Natural Resources Group in this project to

          5  ensure that at the outcome the forest that is there

          6  is continued on and that appropriate understory and

          7  future for that forest is assured.

          8                 The NRG is going to have two teams of

          9  five people working at the reforestation of that

         10  area and the continued care of that area over the

         11  next 10 years and beyond.  That forest and the area

         12  around there is going to be predicted, the hydrology

         13  is going to be protected, and we're not going to

         14  sustain a net loss as a result of that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Are you

         16  working on a new miracle grow that we don't know

         17  about?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:  We

         19  have discovered this music that if you - -  Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  A couple of

         21  housekeeping items, the Subcommittee on Planning,

         22  Dispositions and Concessions, if any of you are

         23  interested in that, it's meeting next door, because

         24  I understand that there are some people in the room

         25  that are supposed to be in that room, they're
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          2  meeting over there.

          3                 We are joined by Council Member

          4  Kathryn E. Freed of Manhattan, and Council Member

          5  Steve DiBrienza was here and I expect will be back

          6  from Brooklyn, question from Council Member Carrion.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman. I'm one of those people who have to be

          9  next door because I also sit on that Committee.

         10                 Commissioner Miele, good afternoon.

         11  The case, the arguments against your position are in

         12  this room and they are very capable people who are

         13  going to come up to this microphone, to your

         14  microphone there and testify to this Committee very

         15  ably and with strong technical information to the

         16  contrary, so I won't try to argue that point.

         17                 I did want to, you know in having

         18  these public hearings repeatedly, and we have been

         19  down this road before a number of times, you keep

         20  peeling off layers and coming up with new

         21  idiosyncracies and elements that I think are

         22  important to put on the table.  I certainly won't

         23  try to make the case for the Croton Watershed Clean

         24  Water Coalition, they make a good argument.  Also, I

         25  must say that the argument that the people from the
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          2  construction industry make is a very strong and

          3  compelling argument, because people need jobs, and

          4  that is very important for us to keep in mind as we

          5  go through this process, and where those jobs end

          6  up, and unfortunately, the issue has often been cast

          7  as a job or no jobs situation, and I think it's a

          8  little more complicated than that, but we must be

          9  mindful of that, especially we, people who are

         10  trying to raise families, I have four kids, I know.

         11                 But what I wanted to go to very

         12  specifically was assuming the worst case scenario

         13  where we would have to construct this filtration

         14  plant, you mentioned, that notwithstanding the fact,

         15  if we were able to build it in Westchester County,

         16  in some town is Westchester County that we would

         17  still have to build a related facility here in one

         18  of the areas in the Bronx, you said, and you're

         19  stating for the record that that is absolutely

         20  necessary.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is

         22  absolutely correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay.  And

         24  you also mentioned the added cost of $200 million if

         25  we would do it outside of the City.  I want you to
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          2  address two matters, one, exactly what that added

          3  cost is, of $200 million if we were to build it in

          4  Westchester County, why is it more expensive, and

          5  then the other piece that you didn't address was the

          6  extent and impact of the construction of this other

          7  facility, what is the size of that facility, what is

          8  the cost of that facility, and within that universe

          9  if we were to build it in Mosholu, under Mosholu

         10  Golf Course, would there still be a need for a

         11  related facility elsewhere or would it be all self-

         12  contained?  Did you follow all my questions?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, I think I

         14  did.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, thank

         16  you.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Let me go back

         18  and start out with the issue of why it would cost us

         19  more money and what it relates to.  It relates to

         20  the fact that we will have to pay real estate taxes,

         21  I indicated in my prepared remarks, and we will be

         22  paying those forever on the plant because once we

         23  locate it up there, it will be up there forever and

         24  it becomes an ongoing life cycle cost.  And when we

         25  renovate the plant, because if we once locate it, if
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          2  we need to renovate it 40 years from now, it will

          3  remain located there and we will continue to pay

          4  real taxes for it. The other additional cost is for

          5  about one mile of tunnel that would have to be built

          6  as a result of using the locations that we have

          7  looked at up at Greenburg and at the other location.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Wouldn't we

          9  have to,  I mean, we have to do ongoing maintenance

         10  in the Bronx anyway.  I mean - -

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's not ongoing

         12  maintenance, this is additional construction, we

         13  would have to build another mile of tunnel that

         14  doesn't exist now, and that we don't have to build

         15  if we build in the Mosholu Golf Course.  Okay?

         16                 With respect to the issue of, what

         17  was the other question you gave me?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  The related

         19  facility, what is it, how big is it, how much would

         20  it cost?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Okay, the

         22  related facility consists of two pieces, I will give

         23  you the two pieces and I will give you the

         24  approximate size, that has been outlined already.

         25  We expect that it would need about eight acres to be
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          2  built, instead of the 11 acres that the total

          3  facility needs.  You have heard that we would stack

          4  the facility like a wedding cake, essentially we

          5  would be piling each of these three elements one on

          6  top of the other, instead of spreading them out,

          7  that is how we got it down to 11 acres.  And the

          8  answer is that we would need eight acres of the park

          9  in any event just to put the other facilities, which

         10  is the pumps and the treated water reservoir, even

         11  if we didn't put the filter here and put the filter

         12  up in Westchester.  So I think that answered, I

         13  believe that answers the question that you gave.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Hold on,

         15  let's slow down. You're talking about, the cost,

         16  what is the cost.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The cost, just

         18  the pumps and just the treated water reservoir was

         19  between $150 and $200 million, it's approximately

         20  one- third of the cost of the total project.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  And now

         22  you're saying that if the plant were to be built in

         23  Mosholu, it would all be  - -

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: - -  self-
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          2  contained and you would have the pump?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We would only

          4  need another three acres and we would have the

          5  pumps, the treated water reservoir, and the filter

          6  all in the same location, which, obviously,

          7  minimizes operational problems.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Okay, thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         11  Council Member, before, Commissioner Moss do you

         12  have a written statement that you are going to

         13  submit to us?  No, okay.  Council Member Wooten.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  I just need a

         15  little more clarity.  In your presentation you

         16  talked about the Federal kind of stipulation that

         17  says what we must do in a time frame; am I correct?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, Ma'am.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  With all the

         20  argument that is going on as to where it is supposed

         21  to be, will we be in compliance of that regulation?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  If this Council

         23  does not approve the location, the siting, we will

         24  immediately on 31 July be out of compliance and

         25  commence paying penalties.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  What is the

          3  time frame for this project?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The time frame

          5  of the project is we would be doing the final design

          6  and the preparation of letting of contracts between

          7  now and the year 2002, we would start construction

          8  in the year 2002 and it would take approximately

          9  five years to complete, we would complete in the

         10  year 2007.

         11                 Earlier, Councilwoman Eisland talked

         12  about the idea of dual track, I have no problem

         13  with, providing we meet this criteria because we

         14  have an obligation to meet it, with continuing

         15  through the agency to look at filtration

         16  alternatives parallel. I'm doing it informally with

         17  absolutely no guarantee that the Federal Government

         18  will even look at me, if I can show a case for

         19  filtration avoidance in the future, but obviously I

         20  believe that I have an obligation right up to the

         21  day we start turning earth in the year 2002.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  So what

         23  you're saying is in order to be able to comply you

         24  must go in preliminary planning at this stage, in

         25  order to  - -
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is

          3  absolutely correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  It also

          5  talked in terms of penalties, how much money we

          6  would be if we're out of compliance that we would be

          7  required to pay?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The point is the

          9  milestones are dates in time, they are not, you

         10  know, it's not such that after one step I have six

         11  months to do the next one.  I have a due date for

         12  the first milestone, I have a due date for the

         13  second milestone. If you set the first milestone

         14  back, then I will fail to meet every single

         15  milestone in that agreement from that point on.

         16  There is no hope whatsoever of ever catching up and

         17  getting back into compliance.  So as each of those

         18  milestone date comes along there will be an

         19  additional penalty imposed right through the whole

         20  process.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  So I'm

         22  assuming we are on the clock.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We're absolutely

         24  on the clock and that is one of the things that I

         25  have been trying to say here, I think, I hope I have
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          2  put it across clearly.  We must move forward at this

          3  point in time or pay extreme financial penalties.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  To just amplify

          6  something you said until we turn earth, now in your

          7  testimony you noted that around 1911 there was a

          8  talk of a plant and it was put out to bid in 1913

          9  and it was stopped.  And in the eighties you talked

         10  about moving forward with a plant at Jerome Park and

         11  that was stopped. If something happened,

         12  technologically, legislatively to allow us not to

         13  have to filter the water and you already had turned

         14  earth, what would happen then?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  If in point of

         16  fact, we had reached a point where it made economic

         17  sense for us to stop construction, then I would

         18  obviously recommend to the Mayor, presuming I was

         19  here at that point in time, that we stop

         20  construction and minimize our costs.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Based on your

         22  timeline, none of us are going to be here.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Okay, that is

         24  possible.  But the other thing is that if we had

         25  moved forward.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Except Henry

          3  Stern, he will be here forever.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Henry will be

          5  here forever.  If we had moved forward to the point

          6  where it is less costly to continue construction

          7  than it is to stop, then obviously we would move

          8  back.  It's important to point out, by the way, that

          9  we're continuing to move forward in the Catskill and

         10  Delaware systems on the placement and construction

         11  of a filter for that even though no one believes

         12  we're going to have to do that because of the

         13  agreement that we have.  The Federal Government

         14  insists that we do that.

         15                 We went back to the FEDS originally

         16  and said, look, this is what you gave us in

         17  Catskill/Delaware, why not give us the same thing in

         18  Croton and, at least, acknowledge the fact that

         19  maybe we can find filtration alternatives?  We have

         20  not been successful.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

         22  Freed.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Thank you.

         24  There is one question I have to ask, have we ever

         25  been in compliance with the Clean Air Standard?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  From the time

          3  the Clean Air Standard was put into place, the City

          4  of New York has violated it to one degree or

          5  another.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  And the answer

          8  is, we have not, for a lot reasons, but one of the

          9  major ones, and I think it is important to hear is

         10  that to a large extent a lot of our pollution

         11  problems blow in from the west, from Indiana, Ohio,

         12  Illinois, etc., windborne, and they have an impact

         13  not only on our air, but they also have an impact on

         14  our water.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  All right, but

         16  I mean, particularly Manhattan, we have always been,

         17  we're a non- attainment area, right?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Obviously, my

         20  question is, if we're violating that and we continue

         21  to violate that, and the Federal Government

         22  continues to rollover and never gives us, and never

         23  really steps in and does anything, even though a lot

         24  of us rather wish that they would, why are they

         25  going to step in and do something in this case?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, because

          3  they have said they will, number one.  Number two,

          4  they already have, we have already paid $6 million

          5  in penalties because we failed to meet the last

          6  requirement that was established.  They basically

          7  have given us an absolute deadline to move ahead.

          8  And, if I may, I think it is appropriate to quote

          9  from today's New York Times, it says, "Mary Mears, a

         10  spokeswoman for the Environmental Protection Agency,

         11  said that the agency was adamant that the City

         12  filter its water.  That is absolutely not on the

         13  table," she said, "of avoiding filtration. EPA's

         14  position is that Safe Drinking Water Act requires

         15  the City to build a filtration plant for Croton."

         16  And they have flat out told us that we must continue

         17  to move forward with that.  Now, obviously, they

         18  originally expected us to complete the plan in 1993

         19  and turn it on, we didn't come anywhere close to

         20  that.

         21                 Part of our problem with EPA is that

         22  we have absolutely no credibility with them, because

         23  historically we have said, hell, we can go back to

         24  them and get another five years. They have reached

         25  point where, and there are a lot of people in this
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          2  room today, who believe that we shouldn't have

          3  waited that time, and we should have, in fact, have

          4  done this back in 1993, that we were remiss in not

          5  doing that.

          6                 And, frankly, at this point in time,

          7  it is my responsibility to advise you that I believe

          8  this is a drop dead issue.  We need to get the ULURP

          9  completed and over, and then we will go forward with

         10  the other work that doesn't relate to construction

         11  until the year 2002, and I commit to you that I will

         12  continue to look at filtration alternatives with the

         13  major caveat that the Federal Government has said

         14  fine you can throw them on the table, we may throw

         15  them right out the window, or, you know, we might

         16  per chance look at them and buy onto it, but I

         17  cannot do that now, I do not have a believability, I

         18  cannot tell you today that I have a viable

         19  alternative to filtration as we speak today.  And

         20  that being so, the Federal Government is absolutely

         21  not going to give us another second.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay, have

         23  they moved against other municipalities?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  If you read the

         25  papers about Boston, even though Boston has a dual
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          2  track, they have been in court with Boston on a

          3  continual basis on exactly the same issue.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  But have they

          5  actually assessed penalties against them?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, they have

          7  assessed penalties against Boston, but, I think,

          8  Boston has a better relationship with them, because

          9  they do have the filtration avoidance alternative

         10  that we don't have, they have the dual track that we

         11  could not get and decided not to ask for in 1991.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  All right, the

         13  six million  -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:   But we're

         15  familiar with the song too, "I Love That Dirty

         16  Water, Boston Is My Home."

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Right.  Gives

         18  the Dead Sea a good title.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The Feds don't

         20  like to hear that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Yes, well, of

         22  course, with Boston, did their water consistently

         23  meet Federal Standards?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, that is why,

         25  in fact, the Federal Government is asking them to
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          2  filter, and Boston is saying, we think we have a

          3  viable alternative, and we want to do the same thing

          4  that New York City did in the Catskill and Delaware

          5  systems, because we think we can pull it off.  The

          6  Feds are saying to them, we don't think you can pull

          7  it off and are getting more and more antsy about

          8  pushing them to move forward with something that

          9  they can consent to.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  That sounds a

         11  little unfair because as I understand it, our Croton

         12  system has consistently met the Federal Standard.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is true,

         14  but you're making the assumption that this process

         15  is fair.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Well, no I'm

         17  not, no, I don't think it's fair either.

         18                 The $6 million that we have paid, how

         19  did that work, did we just give them $6 million, did

         20  they give us something back for it?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, we gave them

         22  the million dollars flat out and waived it good bye

         23  with tears in our eyes, and $5 million of it we

         24  agreed to do environmental benefit projects where,

         25  at least, the City and the water supply system will
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          2  get some benefits out of it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay, so it

          4  wasn't, I mean, it cost us a million, it didn't

          5  really cost us six million.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It cost us a

          7  million and it reprioritized some of the work that

          8  we might not have done to higher priority because

          9  they insisted we do that, whereas we might have

         10  wanted to put out money into some other projects and

         11  we were unable to do so because of this.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  How much do we

         13  think, if we do this, and complete filtration plant

         14  now, how much do we think it is actually going to

         15  cost and how long do we think it will run?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The present day

         17  costs are estimated to be, I think, $680 million,

         18  but since we're not going to start work until 2002,

         19  when the wiz guys with the computers do their thing,

         20  the actual cost in dollars per year, when you add up

         21  the five years of construction and the work between

         22  now and then on engineering and what have you, it's

         23  pretty close to $925 million, $950 million.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Who, this is

         25  what, Matt Caffinetti has been chosen for this?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well we have a

          3  number of consultants, Matt Caffinetti is among

          4  them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay, did they

          6  do the Croton Gatehouse, was that them, or who did

          7  that?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Hayeson and Soya

          9  did that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay, because

         11  what I was concerned about is, I seem to recall from

         12  EP was that there were immense amounts of over runs

         13  in that.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, again, and

         15  that question came up before I think from the

         16  Chairman who, I'm sorry, from Councilwoman Eisland,

         17  who indicated that these projects always run over.

         18  That is not necessarily so, we, normally, are very

         19  comfortable with them.  What tends to happen and

         20  which may happen in this case is, frankly, as we

         21  start construction, if we do start construction, we

         22  may find new technology that will give us a better

         23  filter and we will probably make some alterations in

         24  the design as it goes forward, that is kind of like

         25  changing the design of a car as it is being put
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          2  together.  It has additional costs, but if you end

          3  up with a better project and a better product, that

          4  is something we look at.  In most cases, our

          5  projects, because they take so long to build,

          6  inevitably have changes in technology built into

          7  them as they go along.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  And how much

          9  will the operation of this plant cost?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Somewhere in the

         11  range of $100 million to $300 million a year.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay, $100 to

         13  $300 million?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.  I'm sorry,

         15  my apologies, $8 to $10 million a year, just

         16  operational costs $8 to $10 million a year.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay.  Since

         18  we have started this, have we actually been buying

         19  any more land around the Croton water system?  I

         20  mean, what are we doing about anti- sprawl?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  What we have

         22  been doing, under the MOA that gave us filtration

         23  avoidance in the Catskill/Delaware system, we have

         24  been buying land both east of the Hudson and west of

         25  the Hudson, and we have bought some very, very
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          2  interesting and some very, very environmentally

          3  sensitive land east of the Hudson, which is, you

          4  know, essentially, partially in the

          5  Catskill/Delaware segment that is east of the Hudson

          6  and partially in the Croton system.  We are also

          7  committed to upgrade every single waste water

          8  treatment plant, no matter which of our watersheds

          9  it's in, which means that all of the waste water

         10  treatment plants whether privately or publicly owned

         11  in the Croton system will be upgraded to tertiary

         12  treatment, which is probably 50 percent better than

         13  it has been up until now.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Have we ever

         15  done anything about upgrading any of those streams

         16  that feed into this system? I mean, I have got to

         17  tell you that I'm still galled by the fact that the

         18  only, what, double or triple way system in the

         19  entire, stream in the entire state is because it

         20  feeds into Connecticut's water system.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Again, part of

         22  what we have to deal with is the way our system is

         23  built, which is essentially an open system.  The

         24  number of people that we have living in the system

         25  doesn't make it very easy to isolate from people and
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          2  from people's toys, as cars, boats, etc.  So it is

          3  very difficult for us with the system that we have

          4  particularly in the Croton side to be able to

          5  unilaterally make changes in modifications that

          6  don't impact people that have a right to live and

          7  work and play, you know, in the watershed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  How much of

          9  Westchester actually gets their water out of the

         10  Croton system?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  One hundred

         12  percent of it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  How much?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, I'm sorry,

         15  no, no, they get their water out of the

         16  Delaware/Catskill systems, they don't get it out the

         17  Croton.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  They get no

         19  water out of the Croton system?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We have a couple

         21  of minor connections to it, but it's in the

         22  neighborhood of three million gallons a day, which

         23  is peanuts.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay, because

         25  it would seem to me that just like we're worried
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          2  about what is going on in the Delaware/Catskill

          3  system, it would be to their advantage for us to

          4  have more of the anti- sprawl, a little development,

          5  and I know it is already developed, but it seems to

          6  me that it would make sense and that we would get a

          7  lot of support from them, and my understanding is

          8  that there are a number of upstate groups that are

          9  very much in favor of some caps on development and

         10  to make sure that it clear.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, there are

         12  people and, you know, that is a decision, frankly,

         13  to be made by those folks up there.  Our only

         14  requirement for controls on development are

         15  environmental ones.  If you don't impact our water

         16  negatively, we shouldn't have any right to tell the

         17  folks in Westchester and Putnam or any place else

         18  what to do, and, consequently, we're not looking for

         19  that kind of authority and we're not looking for

         20  that kind of regulation.  But on the other hand,

         21  where they do impact our water, we have very, very

         22  much want to have that, and we think that with the

         23  MOA we have got those kinds of controls.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Have we

         25  actually been moving on those?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Oh, absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay.  To get

          4  back to the question about the cost of this, are we

          5  going to be doing this through bonding authority?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, through the

          7  New York City Water Authority, right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Right, how

          9  much is this actually going to cost us as far as,

         10  how much is it, what is the impact going to be on

         11  the City taxpayers?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  There will be no

         13  impact on the City taxpayers.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Well, all

         15  right, the water ratepayers.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The City

         17  ratepayers, obviously, this is paid for by water and

         18  sewer.  Starting in 2010, when we figure everything

         19  will be completed and over and done, is about a $22

         20  a year cost on the average one- family dwelling, as

         21  a cost of this, as a result of this.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  But aren't the

         23  water rates, they're continuing to go up any way,

         24  because we already have bonded out a lot.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The water rates
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          2  continue to go up because we have an enormous

          3  construction project program that this only a part

          4  of.  I mean we spend about $1.5 billion to $1.6

          5  billion a year in capital construction alone.  And

          6  we intend to do that because we have obligations

          7  with the Federal Government to do that, probably

          8  over the next 10 years that are programmed already.

          9                 Now if you look at the cost of this

         10  project numbered in the $600 to $700 millions and

         11  then take a look at $1.6 billion for 10 years, that

         12  is $16 billion, it's pretty obvious this is a small

         13  minor part of what we have an obligation to do to

         14  protect the water that is protecting the harbors

         15  around the City of New York. So the answer is, this

         16  is a minor impact on it.

         17                 The 4 percent increases that we have

         18  had, essentially, are related to, number one, paying

         19  for the bonds for the additional capital

         20  construction we do on every year that has to be

         21  amortized, plus covering the cost of living

         22  adjustments, which obviously have to be amortized.

         23  So actually the capital construction program

         24  probably drives around 2 percent of the 4 percent

         25  increase we have been able to maintain over the last
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          2  three or four years, and we expect that we will be

          3  able to continue to maintain that same, around four

          4  percent, no increases in the future.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay, because

          6  I thought the water board rates are going to be up

          7  like 30 percent or something by 2007, or something

          8  like.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Of course they

         10  will, if you look at 4 percent a year times seven

         11  years, it's 28 percent.  But I would presume that

         12  everyone's salary and everything else is going to go

         13  up on that same general basis, normally it's not

         14  just water that goes up in cost, and if you take an

         15  end point 100 years from now, it will probably be

         16  500 times of this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, folks, we

         18  have a lot of witnesses, and while I understand the

         19  cost, direct questions about the cost are relevant,

         20  questions about water bills right now are just going

         21  to make the crowd testy here.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  All right.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  All good water

         24  bills.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Just one or
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          2  two last questions, how much actual land have we

          3  bought in the Croton system over the last two years?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Bill

          5  Stasiuk, Deputy Commissioner for Water Supply

          6  Quality and Protection.  There are two elements to

          7  the land acquisition - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Commissioner,

          9  could you identify yourself, please, for the record?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  He just did.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  He did.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Oh, okay.

         13  Sorry, Counsel, did not hear you.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: Yes,

         15  there are two elements to the land acquisition

         16  program, one, is the Croton, which the City agreed

         17  to spend $10 million in land acquisition, the State

         18  agreed to spend $7.5 million, and there is an

         19  additional 1.5 million as part of the supplemental

         20  and environmental programs from the Croton

         21  settlement, so there is $19 million for Croton

         22  lands, and those are Croton lands that are outside

         23  of Westbranch and Boyds Corners, which are really

         24  considered part of Cat/Del, even though

         25  hydrologically they're part of the Croton system.
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          2                 So we have bought a lot of land in

          3  the Westbranch because of its sensitivity to

          4  Cat/Del.  We have only bought a few hundred acres in

          5  Croton, we have been negotiating with the State over

          6  parcels that we have that are very close to New

          7  Croton Reservoir, and we should be closing on them

          8  shortly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  So the answer,

         10  so we bought a few acres, or we haven't closed on?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We're committed,

         12  as you have heard, to spend about $19 million in the

         13  Croton system.  We will spend that, what we're

         14  looking for is the most - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Over what time

         16  period?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, actually

         18  over the period of the MOA, which is 10 years, but

         19  we have already started the purchase program, and

         20  that we have a schedule on the Cat/Del side, we

         21  don't have a schedule on the Croton side.  But that

         22  $19 million obviously will buy much less land in the

         23  Croton system than it would west of the Hudson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay, all

         25  right, thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

          3  DiBrienza.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We're joined, by

          6  the way, by our distinguished Environmental

          7  Protection Chair, Council Member Michels.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman. Commissioner, if you had a blank slate

         10  and a pen or, you know, a crayon, whatever, and a

         11  pile of $600 million or more, could you come up with

         12  projects exclusive of this that you could spend it

         13  on to improve the water system?  For example, I have

         14  a water main breaks in my district, around my

         15  district, and all over the City, I think, the system

         16  needs to be rebuilt much faster and in a much more

         17  aggressive pace.  I think we have some network

         18  delivery problems that relate to, and it may not be

         19  you, but the fire hydrant system, I think there are

         20  some issues, could you spend the money if you had a

         21  blank page and we handed you $680 million?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The answer is

         23  absolutely yes, there are obviously priorities that

         24  we have, and we prioritized things and spend the

         25  money as we have it available.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  I'm not,

          3  and by the way, I'm not arguing the fact that you do

          4  a good job and prioritized, and I'm not arguing the

          5  fact, it is just that often when a controversial

          6  project arises and people of the Council listen to

          7  communities, because that in part is our job, it is

          8  often portrayed as a group of members who do not

          9  want to see people work, that is often the sort of

         10  counter- veiling argument, and nothing could be

         11  further from the truth because if I can hand you the

         12  $680 million and if you couldn't make a list of all

         13  the projects that could put all these men and women

         14  to work, I would make up a list, that doesn't mean,

         15  however, that doesn't mean however, because of the

         16  overall failures, you know, neglect on maintenance,

         17  neglect on bridges, roads, highways, infrastructure,

         18  that we then have to judge a particular project with

         19  blinders on because of all of these men and women

         20  out here deserve to work and they certainly do.  So

         21  I need to establish that, and you didn't do it, but

         22  others around you, around this Administration, in

         23  particular, tend to raise that issue.

         24                 It's like a skyscraper being built on

         25  the edge of the water.  When you argue against a
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          2  skyscraper being built, people tell you, you don't

          3  want construction folks to work, and if you argue

          4  instead that brief, low- rise building should be

          5  built in the same place instead of one tall one, you

          6  actually ultimately put the same number of people to

          7  work, it's just a view of the world, okay, that is

          8  one.

          9                 Number two, Parks Commissioner, how

         10  could you possibly, and I know that this

         11  Commissioner, your Commissioner will say virtually

         12  anything because he is in support of this Mayor, but

         13  how can you possibly, how can you possibly present

         14  this project as not being alienation of parkland?

         15  You will tear up the park and the golf course for

         16  virtually 10 years and turn it in part into an

         17  industrial complex.  Now while it may at some point

         18  in the future return to park use, if they can jump

         19  over the mound, the berm or the wall, as my

         20  colleague said, I believe the law requires you to

         21  seek State approval even for the project, you know,

         22  as it is stated.

         23                 What is your opinion and why would

         24  have you not done that, if you believe you don't

         25  have to, why?  No, it's the Parks Department, I mean
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          2  this is a Parks question, well somebody has to

          3  preserve and protect the parks, theoretically the

          4  Parks Department has do that.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:  It seems

          6  to be a legal issue and the Corporation Counsel has

          7  advised us that this is not an alienation of park

          8  property, it's a temporary use, it's being returned

          9  to the park as park and recreational land.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Well, let

         11   - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You should also

         13  be advised Council Member DiBrienza, that a group of

         14  Assembly people are pursuing that avenue and at some

         15  point they may even file suit, so.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Right,

         17  it's mine, and that is why I bring it up, it's my

         18  understanding, I have reviewed some of the work of

         19  some of the Assembly and Senators, including among

         20  others, Senator Schneiderman, who has indicated in

         21  some of his written comments that the courts have

         22  consistently held that parkland is subject to a

         23  public trust, it cannot be used for unrelated

         24  purposes, even such as a filtration facility, even

         25  if ultimately the land continues to be parkland at
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          2  some point in the future.  I think you have an

          3  obligation, not this Commissioner, who has an

          4  obligation to protect our water and rebuild the

          5  system, but your Commissioner has an obligation not

          6  to go along, but to stand up for parks, I mean, that

          7  is what he appears to do when it suits him.

          8                 Finally, Commissioner Miele, let me

          9  just see, I have not concluded on one point, I have

         10  made some conclusions in my mind about whether the

         11  government listens to people or not, and what we do

         12  with parks.  But I'm really interested in your

         13  opinion on this sort of state of affairs being such

         14  that a filtration avoidance or other alternatives in

         15  that area, do you believe, have to be ruled out

         16  because of technology or have to be ruled out

         17  because of the hostility of the Feds at the moment,

         18  I'm really, I need to try to be clear on that?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, to make it

         20  absolutely simple, if the Feds asked me today do you

         21  I have a viable alternative to filtration, the

         22  answer is no.  My science has not, and I have a

         23  great science spending a lot of money on trying to

         24  reach that conclusion.  You heard earlier that we

         25  were talking about an alum pilot project, that alum
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          2  pilot project needs to be accomplished before I

          3  would even have a fighting chance to be able say

          4  that we think we can make a case for filtration

          5  alternatives. That has not been started, and

          6  frankly, we're running out of time, and in addition

          7  to that, the cost of doing a project like that are

          8  going to be considerably less than the amount of

          9  penalties that we are going to pay, if we fail to

         10  meet this deadline.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Right,

         12  well, let me close, thank you, Mr. Chairman, let me

         13  close with two comments. I'm greatly worried that if

         14  we move ahead with a ULURP approval that we never

         15  give a fair shake, human nature takes over at some

         16  point, and we never actually see a viable

         17  alternative, it stops something that is

         18  inextricably, you know, kind of moving ahead, that

         19  is the first worry.

         20                 The second worry is given this

         21  Administration's history of being aggressive in

         22  litigation, in being resistent to anyone telling

         23  them what to do whether it's the Council, whether

         24  it's the State Legislature, whether it's the Federal

         25  Government, the Supreme Court or the Federal Court
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          2  system, it seems to me that there may be room to be

          3  more aggressive on behalf of the citizens, local

          4  citizens who are affected, and if it takes a little

          5  longer to fight that fight with the Federal

          6  Government.

          7                 Now I don't know that if it is a

          8  pointless fight, it's worth it, but I'm looking

          9  forward to reading the rest of the testimony and

         10  submissions by the witnesses, because I think it is

         11  a viable fight.

         12                 Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         14  Thank you, Commissioners.  We're going to hear now

         15  from, yes, wait, wait, Council Member Michels has

         16  rethought his position and will ask a question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  We have gone

         18  over this in my Committee many times with you, and

         19  the point we find ourselves, as I understand it, is

         20  that since we have never applied for waiver of the

         21  filtration, we are under court order at this

         22  particular time, and so that the only hope, if there

         23  is to be filtration of water it lies with the

         24  Congress.  Isn't that the case?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, - -

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            112

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Legally,

          3  where do we stand as far as filtration avoidance?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  There is no

          5  legal way for us to seek filtration avoidance at

          6  this point in time.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  In the

          8  courts.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, in the

         10  courts, the courts I don't know that there is any

         11  discretion, I'm not aware of any discretion.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Right,

         13  because the point is- -

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The law says

         15  that if you want filtration avoidance, you have to

         16  apply for it in 1991.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Right.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Time has, you

         19  know, ended that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But however,

         21  however - -

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  If the Congress

         23  in its infinite wisdom turned around and that was

         24  suggested, I think, three years ago when I started

         25  this job, that there was no problem they would get
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          2  Congress to pass the bill that says we get a new

          3  shot at filtration avoidance, that would be fine,

          4  because then it would be in conformance with the

          5  law, not in violation with it.  That has not

          6  happened in the three years that we have been

          7  waiting.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  My point has

          9  been that legally we have gone every which way we

         10  can for filtration avoidance.  So the only remedy

         11  are the lawmakers, to change the law.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, again, the

         13  other option is, if we can, in fact, come up with a

         14  viable, scientific alternative to filtration, and if

         15  EPA is willing to look at it objectively and accept

         16  it, they might be willing to reverse themselves,

         17  that they can do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Are there

         19  other methodologies being considered that are out

         20  there?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, again, we

         22  have looked at a number of methodologies, the one

         23  that we discussed with you and have been talking

         24  about again here today was the idea of trying to get

         25  the use of alum in the reservoirs, and we have told
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          2  you and your Committee, before this, that if we

          3  don't get the right to do that pilot project and I

          4  can't get the results from it that would give me

          5  some credible ability to go to the EPA and say I

          6  have got a methodology, we think we ought to get an

          7  opportunity to try, their answer is, than there is

          8  no other alternative, you proceed with filtration.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Some time

         10  ago I remember reading about the use of certain

         11  membranes for microfiltration.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is in

         13  filters.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  That is in

         15  filters, that would require a filtration plant.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is another

         17  filter technology, but the answer is, that there are

         18  all kinds of filtered technologies and we will be

         19  looking at those and attempting to make

         20  modifications to the system as science gets us

         21  closer and closer to what we think is a better

         22  product.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  One other

         24  thing is true, isn't it, that no matter whether we

         25  build this plant or not, we're still going to have
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          2  to spend the money to do what has to be done even in

          3  the watershed area to make sure that the watershed

          4  is protected, whether it be buying lands, or buying

          5  environment easements.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is exactly

          7  correct and we have committed to ourselves under the

          8  MOA.  I mean, keep in mind, Council Member DiBrienza

          9  said earlier, wouldn't I have other jobs to spend

         10  the money on?  The answer is absolutely yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Of course.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I would rather,

         13  much rather spend the money, and I don't think that

         14  the labor people that are here care whether they

         15  work on a job in the Bronx, or whether they work on

         16  a job in Brooklyn, or they work on a job in

         17  Canarsie, it doesn't make any difference, the answer

         18  is they would like to go to work, and that, I

         19  understand that.

         20                 I certainly have the money and I

         21  certainly use my priorities as what is the most

         22  important thing to do.  At this point in time, the

         23  Federal Government is telling me, get off your dead

         24  rear end and approve this project, and I have an

         25  obligation to do that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The other

          3  alternatives --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Please, hold the

          5  audience reaction down?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The other

          7  alternative which we once considered and I would

          8  like your comments on right now, is not to use the

          9  Croton water, which is 10 percent of our water

         10  supply.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.  Now, I'm a

         12  very practical person and I told you when I came

         13  into this job one of the first things that I wanted

         14  to look at, and I'm going to reiterate this again

         15  for the people who are not aware of it.  The City

         16  has reduced its consumption of water somewhere in

         17  the neighborhood of 25 to 30 percent in the last six

         18  or seven years.  We have already admitted here that

         19  the Croton water is only 10 percent of the water

         20  that we use.  The first question I asked when I got

         21  here was, why the hell do we need the Croton system

         22  as part of the reservoirs at all?  If we can avoid

         23  and cut down our consumption, we should be able to

         24  abandon that, let the folks in Westchester and in

         25  Putnam use it for a recreation and what have you and
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          2  we save a ton of money, and are no worse off.  But

          3  what I did was, because I'm a very prudent

          4  individual, I had a study done to determine what the

          5  impact of that might be and whether it's a good

          6  thing to do or a bad thing to do. The results of

          7  that took about nine months to come up with, and

          8  basically, what it said to me was, yes, you're

          9  absolutely right the Croton system water is only 10

         10  percent of your water in normal times, but it is as

         11  much as 30 percent of our water in drought times,

         12  and I would be foolish if I gave away a resource

         13  that the City of New York had for $900 million in

         14  future money, because I wanted to look like a hero

         15  to the folks in the City by saving money.

         16                 The answer is, we need that water, we

         17  need it at a point in time when we might have a

         18  drought, and what we should is to make sure that we

         19  do have it available for us when we need.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I don't know

         21  if it has been gone over, but one of the other

         22  points that was made, that sometime in the past when

         23  they tested the water that we had a problem with the

         24  water because of the birds and the Hillsdale plant.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That was in the
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          2  Hillview Reservoir.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Hillview,

          4  I'm sorry.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Which is in the

          6  Cat/Del system, not in the Croton system, but it was

          7  basically that kind of thinking and that kind of

          8  problem that got the Federal Government to looking

          9  at the Croton system and saying the quality of the

         10  water in the Croton system is basically degrading.

         11  We don't think it's degrading, we think that it is

         12  good.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And since

         14  that test was done the water has improved; hasn't

         15  it?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's not that

         17  the water has improved, we have managed to get the

         18  geese out of the reservoir, and with the geese out

         19  of the reservoir we have not had E coli like it in

         20  the Hillview Reservoir.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Thank you,

         22  Commissioner.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         24  Commissioner, you would be helpful to the panel, if

         25  you would leave one of your staff people here, and
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          2  if we have follow- up questions we may address them,

          3  even though we know they wanted desperate to get

          4  back to the 25th Council District where you all have

          5  your offices, thank you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I'm going to

          8  call Deputy Borough President Eaddy of the Bronx as

          9  the next witness.  Please, identify yourself for the

         10  record, we're going to go on the clock now, well,

         11  I'm sorry, we will go on the clock when we get to

         12  the public part, but please start?

         13                 DEPUTY BOROUGH PRESIDENT EADDY:

         14  Thank you.  Good morning, Chairman Sabini.  On

         15  behalf of Borough President Fernando Ferrer, I am

         16  Deputy Borough President Richard Eaddy, and to my

         17  right is Vahac Conjack (phonetic), and with our

         18  Planning and Developing Unit.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  comment on the proposed siting of Croton Water

         21  Filtration Plant at the Mosholu Golf Course in Van

         22  Cortlandt Park.  Your decision on this project is

         23  extremely important, not only to the people of the

         24  Bronx, but also to the environmental groups and

         25  individuals active and protecting the watershed and
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          2  the quality of the City's water supply.

          3                 I have called up this action to the

          4  City Council under the "Triple No" procedure, which

          5  is unprecedented in my administration.  This is not

          6  a NIMBY issue.  The issue here is the future of the

          7  watershed and New York City's water supply.

          8                 Let me first state that we are

          9  dismayed and disheartened at the New York City's

         10  Planning Commission's approval of this project.  The

         11  Commission's majority decision blatantly disregarded

         12  the strong and unanimous voice of the affected

         13  communities, Bronx elected officials and

         14  environmental groups calling for the rejection of

         15  this ill conceived and costly project.

         16                 Let me further state that we expect a

         17  fair hearing from the City Council.  We ask that you

         18  seriously consider the context and history of this

         19  project as well as alternatives to filtration.  In

         20  deciding on this project, you must consider issues

         21  that go beyond facility siting and involve citywide

         22  and regional concerns.  Furthermore, you must not

         23  lose sight of the fact that development pressures in

         24  the watershed remain great and many critical

         25  decisions on the watershed are driven by powerful
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          2  real estate interests with little concern for the

          3  environment.  Even without filtration, the DEP and

          4  the upstate communities have done far too little for

          5  watershed protection.  If Croton water is filtered,

          6  we can be certain that conservation will take a

          7  backseat to development interests, and, the

          8  degradation of the watershed will continue unabated.

          9                 While the 1997 Watershed Agreement

         10  was a major achievement in protecting the Cat/Del

         11  system, it left the Croton watershed without

         12  sufficient protection and only $17.5 million in City

         13  and State funds for land acquisition.  This is far

         14  too inadequate to protect water quality.

         15                 Located within the Croton watershed

         16  are also the West Branch and Kensico Reservoirs,

         17  which hold and convey the Cat/Del water supply, 90

         18  percent of the City's drinking water. These

         19  reservoirs themselves are at serious risks due to

         20  pollution from unplanned development and road

         21  construction, which continue, despite the Watershed

         22  Agreement.  Surely, you are aware of an ongoing FBI

         23  investigation of the DEP's handling and apparent

         24  coverup of spills and leaks of hazardous material in

         25  Kensico.  This threatens the Filtration Avoidance
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          2  Determination for the Cat/Del system, valid until

          3  year 2002, and, by default, raises the specter of a

          4  filtration plant for that system as well, at a cost

          5  which could exceed $8 billion.  In fact, the DEP has

          6  already selected a site in Westchester County, and

          7  is currently designing this project, which if

          8  constructed, would be the largest filtration plant

          9  in the world.

         10                 In a recent report, the

         11  environmentalist, Robert Kennedy, Jr., has

         12  documented the agency's systematic efforts the

         13  weaken policing and enforcement which has left the

         14  vast watershed area and the water supply system

         15  unprotected and vulnerable.

         16                 Instead of tightening regulations for

         17  discharge of pollutants, in 1998, the DEP was quick

         18  to loosen rules controlling construction of septic

         19  tanks on sloping land around the reservoirs,

         20  prompting a law suit by environmental groups.

         21                 Furthermore, as you are aware, this

         22  February, Commissioner Miele, in a highly unusual

         23  move, withdrew comments submitted by his own Deputy

         24  Commissioner which supported stricter rules proposed

         25  by the Army Corps of Engineers for development on
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          2  small wetlands nationwide.  The proposed rules are

          3  strongly supported by the State DEC as well as

          4  advocates for watershed protection.  The DEP's

          5  actions may cause great harm to the City's capacity

          6  to protect the quality of its drinking water and

          7  would benefit upstate real estate interests to the

          8  detriment of the watershed and the City's

          9  ratepayers.

         10                 Croton still supplies high quality

         11  water that meets all primary water quality

         12  standards.  With serious watershed protection

         13  measures and the implementation of the DEP's Optimal

         14  Non- Filtration Plan, this system will continue to

         15  provide excellent water, meeting all standards.

         16                 Filtration avoidance is not just a

         17  well- intentioned concept, but a viable alternative

         18  which will cost a fraction of the filtration option.

         19    According to the DEP, the Non- Filtration Plan

         20  could cost between $20 and $200 million.  By

         21  contrast, the filtration option will cost $754

         22  million to be underwritten by every household and

         23  business in the City.

         24                 I recognize that there are regulatory

         25  and practical hurdles for achieving filtration
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          2  avoidance for Croton.  None are insurmountable,

          3  however, it would be a breach of public trust to

          4  move ahead with filtration, when there is a viable

          5  and much less expensive alternative which will not

          6  only protect public health but also preserve fast

          7  disappearing regional open space resources.

          8                 The Draft EIS has concluded that the

          9  filtration plant will have no significant impacts on

         10  the quality of the environment.  I disagree

         11  strongly.

         12                 This is one of the largest facilities

         13  ever proposed in the City and certainly in the Bronx

         14  and in a public park.  The extent and magnitude of

         15  the blasting, excavation and construction, expected

         16  to take about half, but, at least, a full decade, is

         17  staggering by any standard.  There can be no doubt

         18  that construction impacts will be enormous.  Instead

         19  of enjoying the peace and the beauty that the park

         20  offers, the community would have to suffer through

         21  rock blasting and rumbling of trucks through their

         22  neighborhoods.

         23                 More appalling is the fact that the

         24  DEP rejected commercially zoned properties in the

         25  towns of Greenburg and Mount Pleasant in
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          2  Westchester.  The DEP, refused to even engage in

          3  earnest negotiations with these towns which

          4  expressed serious interest in siting the facility in

          5  their respective jurisdictions.

          6                 Finally, according to the DEP, this

          7  project will result in a rate increase of $22 per

          8  year per household.  However, the agency omits that

          9  water and sewer rates, currently set at 159 percent

         10  of water rates, have been rising steeply and

         11  steadily.  In fact, the combined water and sewer

         12  rates have more than doubled in the past decade.

         13  This tax on the ratepayers is projected to continue

         14  to increase and may have unforseen consequences for

         15  the City, especially communities with marginal

         16  housing stocks.

         17                 In closing, I believe, I speak for

         18  Bronx communities, elected officials, and all the

         19  groups and individuals fighting to protect the

         20  watershed, in asking you to disapprove this

         21  application.  The City Planning Commission, with its

         22  unconditional approval, in effect, sanctioned the

         23  DEP's malfeasance, which has put the City on a

         24  filtration course.  Only your disapproval will force

         25  DEPendent to live up to its name and truly protect
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          2  our environment and the safety of our water supply.

          3                 Construction of the filtration plant

          4  will send a clear message that watershed protection

          5  is not a priority and accelerate the degradation of

          6  the water quality at its source. Filtration

          7  avoidance, on the other hand, will protect the

          8  watershed and save our communities.  It is the only

          9  responsible course of action.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Did

         12  you have any testimony you wanted to offer?  That is

         13  it?

         14                 DEPUTY BOROUGH PRESIDENT EADDY:  That

         15  is it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

         17                 DEPUTY BOROUGH PRESIDENT EADDY:

         18  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Joseph O'Brien

         20  from Congressman Engle, representing Congressman

         21  Elliot Engle.

         22                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Here.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Step forward.

         24  If you have cross conversations in the back, take

         25  them outside, please, so we can conduct this hearing
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          2  with assemblance of order?  Thank you.

          3                 Mr. O'Brien.

          4                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Yes, my name is Joseph

          5  O'Brien.  I'm here representing Congressman Elliot

          6  Engle and whose district this would be located.

          7                 Good afternoon, Chairman Sabini and

          8  members of the Council.  I am here today to urge you

          9  to vote against building a filtration plant in Van

         10  Cortlandt Park.  There are several reasons why it

         11  shouldn't be built in the park, or even in the

         12  Bronx:

         13                 It may not be necessary.

         14                 The City has not aggressively pursued

         15  filtration avoidance.

         16                 If filtration cannot be avoided, the

         17  plant can and should be built elsewhere.

         18                 And however unintended, it still

         19  constitutes environmental racism.

         20                 I have introduced legislation in

         21  Congress to reopen the period allowing

         22  municipalities to apply for filtration avoidance.

         23  This period lapsed in early 1991, without the City

         24  making a serious effort to avoid the need for

         25  building a filtration plant in the Croton system.
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          2                 I have also been asking the City and

          3  State to work out an agreement similar to the one

          4  averting a filtration plant for the

          5  Catskill/Delaware watershed.  This watershed

          6  supplies 90 percent of the City water versus 10

          7  percent from the Croton system. If an agreement

          8  cannot be worked here, there are alternatives to

          9  building this massive, nearly one billion dollar

         10  facility in the middle of a Bronx neighborhood.

         11                 Two communities in Westchester have

         12  the room and the desire to take this plant, the

         13  Towns of Mount Pleasant and Greenburg.  Both offered

         14  to negotiate to build the plant, but New York City

         15  refused to talk to either of them and peremptorily

         16  name the Mosholu Golf Course as its preferred site.

         17                 The City cited the cost of building

         18  in Westchester as being more expensive, but this is

         19  inconsistent with a decision to build a filtration

         20  plant in that same location if the avoidance

         21  agreement for the Catskill/Delaware system falls

         22  apart.  This plant would cost far more than the

         23  hundreds of millions of dollars projected for the

         24  Croton plant.  What the City refuses to acknowledge

         25  is the price of the destruction of a neighborhood.
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          2  If the Croton plant must be built, why not build it

          3  in Westchester where there is room for any necessary

          4  expansion for the Catskill system?

          5                 Consider also a facility of this

          6  size.  It will take five or more years with

          7  numberless trucks entering and leaving the

          8  neighborhood every day.  This could be as

          9  destructive to the neighborhood as the Cross Bronx

         10  Expressway was to the central Bronx neighborhoods in

         11  its path.

         12                 It demonstrates that planning based

         13  solely on dollars overlooks something far more

         14  important; the vitality of a neighborhood and what

         15  its disruption does to families living in the

         16  neighborhood.  And those families will suffer, from

         17  the dislocation caused by the construction, from the

         18  loss of parkland and from the adverse effects to

         19  health caused by giant trucks polluting the air and

         20  dust from the site fouling the air.  This is a

         21  neighborhood already crammed with asthma sufferers.

         22                 Further, there is still another

         23  example of the environmental racism which is

         24  infecting the Bronx.  Placing this mammoth plant at

         25  the Mosholu site violates Title VI of the 1964 Civil
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          2  Rights Act, as well as the 1994 Presidential

          3  Executive Order. These acts prohibit discrimination

          4  on the basis of race and ethnicity in federally

          5  funded programs which cover pollution emitting

          6  facilities, such as filtration plants.  There are

          7  already facilities all over the borough which make

          8  the Bronx synonymous with asthma and airborne

          9  diseases.

         10                 Further jeopardy lies with the

         11  chemicals used to treat the water.  They are

         12  dangerously lethal in dense populations in the event

         13  of an explosion or spill.  Last week, the records of

         14  the City's Department of Environmental Protection

         15  were seized because of spills of lethal chemicals in

         16  the reservoir area.  A comparable accident would be

         17  far more devastating in a densely packed urban area

         18  like the Bronx.

         19                 The City is abandoning its own Bronx

         20  neighborhoods by refusing to work out a filtration

         21  avoidance agreement or by looking elsewhere to build

         22  the filtration plant.  This will cost its citizens

         23  years of dislocation and disruption and potential

         24  illness.

         25                 The City Council has the ability to
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          2  save these neighborhoods, to protect them from an

          3  Administration which refuses to look out for their

          4  interests in the name of saving a relatively few

          5  dollars.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

          8  O'Brien.  I just have a question, has the

          9  Congressman and maybe in conjunction with Senators

         10  Moyihan and Schumer spoken or had contact with EPA

         11  regarding the issue?

         12                 MR. O'BRIEN:  We have been in contact

         13  with EPA over the years.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right, and do

         15  you see any budging on their part, because the

         16  Commissioner has said that there is no budging, and

         17  in the New York Times today, EPA said, filtration

         18  avoidance is not an option to them at this point.

         19                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Well, we hope to

         20  address that by getting this legislation and

         21  Congress reopening that filtration avoidance period.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         23  Council Member Carrion.  Mr. O'Brien, we have a

         24  question for you.

         25                 MR. O'Brien:  Oh, I'm sorry.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

          3  Carrion.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Could you

          5  elucidate a little bit on this legislation that the

          6  Congressman, I don't know if it has already been

          7  introduced or is going to introduce on reopening

          8  this whole matter?

          9                 MR. O'BRIEN:  It's been introduced

         10  and it's in the Commerce Committee,  where the

         11  Congressman is a member.  We're now negotiating with

         12  the Republican majority over getting it into the

         13  Committee for hearings.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Just for

         15  people's edification, you know, what is the essence

         16  of it?

         17                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Well in 1991 the

         18  filtration avoidance, the ability for municipality

         19  to apply for filtration avoidance lapsed.  What this

         20  legislation would do would reopen that period on the

         21  basis of either later technical ability or

         22  information that would make filtration avoidance

         23  possible.  If the City could state its case and this

         24  legislation is passed, then we could avoid the

         25  filtration plant.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Kim Klank from

          6  Senator Eric Schneiderman's Office, you're here?

          7  Okay, come on up.

          8                 MS. KLANK:  Hello, my name is

          9  Kimberly Klank, and I'm here on behalf of State

         10  Senator Eric Schneiderman. Unfortunately, the

         11  Senator cannot be here today, but I'm sure he would

         12  commend you on your thoughtful and insightful

         13  questions, but he has asked that I come here and

         14  present this statement to you.

         15                  "I'm State Senator Eric T.

         16  Schneiderman, and I represent the 30th Senatorial

         17  District in New York.  My district includes

         18  Riverdale, Kingsbridge, Norwood, and Van Cortlandt

         19  Village in the Bronx.

         20                 I come before you today to speak out

         21  against the construction of the Croton water

         22  filtration facility in the Mosholu Golf Course

         23  section of Van Cortlandt Park.  Many of my

         24  constituents will be adversely effected by this

         25  project.  More specifically, during the construction
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          2  of the plant, the Norwood community will be

          3  subjected to intense blasting, diesel fumes and

          4  construction dust. As a result, the landscape of the

          5  park will be irreversibly change and, City residents

          6  will be unable to use the golf course for close to a

          7  decade.  Knowing the significant impact of this

          8  project, it is only logical that the Department of

          9  Environmental Protection construct the facility in a

         10  non- residential area.  Given the fact that

         11  municipalities in Westchester County have openly

         12  lobbied for the treatment facility, the DEP must

         13  pursue this option.

         14                 I also note that the City could

         15  implement the DEP's Proposed Optimal Non- Filtration

         16  Plan.  In fact, experts believe that with certain

         17  modifications, this plan would allow New York's

         18  drinking water to meet the government's strict

         19  regulations. Moreover, independent consultants agree

         20  that the City could save hundreds of millions of

         21  dollars in capital and maintenance cost by pursuing

         22  filtration avoidance.  In order to do so, we need

         23  the DEP to make a strong commitment to preserving

         24  the Croton watershed area and to aggressively

         25  petition the EPA.
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          2                 Finally, it is debatable that the

          3  City has the authority to build a filtration plant

          4  on parkland without enacting alienation legislation.

          5    Specifically, the courts have consistently held

          6  that parkland is subject to public trust and cannot

          7  be used for unrelated park purposes, such as a

          8  filtration facility, even if the land continues to

          9  be used as a public park.  If a municipality chooses

         10  to do so, the courts have determined that alienation

         11  legislation must be introduced.  Therefore, if the

         12  City chooses to build the facility in Van Cortlandt

         13  Park, legal precedent requires the City to seek

         14  approval from the State Legislature.  By failing to

         15  do so, the City is demonstrating that public parks,

         16  such as Van Cortlandt Park, Prospect Park and

         17  Central Park are unprotected and can be easily

         18  developed at the whimpering of any Mayor of New York

         19  City.

         20                 Given that there is an alternative to

         21  filtration and the possibility of building the

         22  facility in Westchester, it is unconscionable that

         23  the City is not aggressively pursuing these options.

         24    Because of this failure, the Northwest Bronx will

         25  be severely impacted, our public parks endangered
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          2  and, a precedent may be set which would allow

          3  municipalities across the state to alienate parkland

          4  without legislative approval.  Accordingly, I urge

          5  the City Council to vote against using the Mosholu

          6  Golf Course as the proposed site for the Croton

          7  water filtration facility."

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         10  William Weitz from Assemblyman Jeffrey Dinowitz's

         11  Office.  Mr. Weitz, come on down.

         12                 MR. WEITZ:  Councilman Sabini,

         13  Councilwoman Eisland, members of the Committee, my

         14  name is Bill Weitz.  I'm Chief of Staff for

         15  Assemblyman Jeffrey Dinowitz.  Assemblyman Dinowitz

         16  is unable to be here in person today, because the

         17  Assembly is in session, but I have remarks from him.

         18                  "I represent the 81st Assembly

         19  District in the Northwest Bronx, including Van

         20  Cortlandt Park.  I have worked for many years now to

         21  fight construction of the Croton Water Treatment

         22  Plant in the Northwest Bronx.  Now I am asking you

         23  to reject construction of this facility once and for

         24  all.

         25                 At the last minute the DEP added Van
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          2  Cortlandt Park's Mosholu Golf Course to the list of

          3  possible sites for the Water Treatment Plant, don't

          4  build there or anywhere else in Van Cortlandt Park.

          5  The opposition to this extensive boondoggle is

          6  unanimous.  All three Community Boards which border

          7  Van Cortlandt Park, Boards 7, 8 and 12, oppose

          8  construction.  Not one member of any of these boards

          9  voted for it.  The Borough Board also opposes this

         10  project.

         11                 Van Cortlandt Park is among the most

         12  beautiful treasures in New York City.  We should be

         13  expanding parkland, not reducing it.  The proposal

         14  before you will remove parkland from the Bronx for

         15  many years and permanently change it.

         16                 When the State Legislature designated

         17  Van Cortlandt Estate as parkland in 1884, it based

         18  its decision partially on a report to the State

         19  Senate which said, 'The Commission most favorably

         20  impressed with the tract of land known as Van

         21  Cortlandt Estate, and its immediate surroundings, as

         22  possessing, in its varies topography, ample spaces,

         23  charming views, cheapness, natural condition, and

         24  peculiar adaptability for park purposes.  Over a

         25  thousand acres here can be obtained in one tract,
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          2  presenting a remarkable combination of forest, hill

          3  and valley, rock and Glen, meadow, lake and stream.'

          4                 The destruction of parkland is

          5  unacceptable.  The deliberate destruction of up to

          6  400 trees in Van Cortlandt Park would be nothing

          7  less than mass arbocide.  Can you imagine a proposal

          8  to destroy 400 trees in Central Park?  Of course

          9  not.  Why should it be acceptable in the Bronx?

         10                 The people have spoken out over and

         11  over again at dozens of meetings, hearings, rallies

         12  and other events against building this monstrosity

         13  in the Northwest Bronx. The impact of this project

         14  on those who live, work and go to school in the

         15  community would be disastrous.  The cost and time

         16  for the project would be unacceptable,  and it's

         17  impossible to quantify the costs of many negative

         18  impacts.

         19                 Parkland is too precious to be

         20  squandered on a project that is unnecessary and

         21  destructive.  Even if it were necessary, it needn't

         22  be built in Van Cortlandt Park, and even if it

         23  really had to be built and built here, the

         24  construction of a treated water reservoir and

         25  pumping station is not necessary.
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          2                 Those of us who oppose the

          3  construction of the Water Treatment Plant have said

          4  for years that the City must find alternatives to

          5  filtration of the Croton water system.  A filtration

          6  plant would not only be devastating for our

          7  community, but would also be seen as a license to

          8  pollute by many people in Westchester County, the

          9  source of the pollution.  You can take steps to stop

         10  this.

         11                 There is also a legal hurdle which I

         12  urge you to consider.  The State Legislature's

         13  approval is required before construction can

         14  proceed.  Thirty- three members of the State

         15  Assembly, including the Chairs of the Committee on

         16  Environmental Conservation and the Committee on

         17  Parks and Tourism, sent a letter to Speaker Vallone

         18  and Mayor Giuliani stating that the ULURP

         19  application at the Mosholu site does not address the

         20  fact that express approval through an act of the

         21  State Legislature is required before construction

         22  can proceed.

         23                 The New York State General City Law,

         24  Section 20, states, 'the rights of a city in and to

         25  its waterfronts, ferries, bridges, wharf property,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            140

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  land under water, public landings, wharves, docks,

          3  streets, avenues, parks and all other public places

          4  are hereby declared to be inalienable.'

          5                 The Court of Appeals and other New

          6  York State courts have upheld Section 20 (2)

          7  prohibiting a city from converting public parkland

          8  to a non- park use without specific and direct

          9  approval of the State Legislature.  I cite Williams

         10  versus Gallatin, Ackerman versus Steisel.  In the

         11  Williams case the Court of Appeals said that the

         12  prohibition against alienation of parkland is

         13  absolute regardless of the alleged good that the

         14  proposed project would confer.  The court stated,

         15   'no objects however worthy, such as court houses or

         16  school houses, which have no connection with park

         17  purposes, should be permitted to encroach upon it

         18  without legislative authority plainly conferred.'

         19  New York City simply does not have the legal power

         20  to build the Water Treatment Plant in Van Cortlandt

         21  Park without an act of the New York State

         22  Legislature.

         23                 There would be a taking of parkland

         24  by the City if this project is allowed to proceed.

         25  There would be permanent changes to the site.
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          2  Therefore State Legislature approval would be

          3  necessary.

          4                 Responsible environmentalist, elected

          5  officials and community Leaders have denounced this

          6  project because there is growing scientific evidence

          7  that filtration is not the answer to providing clean

          8  water from the Croton Watershed.  The City should go

          9  all out to pursue the non- filtration option.  Half-

         10  hearted efforts are unacceptable.  I urge the

         11  Committee to reject the ULURP applications.  The DEP

         12  would be much more prudent to pursue the filtration

         13  avoidance option and/or to consider sites other than

         14  Van Cortlandt Park, or the previously rejected

         15  Jerome Park Reservoir and Harris Park locations.

         16  Let's all work towards a cost- effective and people

         17  friendly solution to water quality issues.

         18  Filtration avoidance is the smart answer to this

         19  question.  The city should aggressively pursue this

         20  option.  You have a responsibility to just say no to

         21  this disastrous boondoggle."

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         24  Donald Ranshte from Assemblyman Jeff Klein's Office.

         25    Please, state your name for the record?
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          2                 MR. RANSHTE:  I am Donald Ranshte

          3  from Assemblyman Jeff Klein's Office.  Thank you,

          4  Chairman Sabini and members of the Subcommittee, and

          5  members of the City Council, at large, for allowing

          6  me to present the testimony of New York State

          7  Assemblyman Jeff Klein in opposition to the

          8  construction of a water filtration plant under the

          9  Mosholu Golf Course.

         10                  "I appear before you as a member of

         11  a community and of a borough united in our stand

         12  against the building of an underground, chemical

         13  aiding colossus, centrally located in a residential

         14  neighborhood of 25,000 people, New York City will

         15  build a 473,000 square foot, 28- acre water

         16  filtration plant.

         17                 Luckily, the New York City DEP has

         18  determined in their EIS, there will be no

         19   'significant adverse impacts associated with the

         20  proposed project.'  Language which is eerily

         21  reminiscent of the preliminary draft EIS for the

         22  Jerome Park Reservoir Plant, however, is was later

         23  determined that indeed there would be serious

         24  problems at that site.  I ask, why would New York

         25  City DEP later find it detrimental to build a plant
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          2  at that site, yet, find at the Mosholu site there

          3  will be no significant adverse impacts?

          4                 I believe that if the New York City

          5  DEP fully and earnestly considers the impacts of the

          6  Mosholu site, they will arrive at the same

          7  conclusion.  In the notice of completion of the EIS,

          8  New York City DEP cheerfully asserts that this

          9  seven- year project will actually increase the

         10  quality of life of all those involved, noise filters

         11  and dust avoidance measures will be taken during

         12  construction, and after construction by rebuilding

         13  the golf course, planting new trees, and rebuilding

         14  a portion of roadways, that for the most part will

         15  only be used by its construction trucks, I believe

         16  there is no compensation for seven years of lost

         17  parkland, noise, construction and then being left

         18  with a hazardous chemical plant.

         19                 There is no doubt that construction

         20  impacts will be tremendous.  As a result of this

         21  destruction we face an even more serious threat to

         22  the health of our children in our communities. For

         23  the last three years I have been investigating the

         24  incurrence of childhood asthma and the numbers are

         25  alarming.  The Bronx leads the nation in incurrences
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          2  of childhood asthma, and in some areas which I call

          3  asthma alley, these figures are seven times the

          4  national average.  Many experts are blaming

          5  environmental factors, such as outdoor pollutants,

          6  which will only be exacerbated by the construction

          7  of this mammoth plant, which be DEP's own estimates

          8  will require 190 truck deliveries per day.  This

          9  project would only increase the dangerous triggers

         10  and increase the incurrence of asthma attacks, which

         11  are the leading cause of school absenteeism and

         12  hospitalization among children in the Bronx.  I

         13  worked diligently to educate the community to

         14  protect our children from this life- threatening

         15  disease and this project would endanger the measures

         16  that I and other members of our community have taken

         17  to protect the health of our children.

         18                 In their own document, Section 11, 9

         19  through 30, of the EIS, the DEP states, 'during peak

         20  construction it is possible noise emissions may

         21  exceed noise guidelines and result in temporary

         22  impacts.'  And later in the same section, 'no

         23  mitigation is proposed.'  It is obvious and

         24  excavation and moving this amount of earth will have

         25  great impacts upon a residential community.  With
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          2  all due respect to remarks made earlier by

          3  Commissioner Miele, I will continue to advocate for

          4  the study of filtration avoidance. There are

          5  regulatory and practical hurdles for filtration

          6  avoidance, none of which are insurmountable.

          7                 Indeed, it would be a breech of the

          8  public trust not to truly make an informed public

          9  policy based on the study of all of the facts.  Just

         10  as chlorine came along as a filtration avoidance in

         11  1913, there still may be a new technology or science

         12  in 1999 that will be declared a safe filtration

         13  avoidance.

         14                 I implore the members of this

         15  Committee, Subcommittee, of the whole City Council

         16  to disapprove the siting of this project.  We will

         17  continue to stand united in our position as a

         18  community to this massive facility anywhere in the

         19  North Bronx."

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

         22  Ranshte. Congratulations on your recent election of

         23  the School Board, by the way, and send Senator Klein

         24  my best wishes.

         25                 Laura Spalter from Community Board
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          2  #8, are you here? Come on up.  You're speaking as a

          3  representative of Board #8, or you're speaking on

          4  behalf of yourself?  Okay, go ahead, identify

          5  yourself for the record, please?

          6                 MS. SPALTER:  Good afternoon.  My

          7  name is Laura Spalter, Chair of the Environment and

          8  Sanitation Committee for Community Board #8, and I

          9  am speaking on behalf of the Board.

         10                 At its regular Board meeting held on

         11  February 9th, 1999, Community Board #8 passed the

         12  following resolution by a vote of 25- 0- 0:

         13                 Resolved, that Community Board #8,

         14  Bronx County, disapproves City Planning Commission

         15  applications #C990237 PSX because (1) its need, its

         16  merit, its location and the factual record preceding

         17  and supporting site selection and the draft

         18  Environmental Impact Statement are unsupported by

         19  the record, (2) the plan, as proposed, adversely

         20  affects the character of the neighborhood and (3)

         21  the applicant has refused to provide relevant

         22  information requested by the Board, including

         23  material respecting parkland alienation.

         24                 I will now speak on behalf of the

         25  Riverdale Community Association.  My name is Laura
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          2  Spalter.  I am the co president of the Riverdale

          3  Community Association and I teach in the Norwood

          4  section of the Bronx.

          5                 We are against the siting of a

          6  filtration plant in Van Cortlandt Park.  The Land

          7  Use Committee must recognize the inappropriateness

          8  of siting such a facility in public park land and

          9  the damaging precedent that this will set.  Twenty-

         10  three acres will be sacrificed for the plant,

         11  pumping station and clearwell, in addition to roads

         12  and the staging area.  Instead of quiet enjoyment of

         13  the park and its golf course, residents will have

         14  years of noise, dust, and heavy construction

         15  madness.

         16                 Implementing a watershed protection

         17  program around the Croton system is the only way to

         18  protect our water from polluted runoff and other

         19  impacts.  Because only non- filtered systems are

         20  required to produce a watershed protection program,

         21  once a filtration is built, all bets are off as far

         22  as protecting our watershed.  In cities like

         23  Milwaukee, where residents have been stricken with

         24  illness from their drinking water, despite

         25  filtration, it's becoming clear that filtration is
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          2  not the panacea once thought.

          3                 The Croton's water meet all current

          4  Federal and State health regulations, despite

          5  current levels of development. Natural system can

          6  and do work, if protected from direct impacts from

          7  development.

          8                 If this plant must be built, build it

          9  in an industrial zoned area in Westchester, that

         10  want it.  Don't site an industrial plant in Van

         11  Cortlandt Park.

         12                 Thank you for this opportunity.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  I'm

         14  going to start calling people up in panels now, to

         15  move this along.  Thomas Maguire from the Operating

         16  Engineers.  Frank McArdle from the General

         17  Contractors Association, aren't you glad you're not

         18  the Commissioner anymore?  And Lou Colletti from the

         19  Building Trade and Place Association.

         20                 Good afternoon, state your name for

         21  the record please, Mr. Maguire.

         22                 MR. MAGUIRE:  My name is Thomas P.

         23  Maguire, President and Business Manager of the

         24  International Union of Operating Engineers, Local

         25  15, A, B, C, and D.  Local 15 is comprised of 4,600
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          2  highly skilled operators, mechanics, welders and

          3  survey engineers, 500 of whom live in the Bronx,

          4  many of them are here today, all of whom live in New

          5  York City and the surrounding areas and work in the

          6  five boroughs.

          7                 The Operating Engineers have always

          8  supported the community's desire for a study to

          9  determine whether Croton water needs to be filtered

         10  to ensure public health.  At a public hearing just

         11  one year ago, I stated that alternatives to

         12  filtration should be pursued with the Federal

         13  Government before a commitment is made to build a

         14  treatment plant, no one wants to spend our hard

         15  earned tax dollars on a facility unless it's

         16  absolutely necessary.

         17                 However, the United States

         18  Environmental Protection Agency has now obtained a

         19  court order and Consent Decree mandating the

         20  construction of the filtration plant for the Croton

         21  system. Over the past two years, the operating

         22  engineers have played an active role in the public

         23  debate on this facility.  We agree with the

         24  community that the Jerome Park Reservoir was

         25  inappropriate for the facility, but we have been
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          2  consistent in our demand that if a filtration plant

          3  must be built, it must be built in the Bronx.      Building

          4  this facility in the Bronx keeps the economic

          5  investment and employment opportunities where they

          6  belong, and its Environmental Impact Statement that

          7  New York City's DEP projects that this project could

          8  add up to 5,500 new jobs in the region.

          9                 In addition, if the plant is built in

         10  Westchester, we will have to purchase the land, pay

         11  property taxes and build expensive mile- long water

         12  tunnels.  It could cost up to $200 million more in

         13  capital dollars to construct this facility outside

         14  of the City.  Why should our taxpayers and

         15  ratepayers pay for this unnecessary cost?

         16                 There is no question that

         17  construction projects sometimes cause disruptions in

         18  the adjacent communities.  However, building at the

         19  Mosholu Driving Range will have fewer adverse

         20  impacts on Bronx residents than the other proposed

         21  sites.

         22                 The New York City DEP has developed a

         23  well thought out plan to address potential problems

         24  with congestion, noise and dust.  Our local union

         25  pledges to cooperate with the City and the
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          2  contractors that employ us to ensure that this plan

          3  is adhered to, every effort will be made to minimize

          4  and mitigate noise and inconvenience during the

          5  construction phase.

          6                 Should additional measures be

          7  necessary to mitigate the larger scale impacts this

          8  facility may have on recreation opportunities and

          9  the quality of life in the North Bronx, they could

         10  be funded with a portion of the $150 million that is

         11  being saved by locating this facility in the Bronx.

         12                 There are a host of park and

         13  recreation facilities, schools, roads, and other

         14  improvements in the Bronx that could be funded with

         15  a portion of the savings realized by building the

         16  facility in the Bronx.  This way, the ratepayers and

         17  the residents of the North Bronx, would both benefit

         18  from the construction of this facility at the

         19  Mosholu Driving Range.

         20                 The construction of this filtration

         21  plant will provide many needed jobs for my members

         22  and other members of the building trade, and an

         23  economic boost to the people of the Bronx. Most

         24  important of all, the plant will protect the public

         25  health of all City residents.  We, the
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          2  representatives and members of Local 15 and all of

          3  organized labor, urge the City Council Land Use

          4  Subcommittee to approve this application.  We stand

          5  ready to work with you to ensure that the impact of

          6  construction is minimized while the economic

          7  benefits of this important project are maximized.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  The more noise

         10  we have, the longer we're here gang, okay?

         11  Commissioner McArdle.  Also, let me note that we're

         12  joined by Council Member A. Gifford Miller, a member

         13  of the Land Use Committee.

         14                 MR. MCARDLE:  Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman.  My name is Frank McArdle.  I am here on

         16  behalf of the General Contractors Association of New

         17  York, and a Coalition of the Construction Industry

         18  both management and labor.

         19                 When I was City Commissioner, I was

         20  associated with this project and its approval some

         21  20 years ago, and this project has been something

         22  that I have focused on in all of that time, and let

         23  me talk to a couple of the issues that have been

         24  addressed here this morning by you and by other

         25  Council members.  The construction industry believes
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          2  in the same principles as Council Member Steve

          3  DiBrienza articulated.

          4                 If this project can be avoided, if

          5  filtration avoidance is an option, it should be

          6  pursued.  There is $680 million worth of other

          7  projects much more useful to the citizens of New

          8  York perhaps than a filter plant, if filtration

          9  avoidance can be sustained.  But right now,

         10  filtration avoidance is not a legal option for the

         11  City of New York, it is not a legal option in terms

         12  of the Consent Decree, it is not a legal option in

         13  terms of the law that governs the application.  The

         14  City did not apply and the City, therefore, lost its

         15  right to pursue filtration avoidance at this point.

         16  The law must be changed to allow them to do that,

         17  and even if the law is changed, Mr. Chairman, there

         18  will be a heavy burden within EPA to establish that

         19  filtration avoidance is appropriate.

         20                 The track should be pursued, DEP

         21  should aggressively pursue the research and the

         22  watershed management practices that will enable DEP,

         23  at some point, to offer a filtration avoidance

         24  program for the Croton system to EPA in the State.

         25  But it cannot do that right now as the only track,
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          2  it must stay on track to meet the demands of the

          3  Consent Decree.  The City has been there before, on

          4  Consent Decrees, and I can assure you from my own

          5  experience, we are best if we stay on track if we

          6  pursue that Consent Decree schedule and never allow

          7  an EPA, who is in fact hostile to filtration

          8  avoidance to further impose penalties on our program

          9  and further direct the actions of the City.

         10                 The Mosholu site makes the most sense

         11  for this project for two reasons:

         12                 1.  It is clearly cheaper for the

         13  City to build at Mosholu by up to $300 million in

         14  capital costs, if you look at the statement of the

         15  Mayor.  It is clearly cheaper operationally as well.

         16    That capital cost addition, that $300 million more

         17  that we pay for this project is $300 million worth

         18  of water main upgrading, of sewer upgrading, of

         19  sewage treatment plant upgrading, that will be

         20  deferred as this project is paid for if it is sited

         21  in Westchester.

         22                 One earlier asked, why this project,

         23  in fact, is welcomed by Westchester?  Part of the

         24  reason that the two towns want this project at the

         25  site they have selected, the Union Carbide site, is
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          2  that no one else is a prospective tenant at that

          3  site. That is a very tough site to remediate, and

          4  they are hoping that the City of New York will come

          5  in and provide that environmental remediation that

          6  no other private developer has, in fact, undertaken.

          7

          8                 This is a project important to

          9  communities.  It is clearly important to the

         10  communities where it will be built, and we stand

         11  ready to work with the department and the community

         12  to ensure that environmentally it is built as

         13  soundly as possible.  But it is equally important to

         14  the communities, where 70 percent of New York City's

         15  construction industry works in New York City and

         16  lives in New York City.  Those people are in

         17  communities as well, communities that are supported

         18  by the wages that they bring home to their families,

         19  these are good jobs, they pay well, and they allow

         20  people to support their communities.

         21                 If this plant is built in

         22  Westchester, New York City's construction labor will

         23  not work on this project, they will have to find

         24  other jobs that don't pay as well or don't pay as

         25  quickly.  This is good work for the construction
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          2  industry in New York City, they believe they should

          3  have an opportunity to build in the City, because

          4  when they live here they pay taxes and water rates

          5  in the City.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 MR. COLLETTI:  Mr. Chairman, is this

          8  on?  Mr. Chairman and the members of the Committee,

          9  thank you for the opportunity to be here this

         10  afternoon.  My name is Louis Colletti. I'm the

         11  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Building

         12  Trades Employers Association, and I'm here

         13  representing over 22 contractor associations and

         14  over 1,100 construction companies working in New

         15  York City.

         16                 We strongly support the City's

         17  Department of Environmental Protection ULURP

         18  application for the Croton Water Filtration Plant

         19  proposed at the Mosholu Golf Course, and urge you to

         20  approve that application.

         21                 You have already heard significant

         22  testimony this morning and this afternoon, and I

         23  think your choices are pretty simple.  EPA has gone

         24  out and got a Consent Decree, to ignore that could

         25  cost this City forty, fifty, sixty million dollars
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          2  in fines and penalties that could be spent much

          3  better on services to the community.  We have also

          4  heard the cost of this project being a differential

          5  of $200 million of being built in the Bronx versus

          6  being built in Westchester.

          7                 I suggest to you that our tax money

          8  is better spent within the five boroughs of New York

          9  City.  Why not take that $200 million differential

         10  and identify projects within the Bronx that would

         11  improve the quality of life for the residents of the

         12  Bronx? Why not take the opportunity with this

         13  project, I have testified before you on some other

         14  issues, in terms that 85 percent of the new

         15  workforce coming into the construction industry

         16  today comes from the five boroughs of New York City

         17  Queens is number one on the list with 34 percent,

         18  Brooklyn 31 percent, and the Bronx drops all the way

         19  to 16 percent, that is a significant difference

         20  between the first two.  Why not take this project

         21  with those capital expenditures with a price

         22  difference and really developed a local development

         23  plan that will make it work for the community.

         24                 We don't want this plant to be built

         25  anywhere else but the Bronx.  Westchester does not
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          2  deserve our tax money.  EPA has taken and put us in

          3  a box, your choices are very slim, slim to none, and

          4  it will cost us money, the question is what do you

          5  want that money to be spent on, a local development

          6  plan that will assist everyone, or just fines that

          7  go to the United States EPA and they're tossed into

          8  the General Treasury?

          9                 We believe very strongly that this

         10  project needs to move forward, needs to move forward

         11  with our members building it, and can move forward

         12  in a way that is going to benefit both us and the

         13  City of New York and the Bronx community.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

         16  Colletti.

         17                 MR. MCARDLE:  Can I add one comment,

         18  Mr. Chairman? You had asked a question earlier of

         19  Commissioner Miele as to what would happen as he

         20  goes down the road, and if he actually let

         21  construction contracts, what would he do at that

         22  point?  We were in that circumstance in the sledge

         23  program in 1980.  We were under a Consent Decree

         24  that we never fell off of, because we never wanted

         25  to give EPA a hammer on us in our program.  We
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          2  actually designed a program, we actually bid

          3  contracts, we actually started work on the sledge

          4  facilities before we found the judge that believed

          5  in our case and gave us the relief we wanted.  We

          6  immediately moved to cancel those construction

          7  contracts, that is, in fact, what one would do here.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          9                 MR. MCARDLE:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I'm going to

         11  call another panel, in opposition, Monsignor Patrick

         12  Boyle, Margaret Groarke, Lyn Pyle.  Monsignor.

         13                 MONSIGNOR BOYLE:  Good afternoon,

         14  Speaker Vallone and members of the City Council.  My

         15  name is Monsignor Patrick Boyle, Pastor of Saint

         16  Brenda's Church in Norwood, just a few blocks from

         17  the site of the proposed filtration plant.  I'm also

         18  Archdiocesan Vicar for the Northwest Bronx, and as

         19  Vicar I represent his Eminence, John Cardinal

         20  O'Connor, in matters pertaining to the social,

         21  educational, material and spiritual needs of the

         22  people in the Northwest Bronx.

         23                 His Eminence has indicated his

         24  opposition to building the filtration plant at the

         25  Jerome Park Reservoir, and now he has indicated

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            160

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  grave concerns about building the filtration plant

          3  at the Mosholu Golf Course.  He feels that this

          4  project in Norwood will impact severely on the

          5  40,000 people who live in Norwood.

          6                 In my mind there are three areas of

          7  concern about the filtration plant.

          8                 First the impact, the golf course

          9  site was selected because it will have less impact,

         10  at least, this was reported by the DEP.  Now does

         11  this less impact mean that the mainly, poor, low-

         12  income, minority people of Norwood are less likely

         13  to make a public outcry at the prospect of living

         14  with the plant than the outcry of citizens from

         15  other communities?

         16                 As to the impact on transportation,

         17  parklands, health, welfare, and the quality of life,

         18  I think our community people have every right to be

         19  suspect of the promises that the City of New York

         20  and DEP make to their community about lessening the

         21  impact in these important areas of life.  We are an

         22  area that has experienced in the past promises the

         23  City to maintain our beautiful Mosholu Parkway only

         24  to find that the City contract or contractor from

         25  the City had destroyed the trees.  We, likewise, are
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          2  a community that don't know from day to day about

          3  health care in our North Central Bronx Hospital, so

          4  are we apt to now believe all these promises that

          5  there will not be that much of an impact?

          6                 With respect to technology and water,

          7  after years of studying ways to ensure the purity of

          8  water in the City of New York, is the filtration

          9  plant the only solution and the only remedy?  Should

         10  not time, more time be given to developing

         11  alternative filtration measures that will be

         12  natural, less expensive, and not destructive of

         13  communities?

         14                 One other area of concern is the

         15  question of the Consent Decree.  The City of New

         16  York and DEP seem to be forging ahead with plans for

         17  this filtration plant at the Mosholu site because of

         18  the Consent Decree and the possibility of fines.  It

         19  is my understanding that we have compliant with the

         20  Decree, and that according to terms of the Decree,

         21  we will still be given time, or can be given time to

         22  consider other filtration alternatives, and we do

         23  not have to force ourselves to choose the Mosholu

         24  site.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you,

          3  Monsignor.  Thank you, also, for coming on time.

          4  You know, I know you watch Channel 74, my mother is

          5  probably watching on, if ever the cutoff of

          6  Monsignor, I would have hell to pay at home.

          7                 MS. GROARKE:  Good afternoon,

          8  Councilman Sabini.  My name is Margaret Groarke.

          9  I'm the President of the Mosholu Woodlawn South

         10  Community Coalition.  It's part of the Northwest

         11  Bronx Community Coalition, both organizations are

         12  very opposed to siting this plant.

         13                 I was reading the newspaper this

         14  morning, and I was reading the Dilbert comic, and

         15  one character said to the other, I'm moving you to

         16  my quality insurance division.  I know it's bad for

         17  you and it's bad for the company, but it solves my

         18  headcount problem.  And the character says, oh, wow,

         19  is that my contribution to the world, I solved the

         20  headcount problem.

         21                 And that is kind of how I feel,

         22  everyone tells me that they see all the reasons,

         23  they see all the objections to this and why it is a

         24  terrible idea, but, what can we do?  And I cannot be

         25  satisfied with that, I just can't accept that we're
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          2  all reasonable, and we know that this is a terrible

          3  idea, but we're going to do it anyway.

          4                 I'm speaking today, also, as somebody

          5  who is, myself, a member of a union.  I'm a member

          6  of the Professional Staff Congress, which is part of

          7  the AFT.  My father is a life- long member of the

          8  United Brotherhood of Carpenters, Local 608.  Many,

          9  many members of my family and my friends are members

         10  of unions. Myself and my organization, we are very

         11  much in support of good jobs for New Yorkers.  We

         12  would never be opposed to good jobs, good well

         13  paying jobs for New Yorkers.  But the fact that we

         14  need more good jobs does not mean that we should

         15  just build it any place over reasonable objections,

         16  whether it's in a park or a residential community,

         17  that nothing matters except the jobs, that we should

         18  just forget about everything else except the jobs.

         19  If you look at the progress of this issue, three

         20  Community Boards have unanimously voted against this

         21  site.  The School Board in our area has voted

         22  against this site.  We are being presented with this

         23  false economy, a couple of them, one is that it's

         24  either clean water or dirty water.  Another is that

         25  in order to have jobs we have to have it in Mosholu
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          2  Golf Course, and we have to get beyond that.

          3                 Frank McArdle is quoted in the paper

          4  today as saying, that there will be 4,500 jobs as a

          5  result of this project. Well, that is pretty

          6  creative math, because there are, according to the

          7  DEP, 1,077 workers on the site at peak.  So if those

          8  are 4,500 jobs, they're going to be very temporary

          9  jobs in order to have enough back and forth to have

         10  4,500 jobs.

         11                 And Joe Miele said today, was talking

         12  about the commuter tax and trying to kind of

         13  organize our anger about being denied the commuter

         14  tax, which, you know, was kind of thrown at us as a

         15  City.  But if we're mad about the commuter tax, if

         16  we think that was wrongly taken away, well let's get

         17  that rule repealed, let's get that law repealed.

         18  Don't take it out on my community, we didn't do

         19  anything about the commuter tax, and if we look at

         20  the unions in question, we're talking about whether

         21  we are going to give it to these Westchester locals

         22  or are we going to give it to the New York locals,

         23  there are a lot of people in the New York locals who

         24  live in other places besides New York City.  My own

         25  father, I mentioned before, lives in Yonkers, my
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          2  uncle, who is a member of 608 lives in Yonkers, so

          3  we're not automatically getting tax dollars from

          4  every New York City local member who works on this

          5  project.  We should direct our anger at the right

          6  place, if you're mad about the commuter tax, talk to

          7  those folks in Albany.  If you're worried about

          8  jobs, let's get some job generating projects going,

          9  but let's not ruin a park and ruin a neighborhood

         10  because of this.

         11                 There are other options that have not

         12  been considered.  One is, and I have heard about

         13  this from many people, including Senator Valello,

         14  that the New York and Westchester's unions could

         15  work out an agreement to allow New York City members

         16  to work in Westchester, that hasn't been considered.

         17    Joe Miele said that splitting up the project is an

         18  option, which we also haven't heard a lot about,

         19  that would lead to some jobs being in New York and

         20  some being in Westchester.

         21                 It is time to look at what other

         22  reasonable things can be done besides illegally

         23  taking over a park.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Let me just tell
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          2  you, Ms. Groarke, in terms of this Council member,

          3  the two arguments you have cited, the jobs and the

          4  commuter tax really don't wash.  I can't speak for

          5  my colleagues, but, you know, this siting started

          6  long before the commuter tax was ever a bone of

          7  contention.  And, in terms of the jobs, I'm glad

          8  that Commissioner McArdle said that, you know, this

          9  isn't the be all and end all, if we wind up doing

         10  this, if it gets done, for either of those reasons,

         11  at least, they're not part of my decision tree.

         12                 MS. GROARKE:  My problem is that

         13  every issue that we raise as being the problem that

         14  we would like to solve, someone says, oh well, that

         15  is really not the problem, and so, if we could find

         16  out what the real problem is and solve it, we

         17  wouldn't have to build this in a park that neither

         18  you or I really want to build it in.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right.

         20  Unfortunately, some of the people causing the

         21  problems aren't in this room, it's the EPA.

         22                 Ms. Pyle.

         23                 MS. PYLE:  All right, I have met many

         24  of you in the last couple of weeks.  My name is Lyn

         25  Pyle.  I represent the Knox Gates Neighborhood
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          2  Association, and I live right across Gun Hill Road

          3  from where the City wants to blast a hole larger

          4  than the Yankee Stadium in the bedrock.

          5                 We are one of the few ethnically and

          6  economically diverse, working class communities in

          7  New York City.  If the City builds this filtration

          8  plant in our park, anyone who can afford to move,

          9  will move, and our community will be destroyed.

         10                 Five years ago I didn't pay attention

         11  to where the water comes from, you turn on the

         12  faucet, maybe it has something to do with the rain,

         13  maybe it has to do with reservoirs, but now, what

         14  we're asking is that, if you haven't already, we

         15  would like for you to take on a new understanding

         16  and appreciation of our water and the watershed.

         17  This huge bowl that is Westchester and Putnam

         18  Counties, where water runs down from streams into

         19  rivers into aqueducts, and where New York City's

         20  drinking water has been naturally filtered for 150

         21  years.

         22                 We have a low- cost, natural

         23  filtration system that is sustainable into the

         24  future, if we take care.  This is our argument, we

         25  want to protect what we have, we want you to vote
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          2  no, because we want dual track for Croton water,

          3  just like we have dual track for the other 90

          4  percent of New York City's drinking water.

          5                 I have been asked to lay out the

          6  outlines of our argument so that all the three-

          7  minute pieces that everyone adds will form one

          8  complex, but understandable picture.  Our argument

          9  has three points:

         10                 We want to avoid filtration.

         11                 We can avoid filtration without

         12  fines.

         13                 And if we ever must filter, a park is

         14  a bad site to locate a filtration plant.

         15                 First, we want to avoid chemical

         16  filtration because we don't need it, it costs too

         17  much, and it's not safe.

         18                 Second, we can avoid filtration

         19  without huge fines, if we protect what we have.

         20  We're not saying stop development; stop

         21  irresponsible development.  We're not saying buy up

         22  all of Westchester and Putnam Counties, listen to

         23  what Paul Mankiewicz has to say, in many cases all

         24  we need is 200- feet buffer zones of plants and

         25  trees between the road or the sewage or the
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          2  fertilizer and our drinking water.

          3                 And you can decide, you must decide,

          4  you don't have to rubber stamp Giuliani's folly, or

          5  will it be called, Miele's folly in a couple of

          6  years.  Listen to John Klutz, our lawyer, the

          7  Consent Decree specifically provides there will be a

          8  ULURP proceeding, provides for force majeure, and I

          9  would like for you to please add that word, force

         10  majeure to your vocabulary as I have, provides for

         11  the DEP to go back to court and ask for a

         12  modification, another word you need to understand is

         13  a modification, they can go back to court, this is

         14  specifically in the Consent Decree, because they

         15  have, at last, they could back if they had at last

         16  developed a comprehensive Croton Watershed

         17  Protection Plan.

         18                 And three, if we must filter our

         19  water chemically, track two, Van Cortlandt is a very

         20  bad site to build a plant, and my time is up.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  All right, thank

         22  you.  You know I asked that question of Commissioner

         23  Miele and the panel earlier, and their response was

         24  different then what you have said.  Now, ultimately,

         25  I'm sure this will be decided in the courts.
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          2                 MS. PYLE:  And we would like you to

          3  take the time to really have the Counsel for the

          4  City Council study the Consent Decree and see where

          5  it distinguishes between the City and the City

          6  Council, and says, that the event beyond the control

          7  of the City Administration, which in this case would

          8  be a City Council no vote, is a force majeure and

          9  means the postponement of fines.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Our Counsel

         11  disagrees, we have studied it, we don't take this

         12  stuff lightly.

         13                 MS. GROARKE:  Since yesterday?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  No, our Counsel

         15  who wasn't in the meeting yesterday that we had, has

         16  studied it.

         17                 MS. GROARKE:  Since yesterday?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  No, before

         19  yesterday.  You have raised the issue yesterday,

         20  they have been working on this for a while.

         21                 Joe Jamisen, AFL-CIO, not here.

         22  Okay.  Before you guys sit down, anyone who wants to

         23  testify on the issue involving the Lower East Side

         24  Garden, because I'm getting some slips up here that

         25  I don't think belong to this hearing, that hearing
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          2  is in the next room, I think it has been suspended.

          3  But if you are here for that issue, don't give slips

          4  to us, get in the Committee room.

          5                 Go ahead, state your name for the

          6  record, please?

          7                 MR. FERNANDES:  Good morning, Mr.

          8  Chairman and members of the Subcommittee.  My name

          9  is Paul E. Fernandes of the Building and

         10  Construction Trades Council of Greater New York.

         11  Our organization consists of six affiliated unions

         12  representing more than 100,000 working men and women

         13  in the five boroughs.  About two years ago, we

         14  initially began seriously evaluating the Croton

         15  water filtration project.  It was our goal to

         16  reconcile important environmental community and

         17  economic concerns.  We believe the decision to

         18  locate the project under the driving range of

         19  Mosholu Golf Course passes this three- part test,

         20  and I know that the Council has heard enough of the

         21  arguments on the economic issues that I will not

         22  repeat them, but I do want to address on issue that

         23  was raised by the last panel.

         24                 Three- fourths of our members, 75

         25  percent of our members live in the five boroughs.
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          2  If this project is built here regardless of commuter

          3  tax repeal or any of those issues, at a minimum

          4  three- fourths of the economic activity will stay in

          5  the five boroughs.  I can assure you that if this

          6  project is located outside of the five boroughs,

          7  next to zero of the economic activity will accrue to

          8  residents of New York City.

          9                 Our organization believes that some

         10  basic realities must be acknowledged, at this time

         11  no credible alternative for filtration has been

         12  presented despite more than a decade of debate

         13  leading up to today.  A strategy similar to what was

         14  implemented for the Catskill/Delaware Reservoir

         15  system, simply does not appear viable.

         16                 Regardless, the City of New York has

         17  entered into a binding Consent Decree with the

         18  Federal Government agreeing to build the Croton

         19  Water Filtration project and to meet certain target

         20  dates presiding the project and moving toward

         21  construction. Ironically, it is in the best interest

         22  of both advocates and opponents of filtration to

         23  support the ULURP application for this reason.  If

         24  the City fails to meet such targets or effectively

         25  cede control over this issue to the Federal
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          2  Government, doing so severely damage and perhaps

          3  completely destroy the City's ability to control its

          4  own destiny on this issue, including the ability to

          5  study and present filtration avoidance options.

          6                 We remain unconvinced that filtration

          7  avoidance is likely, but have always expressed the

          8  view that if filtration avoidance strategy can be

          9  devised, it should.  We must reiterate, however,

         10  that such efforts can only be made possible by

         11  supporting ULURP application, preventing an

         12  essential take over of this issue by the Federal

         13  Government, and essentially this will allow the City

         14  to buy time to more fully evaluate our options.

         15                 For this reason, we urge your support

         16  for the ULURP application, and look forward to

         17  working with the City to ensure that the process

         18  will comply with the Consent Decree, can proceed

         19  smoothly whether its conclusion is filtration

         20  avoidance or construction.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

         23  Fernandez.  Mr. McInnis.

         24                 MR. MCINNIS:  Good afternoon, Mr.

         25  Chairman and fellow Committee members.  My name is
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          2  Steve McInnis, and I'm here today representing the

          3  ten local unions and 25,000 members of the New York

          4  City District Council of Carpenters.  We are located

          5  at 395 Hudson Street in Manhattan and our Local 608

          6  North maintains an office at 707 Rhinelander Avenue,

          7  in the Bronx.  Our members have been doing high

          8  quality construction work in the Bronx for over 100

          9  years, and currently 2, 100 of these members are

         10  Bronx residents, I know some people aren't, but, I'm

         11  advocating here today on behalf of my members and in

         12  support of the Croton Water Filtration Plant being

         13  built at the proposed Mosholu Driving Range site.

         14                 You know, as has been brought up to

         15  hear at today's Subcommittee hearing is about the

         16  ULURP application, it's not about, it's my

         17  understanding that it's not about whether or not

         18  filtration is the key option, that is being decided

         19  in the courts, it's being decided by the EPA, what

         20  we have here is a ULURP application.  And, you know,

         21  as duly elected Council members and representatives

         22  of the New York City residents and taxpayers, if

         23  this project is to go ahead, I employ you to keep

         24  the project and the thousands of jobs it will create

         25  and the millions of tax dollars it will generate in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            175

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  the Bronx.

          3                 As a union representative, I think it

          4  would be tragic to send these of quality

          5  construction jobs into Westchester, but also, as a

          6  resident of the City of New York, I feel it would be

          7  equally tragic to waste over $200 million, which is

          8  the additional estimated cost of doing the project

          9  in Westchester County.  I think that we can all

         10  agree that this money would be better spent either

         11  building new classrooms or many other types of

         12  projects.

         13                 I was joined here today by a number

         14  of our apprentices from our school, we had about 40,

         15  50 here today.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We saw them.

         17                 MR. MCINNIS:  They were in and out

         18  here.  We felt it was important for them to be

         19  involved in this process and for you the Council

         20  members to see them involved here, these are just a

         21  few of the thousands of workers who will be affected

         22  by the decisions that you will make here.

         23                 We feel that the Mosholu Driving

         24  Range location takes into consideration the

         25  community's concerns, you know, using the Major
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          2  Deegan as the main entrance into the site and

          3  preventing it from going through the community.

          4                 We ask you to approve this ULURP

          5  application and let the New York City construction

          6  workers do what they do and what they have always

          7  done, earn a fair days pay for a hard days work.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         10  Ott.

         11                 MR. OTT:  Thank you, I'm going to be

         12  very brief because I don't want to restate all the

         13  previous testimony, but I would like to make three

         14  points.

         15                 I'm Ed Ott.  I represent Brian

         16  McLoughlin who is President of New York City Central

         17  Labor Council.  We represent 1.5 million unionized

         18  working people of the City of New York, public,

         19  private, non- profit workers.  We want to make

         20  three, quick points on this.

         21                 Filtration is not the best system to

         22  deal with water, we understand that, and we accept

         23  the science that criticizes it as being not a great

         24  technology, not a way to go. But I will point out

         25  two things about it, we do have a Consent Decree,
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          2  and ten years from now some of the same people who

          3  are against this project are going to be beating on

          4  the door of this Council demanding that they built

          5  filtration plants if our friends and neighbors

          6  Upstate continue to involve themselves in very poor

          7  land management.  They are screwing some of the

          8  poorest people in this State in the middle of its

          9  economic engine, because they are too selfish to

         10  care about the tenants of this City.  We are going

         11  to ask that if this is done, it be built in New York

         12  City, we want the work, we do not apologize for

         13  wanting the work, we believe that it was best for

         14  the City to spend its money in this City and it

         15  should be done here.

         16                 That being said, our Executive Board

         17  of our Council representing all of the unions of

         18  this City, including the Professional Staff Congress

         19  and others, voted unanimously in support of this

         20  project in the face of this Consent Decree.

         21                 Lastly, I would like to point out to

         22  some of our environmental friends, golf courses are

         23  well groomed chemical dumps.  One could argue that

         24  the fertilizer that is being dumped on here, won't

         25  be while this project is being built, is probably
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          2  for the good of the neighborhood, and they should

          3  think about it and maybe Stern's love of trees was,

          4  maybe he will reforest it instead of turning it back

          5  over to a bunch of golfers.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  I

          7  heard a comment earlier that golf courses were a

          8  quiet place, not when I play.

          9                 We're going to have a panel of

         10  attorneys, Howard Epstein, Friends of Van Cortlandt

         11  Park.  John Klotz from the Sierra Club.  Epstein, go

         12  ahead.

         13                 MR. EPSTEIN:  Good morning.  My name

         14  is Howard Epstein.  I'm a member of the Law Firm of

         15  Schulte, Roth and Zabel here in Manhattan.  I

         16  represent the Friends of Van Cortlandt Park and the

         17  New York Parks Council.

         18                 Almost two years ago, our clients

         19  asked us this question, may New York City legally

         20  use parkland to build a water treatment plant?  And

         21  make no mistake about it, the construction that is

         22  being planned here is not a britter filter, this is

         23  a large, industrial complex that will ultimately

         24  take up 23 acres within an 11- acre footprint.  It

         25  will generate tons of sludge, every day.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Excuse me, one

          3  minute, could we clear the Chamber with people who

          4  are making noise, please?  Thank you.

          5                 MR. EPSTEIN:  The construction plan

          6  is not a water supply system, but an industrial

          7  facility.  Our answer to our clients was, public

          8  parkland is inalienable under New York law, unless

          9  the State Legislature gives direct and specific

         10  approval. The law not only bans outright sale of

         11  parkland, but also prohibits the conversion of

         12  parkland to non- park uses.

         13                 We subsequently wrote a letter to the

         14  DEP explaining the law, and in response we received

         15  a letter - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I'm going to ask

         17  you to stop again, could we hold down the noise,

         18  please?  Otherwise I am going to have to clear the

         19  Chamber of people who are not sitting quietly, thank

         20  you, go ahead.

         21                 MR. EPSTEIN:  Over a year ago, we

         22  received a letter from Assistant Commissioner

         23  Chapin, and in that letter she said, "the DEP

         24  believes that such a facility can be designated and

         25  constructed at any of the seven sites under
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          2  consideration in such a manner that would not

          3  involve alienation of dedicated as a public park,

          4  and thus without the need of an act of the State

          5  Legislature allowing use of the site for such a

          6  facility.  I have spoken to DEP's General Counsel

          7  who concurs with this view and it remains DEP's

          8  position today."

          9                 The Deputy Commissioner did not say,

         10  and it is my understanding does not believe that the

         11  law applies, merely that the way in which this

         12  facility will be built will be mitigated in such a

         13  way as to not cause alienation of parkland.

         14  Unfortunately, that is not the law in this State.

         15                 You already have heard cited the case

         16  of Williams versus Gattlin.  Although this is a 1920

         17  case, it's a New York State Court of Appeals

         18  decision, and in that case it was very interesting

         19  that the City Parks Department wanted to build a

         20  museum for the American Museum of Safety in Central

         21  Park.  The Court of Appeals rejected this

         22  application holding to promote the safety of mankind

         23  as the purpose of the Safety Institute of America to

         24  provide a means of innocent recreation and

         25  refreshment for the weary mind and body, is the
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          2  purpose of the system of public parks. The relation

          3  of the two purposes is, at best, remote.  The court

          4  went onto hold, and this I think bears directly upon

          5  the uses that will be made here.

          6                 The Legislature, I'm sorry, the

          7  legislative will is that Central Park should be kept

          8  open as a public park ought to be, and not to be

          9  turned over by the Commissioner of Parks to other

         10  uses, it must be kept free from the intrusion of any

         11  kind which would interfere in any degree with its

         12  complete use for this end.              This law has

         13  been reviewed repeatedly up through as recently as

         14  the early nineties, this is the law of the State,

         15  make no mistake about it, that my clients will use

         16  every means necessary, and that is why they have

         17  retained us, to protect this park.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, and

         19  we're aware that there is going to be litigation on

         20  this, and there is not much we can do about that

         21  either way.  We're aware though that there have been

         22  some legal points brought up by you and others on

         23  alienation and that will be decided, ultimately in

         24  the courts.

         25                 Mr. Klotz.
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          2                 MR. KLOTZ:  Thank you, Mr. Sabini.

          3  You know I have come here to speak for the rule of

          4  law, because I think we have heard a lot of things

          5  today which is apart from what the law says as can

          6  be - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I'm sorry, John,

          8  identify yourself for the record, please?

          9                 MR. KLOTZ:  I'm John Klotz.  I'm the

         10  attorney for the Croton Watershed Clean Water

         11  Coalition and Secretary of Atlantic Chapter's Sierra

         12  Club.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. KLOTZ:  I speak for the rule of

         15  law.  You know we hear about a Consent Decree and

         16  the issue becomes, well, what is a Consent Decree?

         17  It's may not be everything as it has been said to

         18  be.  For one thing is this, and one thing is

         19  absolutely clear, there has never been a finding of

         20  fact or determination that the City of New York has

         21  in any way violated the Safe Drinking Water Act,

         22  there is no such legal determination.  And if you

         23  read the Consent Decree, it specifically says in

         24  order to avoid any findings of fact or legal

         25  determinations we will have a Consent Decree.  But
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          2  the Consent Decree does not find that, does not make

          3  any determinations, it is essentially a contract,

          4  and I have submitted a memorandum which was closed

          5  to seven circuit about the contractual nature, and

          6  the Consent Decree does not provide and could not

          7  provide that the City violated any local or State

          8  law. The Consent Decree does not give you an excuse

          9  to violate local or State law, and that includes the

         10  ULURP law.

         11                 Your are given under ULURP

         12  discretion, you are given under ULURP power.  The

         13  Consent Decree cannot be interpreted as in any way

         14  denying you that power, because a Consent Decree

         15  cannot do that.  A judgement on the merits can, but

         16  not a Consent Decree.

         17                 And I want to go back to what I

         18  really feel is the basic violation of law upon which

         19  this is founded.  Now we sat here and we heard

         20  consistently about a 1991 decision of the DEP that

         21  New York State lacked the will, political will, and

         22  therefore, we must filter.  There is something

         23  called the City Environmental Quality Review Act,

         24  there is something called the State Environmental

         25  Quality Review Act, where has there been any
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          2  application of those statutes which are mandatory by

          3  law to the decision to filtrate?

          4                 The decision to filtrate to Croton

          5  was one of enormous impact on the development of the

          6  City, and yet, it was never submitted according to

          7  law to the CEQR or to the SEQRA processes.  So we

          8  are beginning with an illegal act, and when I talk

          9  about the rule of law, I'm a lawyer, and I'm used to

         10  dealing with decisions and determinations, that is

         11  what it is all about. Yes, we sometimes settle

         12  things, but some of the things Mr. Miele stated,

         13  well, we decided not to do the Croton because it was

         14  a much more difficult project than the

         15  Catskill/Delaware.

         16                 The EPA has taken a position, where

         17  in a regulation, in a written determination?  Take a

         18  position is not the law.  The EPA has indicated

         19  orally, we're dealing with environmental

         20  regulations, we are dealing with complex statutes,

         21  and we are being told by the DEP that we have to

         22  filter, because the EPA has indicated orally.  Then

         23  finally that they had to sign a Consent Order.  I

         24  found that, perhaps, to be the most ironic statement

         25  of all, how do you have to sign a Consent Order?  By
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          2  nature, you sign a Consent Order because you want to

          3  sign a Consent Order, but we do have option.

          4                 In Massachusetts, just to show you

          5  the contrast, they didn't sign a Consent Order, they

          6  were sued, and the judge in that case who was given

          7  a determination to make without a Consent Order

          8  intervening determined just because the EPA said you

          9  had to filter, just because the water wasn't of the

         10  specifically legal quality, that he would hold a

         11  trial to determine what was the best operation, and

         12  I have supplied you with the citation to their

         13  decision by Judge Sterns in Massachusetts.

         14                 I think the real problem here, as

         15  identified in the 1991 reports is a failure of will,

         16  as a failure of political will, but that

         17  determination was never determination to be made by

         18  bureaucrats.  That is a determination to be made by

         19  the political process, it was not made that way.

         20  What we had was a State, the Feds, and the City

         21  getting together and making stipulation agreements,

         22  none of which were subject to the reviews that were

         23  required by State, local, and Federal Law.  And now

         24  they're coming to you and saying, oops, we have got

         25  a Consent Decree, you have lost your discretion.
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          2                 I will, as terms of discretion, I

          3  will only say this, if you determine that alienation

          4  is necessary and a Home Rule Message is necessary,

          5  is there anyone from the DEP who would maintain the

          6  State Legislature's failure to approve that would

          7  result in New York City being fined?  I would like

          8  to hear a lawyer take that position?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

         10  Miller.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Let me just,

         12  just a few questions here, I'm not certain, I'm not

         13  sure that I would dispute anything that you said

         14  there, but the point is that you said that we have

         15  entered into a Consent Decree and you don't have to

         16  enter into a Consent Decree, and that is obviously

         17  true.  But we're not at a point now in which this

         18  Council is being asked to give advice to the

         19  Department of Environmental Protection or the City

         20  on whether or not to enter into a Consent Decree.

         21  They have entered into the Consent Decree, so, you

         22  know, we don't have the choice for them not to enter

         23  into the Consent Decree.  And you said it is a

         24  contract, and it is a contract and there are

         25  penalties for not meeting your side of the contract;
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          2  isn't that the case?  So are you saying then that if

          3  the Council was to turn down this application, that

          4  it's your view that the court could not impose fines

          5  upon the City for failure to comply with the Consent

          6  Decree?

          7                 MR. KLOTZ:  Okay, first of all, let's

          8  just get one more point that we haven't covered,

          9  right.  You know we're using, reasoning words fines

         10  and penalties kind of indistinguishably here. Under

         11  the statute the maximum penalty payable, under the

         12  statute, by law is $25,000 a day, which is $9

         13  million a year, which is less than the cost of the

         14  filtration plant, which, I mean, which is less than

         15  the cost of the $500 million, it's a factor of like

         16  about one sixth of what it cost to finance the

         17  project.

         18                 But secondly all those fines, which

         19  are under the statute, and I am making suggestion,

         20  being careful of what I say, under the statute, has

         21  led me to a discretion of the court.  So if your

         22  talking about fines imposed by the court, the court

         23  is in no way bound to impose penalties, and that is

         24  what Judge Sterns refused to do at Massachusetts, he

         25  refused to impose penalties. And the statement that
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          2  there had been penalties imposed in Massachusetts,

          3  to the best of my knowledge is incorrect, because

          4  that is specifically the issue Judge Sterns is going

          5  to have a trial about.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Yes, but in

          7  that case the reason that he didn't impose penalties

          8  is because he thought, because it was brought before

          9  him that Massachusetts didn't need to filter its

         10  system.

         11                 In this case, we wouldn't even be

         12  able to put that before the judge, because the only

         13  question would be whether or not we were complying

         14  with the Consent Decree, right?

         15                 MR. KLOTZ:  Except you can seek

         16  modification on new evidence, you can seek

         17  modification on a whole bunch of other areas, but

         18  you have been kind of a passive, I mean, you,

         19  meaning the City Council, has been kind of a passive

         20  spectator in this.

         21                 What does it mean for City Government

         22  that when the regulators make an agreement that

         23  clearly involves violations of Environmental Review

         24  Statute, that clearly involves the commitment of, I

         25  would say, a billion dollars to a multiple project,
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          2  enter into a Consent Decree, and then come to you

          3  and say, oops, look what you have to do because we

          4  went to court and had a Consent Decree?  You have a

          5  discretion under ULURP, under the Charter, which

          6  remains in full force and effect that you have to

          7  exercise. The City has the right to seek

          8  modification, the City has a right to even claim

          9  force majeure, certainly in the case of the State

         10  Legislature, no one is going to argue that wouldn't

         11  be a force majeure.  So the problem that we really

         12  face - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  A lot of

         14  people will argue a lot of things, you know.

         15                 MR. KLOTZ:  Yes, but I mean

         16  seriously, though, I mean if the State Legislature

         17  would refuse to give you alienation, if you ask for

         18  it, that would be a force majeure, I don't think

         19  anybody could argue that it wouldn't be.  But the

         20  point in fact is that you can seek modification.

         21                 What was lacking in 1991 was the

         22  political will, and I think that has changed, I

         23  think you, in this Committee, know it has changed,

         24  the political will has changed, has changed both in

         25  the watershed and in the City, and I think you have
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          2  a right to issue your discretion.  I don't think the

          3  bureaucracy has a right to tie your hands, take away

          4  your discretion, because all you are saying when you

          5  yield to that argument, is that an agreement by the

          6  bureaucracy, which you had no impact on has the

          7  validity to repeal your right under the Charter,

          8  your right under the regulations, and you have to

          9  take what they tell you take.

         10                 Why are we even here, why are you

         11  even having a hearing, if that is the law?  And I

         12  would say to you that the authority is quite clear.

         13  A Consent Decree cannot repeal the law.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Next

         16  panel, Anne Arlen, Community Board #2 in Manhattan.

         17     I apologize Anne, you did have a slip here, but

         18  it was attached to, it was stuck to another one, so

         19  come on up.  Paul Luddinie, I guess it is, Local 282

         20  of the Teamsters.  Joe McSpedon, Local 3, Electrical

         21  Workers, come on down.  Ms. Arlen, please start us

         22  off?

         23                 MS. ARLEN:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We're joined by

         25  Council Member Howard L. Lasher of Brooklyn.
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          2                 MS. ARLEN:  All right, thank you,

          3  Council Member Sabini, and thank you members of the

          4  Council for allowing us to appear here today.

          5                 I would like to say, first of all,

          6  that we are a Board area that receives the water

          7  that this plant would treat, so we have a very

          8  special interest here.  Now very often people say,

          9  well, you know the water will be so much improved,

         10  and it's for the benefit of the people who drink the

         11  water, we're the ones who drink the water, and we do

         12  not consider it a benefit, in fact, we consider it a

         13  hazard.

         14                 I will read our statement, this

         15  statement was passed unanimously last Thursday night

         16  by Community Board 2, so we join the other Boards

         17  who unanimously oppose this project.

         18                 Community Board 2, Manhattan, urges

         19  that you oppose the ULURP action cited above

         20  regarding the proposed filtration plant for the

         21  Croton water supply system.  Much of our Board area

         22  receives drinking water from the Croton system and

         23  we have long opposed filtration of our drinking

         24  water on the grounds any system which traps

         25  potentially, lethal pathogens, such as
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          2  Cryptosporidium, places our populace at risk for the

          3  disease consequences of human and mechanical error,

          4  by which a sudden release of high concentrations of

          5  pathogens can overwhelm weaker, human immune system,

          6  and that happened in Milwaukee in 1993, when half of

          7  the population were made sick from drinking City

          8  water, and 104 of them died because there was a

          9  combination of human and mechanical error. Any time

         10  you have a technologically based system, it should

         11  not be a system that puts lives at risk, if there is

         12  a failure, and that is what is proposed here.

         13                 People with healthy immune systems

         14  typically recover from waterborne diseases, such as

         15  Cryptosporidiosis, but for people with compromised

         16  immune systems, Cryptosporidiosis, in particular,

         17  often is fatal.  That was the case in Milwaukee in

         18  1993, which I just talked about.  Of the 104 people

         19  who died in that outbreak in Milwaukee, most had

         20  immune systems weakened by various causes, including

         21  one teenage girl under chemotherapy for cancer.  She

         22  survived the cancer up to that point, but not a

         23  drink of the City water supply when the technology

         24  failed.

         25                 Our own district not only has the
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          2  vulnerable populations of any district, namely,

          3  those on chemo and radiation therapy and the very

          4  young, the very old and those whose immune systems

          5  are depleted by disease.  We also have one of the

          6  highest concentrations of people who are HIV

          7  positive of any district in New York City.  Please

          8  consider that.

          9                 In addition to potentially, lethal

         10  concentrations of pathogens, the process would

         11  involve a transport, storage, and use of large

         12  quantities of extremely dangerous chemicals.

         13  Please, take into account that technology, all

         14  technology will fail from time to time, either

         15  through human or mechanical error.  For example,

         16  only last Tuesday, a week ago, June 15th, the

         17  Federal Bureau of Investigation seized records and

         18  other evidence from the Department of Environmental

         19  Protection Offices related to possible hazardous

         20  spills of toxic substances, Mercury and PCB a the

         21  Kensico Reservoir, and this was from DEP, the agency

         22  which would operate the filtration plant.  Please,

         23  consider the probability that far from being

         24  protective, this plant would put the public's health

         25  at risk.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  I

          4  want to call, before the rest of the panel starts,

          5  we were mixing pro and con here, but Ms. Arlen

          6  represented a Community Board and we should have had

          7  her on earlier here.

          8                 Is Tom Dowd still here?  Come on,

          9  join the panel. Okay.

         10                 MR. LUDDINIE:  Thank you very much

         11  for this opportunity to speak at this very important

         12  meeting today.  My name is Paul Richard Luddinie,

         13  and I am the Bronx Business Representative for the

         14  Teamsters Building Material Construction, Local 282.

         15    I have been working in the Bronx daily for the

         16  past six years, and working in the Bronx a few days

         17  a week for the past 15 years.  I can remember when I

         18  first started working in the Bronx seeing a large

         19  number of empty lots with nothing but rubble staring

         20  you in the face.  I also remember getting the

         21  feeling of general despair that seems to permeate

         22  some of these neighborhoods.  As I would drive

         23  around I could remember thinking that it looked like

         24  the neighborhood had been bombed in a war.  The

         25  truth of the matter is, the Bronx was bombed.
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          2  Bombed by lack of work and lack of opportunity for

          3  the people that live in the Bronx.

          4                 Since that time, quite a few of those

          5  empty lots have been turned into affordable housing,

          6  and places of business for the residents of the

          7  Bronx.  We have an opportunity here today with the

          8  approval of the Croton Filtration Plant to greatly

          9  add to the recent growth of the Bronx in general.

         10  My experience has shown me that many of the people

         11  working on these construction projects are from the

         12  Bronx neighborhood.  This is a chance for the

         13  residents of the Bronx, especially the young people

         14  to break into the highest paying construction trades

         15  in the country, 6,160 new jobs, many of which will

         16  go to community residents, and millions of dollars

         17  invested in the Bronx.  This is a chance that we

         18  cannot afford to pass us by.

         19                 I realize there will be a certain

         20  amount of disruption in the every day lives of the

         21  people who live in the area, but the rewards to the

         22  people who will be working on the project and the

         23  business that will flourish because of this work,

         24  greatly outweigh the temporary inconvenience caused

         25  by this construction.  Think of your children and
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          2  grandchildren that will get a chance to join a

          3  workforce, second to none, in wages and benefits

          4  because of this project.  I ask you to put the

          5  inconvenience aside, and allow this project to

          6  commence so that the Bronx can continue to grow and

          7  prosper.

          8                 In the words of Abigail Van Buren, if

          9  you want a place in the sun, you have got to put up

         10  with a few blisters.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. MCSPEDON:  Good afternoon, Mr.

         13  Chairman.  My name is Joe McSpedon.  I'm a Business

         14  Representative for Local 3 of the International

         15  Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, 30,000 of

         16  brothers and sisters, proud and strong.  Our union

         17  is a New York institution for the past 100 years.

         18                 I come here today to endorse the

         19  application for the Croton Water Filtration Plant.

         20  After almost 10 years of protracted unemployment, we

         21  need this job.  The location is a compromise with

         22  great potential.  The truck traffic coming from the

         23  Major Deegan and in the side door, and building it

         24  underground, I thought it was all underground, will

         25  certainly abate a lot of the noise and the dust.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            197

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 Filter avoidance may not be timely

          3  and it seems we need an immediate solution.  I know

          4  one thing, we shouldn't have anymore million dollar

          5  fines, if that is true, what I heard here today.

          6                 There will be million of work hours

          7  during construction and hundreds of permanent jobs,

          8  providing much needed income for our members and New

          9  York City, not to mention ancillary revenues a major

         10  project of this type brings.  Some are pushing a

         11  Westchester alternative, I believe this is way out

         12  of line, tax money flowing to Westchester out of

         13  Bronx County and New York City in perpetuity is

         14  unacceptable, and the increased cost of construction

         15  should be saved.  We're going to need that money,

         16  because doling out money to Upstate landowners,

         17  which supposedly saved the Delaware/Catskill plant,

         18  will come back to haunt us in the future, I'm sure.

         19                 So let's not be historically

         20  shortsighted, let's move forward together.  Please,

         21  say yes to this application.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MR. DOWD:  My name is Tom Dowd.  I'm

         24  a Business Representative of Local 14, New York City

         25  Operating Engineers.  All of our members work in the
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          2  Bronx and in the surrounding boroughs. Our objective

          3  is to keep improving the Bronx and all of New York

          4  City, while keeping our members working.  This is

          5  New York City money and should be used here, not

          6  Westchester.  This is a mandated job and must be

          7  built.  Spend the money on construction, not fines.

          8                 When the job is completed there will

          9  be a beautiful golf course on top of the filtration

         10  plant.  I am personally looking forward to playing

         11  there.

         12                 In closing, on behalf of Local 14, I

         13  urge the Council to vote in favor of the project.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Next

         16  panel, Fay Muir, Brenda Irizarry, David Burger.  Fay

         17  Muir, are you here?  Come on down.  You can start us

         18  off, Ms. Muir.

         19                 MS. MUIR:  Thank you.  My name is Fay

         20  Muir, and I'm representing the Northwest Bronx

         21  Community and Clergy Coalition.

         22                 As I understand it, the purpose of

         23  today's hearing is to decide whether the site at Van

         24  Cortlandt Park is the best location for a chemical

         25  water filtration plant, should one be needed.
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          2  However, our ultimate purpose is to ensure clean,

          3  safe and affordable water now and into the future.

          4  My comments cover some of the impacts on the Norwood

          5  community and some concerns about the site selection

          6  and the DEP decision making.

          7                 This industrial facility would be

          8  placed in the middle of a thriving residential

          9  community.  Impacts that would destabilize the

         10  community include noise from 18 months of blasting.

         11  This building would go into 60 feet of bedrock with

         12  a 22 acre footprint and end up 35 feet above the

         13  level of the ground.  The foundation of the

         14  buildings could crack, because they're mostly five-

         15  to six- story apartment buildings there, which

         16  consists of houses of worship, merchants, nursing

         17  homes, the largest hospital complex in the Bronx, as

         18  well as residences and schools.

         19                 An estimated 313,516 trucks will be

         20  required to haul the blasted rock and excavated dirt

         21  away, approximately one million cubic yards of rock.

         22    Traffic increase includes 380 truck trips, 18-

         23  wheelers per day, plus the personal vehicles of

         24  workers.  The main intersection to be used is

         25  already rated an "F" by the DOT. The 23,000
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          2  residents and 6,500 students would suffer

          3  respiratory problems from the dust, fumes, and

          4  particulate matter generated.

          5                 After construction 600,000 gallons of

          6  dangerous chemicals will be truck in and stored at

          7  the site.  Forty thousand tons of toxic waste sludge

          8  will be hauled away daily by one to three tractor-

          9  trailers.  The danger of accidents from traffic,

         10  chemical explosions or spilled toxic waste would

         11  remain a threat as long as the plant operates.

         12                 The EPA requires a Risk Management

         13  Plans under the EPA Chemical Accident Prevention

         14  Rule for facilities that store, handle or use

         15  regulated toxic and flammable substances.  This rule

         16  includes Municipal facilities for public drinking

         17  water treatment. Risk management plans consist of a

         18  five- year history of accidental chemical releases,

         19  off- site consequence analysis which evaluates

         20  potential release scenarios, an integrated

         21  prevention program to manage risks, an emergency

         22  response program, a management system to supervise

         23  the implementation of program elements, and a risk

         24  management plan revised at least once every five

         25  years that summarizes and documents these activities
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          2  for all covered processes.

          3                 If worst case scenarios could affect

          4  the public, the requirement is to analyze and

          5  develop a prevention program that includes

          6  identification of hazards, written operating

          7  procedures, training, and maintenance accident

          8  investigation.  Facilities whose employees respond

          9  to accidental releases must implement an emergency

         10  response program.  Before a site is chosen literally

         11  across the street from where people live, we need to

         12  see and evaluate these emergency procedures.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Ms. Muir, your

         14  time has expired, if you could sum up?

         15                 MS. MUIR:  I would just like to make

         16  a comment that I heard Mr. Miele say that he

         17  improved the water in the Croton by getting rid of

         18  some geese, and I'm very proud of that, and I would

         19  say to him, there are many, many, many little

         20  projects like that in the system that would improve

         21  it, and I would be very glad if he could do that to

         22  improve our water, because that would definitely

         23  have the EPA sit up and take notice.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Actually, what

         25  he was referring to was Hillview, which is a not a
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          2  Croton Reservoir, but rather the Catskill Reservoir.

          3                 MS. MUIR:  It was the Catskill then?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right.

          5                 MS. MUIR:  Well, there are many, many

          6  projects in Croton like that.  I would also like to

          7  take offense at the fact that they're mentioning

          8  that there are no flammable liquids and no, you

          9  know, explosive chemicals that are going to be

         10  stored there. I just wanted to say that because I

         11  was very offended at that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  Brenda

         13  Irizarry.

         14                 MS. IRIZARRY:  Good afternoon,

         15  Council members.  My name is Brenda Irizarry.  I am

         16  a member of Mosholu Woodlawn South Community

         17  Coalition.  I am here today to speak in opposition

         18  of the filtration plant being planned at the Mosholu

         19  Golf Course, for two reasons:  Environmental

         20  reasons, and also, quality of life.

         21                 Environmentally we're using the

         22  parkland as a site. Also, this area is highly,

         23  densely populated, and there is also a subway line

         24  that is heavily used, the Number 4 train, the

         25  Woodlawn/Jerome.
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          2                 As far as quality of life, it was

          3  mentioned here many times about the noise and

          4  blasting.  This would disrupt the use of the park.

          5  Recently there was a playground built on Gun Hill

          6  Road and Jerome Avenue.  Saturn sponsored the event,

          7  also, with the help of community residents.  That

          8  would mean that the children will not be able to use

          9  that park, that playground because of the

         10  construction.  Also, the traffic problems that would

         11  be caused by placing this filtration plant there.

         12  There would be congestion, traffic tie ups, and

         13  detours.  And that area is also heavily used.

         14                 Communities and parkland should not

         15  be compromised, whether it's for economic gain or

         16  for industrial development or land development that

         17  is going on from Upstate New York.  I think everyone

         18  here is very intelligent, and I think we need to

         19  come up with better alternatives.

         20                 I hope that this Council will

         21  consider looking at other options, one of the

         22  reasons is because communities and parks they're a

         23  lifetime, it's permanent.  Construction jobs,

         24  although they do help the community, they're not

         25  going to last forever, they will end when the
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          2  project ends.  So I hope this Council will heavily

          3  consider other options.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

          6  Burger.

          7                 MR. BURGER:  Mr. Chairman, ladies and

          8  gentlemen of the City Council, my name is David

          9  Burger.  I'm here speaking in opposition to the

         10  plant.  The reasons, I grew up in the South Bronx, I

         11  have spent 30 years in that Norwood section of the

         12  Bronx. So my appreciation of that treasure that the

         13  City has there is developed in that context.  I have

         14  spent time living in other parts of the country both

         15  from Boston to the West Coast, so I have also come

         16  to appreciate the treasure we have in our water

         17  system.  I am in awe of the work that your

         18  predecessors on the City Council did, just looking

         19  at the Kensico Dam, the work and care that was given

         20  to the system at that time, shows that we have

         21  treasures here.  We in the neighborhood are not in

         22  opposition to jobs, I have been a union member for

         23  20 years, I have spent months out on strike as part

         24  of that, I know the need for a job.

         25                 Our issue here is the protection of
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          2  the water system, the neighborhood we are concerned

          3  with protecting that system, and we do not believe

          4  that industrial filtration is the way to do that.

          5  In terms of restoring the land back to park use that

          6  is often have been used as an example, I think we

          7  have two examples in the City, one in the Bronx,

          8  Helen Bay Park, the landfill that was there, I think

          9  that was returned to community use, I don't think

         10  that is they way it was originally.  The Staten

         11  Island landfill, again, would the residents say that

         12  that was restored in a manner that was consistent

         13  with what it was?

         14                 I have seen Silver Lake Park in

         15  Staten Island, I had no idea, I can see why that was

         16  a restoration park.  For those of you who were on

         17  the tour of a golf course, which is actually the

         18  driving range, to which the best of my recollection,

         19  was originally open parkland, and that is why that

         20  is old growth trees, it is not rolling hills and

         21  open fields like you see in a PGA golf tour, that is

         22  old growth that needs to be protective that is part

         23  of the environment that we have, which is across the

         24  street within, what, a hundred feet of a subway,

         25  upon which I rely on for my job, and as of three
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          2  months ago, the MTA was not even aware was

          3  threatened by this work as well as the homes, most

          4  of which was built in the twenties.  There has been

          5  no impact statement as to what damage they could

          6  sustain, what the effects would be on that type of

          7  building.  We're talking not only large apartment

          8  buildings, field stone houses.  My mother has one

          9  within a quarter of a mile of that.

         10                 I would also present to your

         11  attention one previous example in the Bronx of a

         12  project that was opposed by the community, the

         13  incinerator in the South Bronx, that was heavily

         14  opposed, we lost that one.  Now, however, that has

         15  been closed, I wonder how much money was spent on

         16  that.  There were three figures that were given

         17  today that struck me, one, we're talking about a

         18  billion dollar plant.  Commissioner Miele said,

         19  estimated fines, if we don't go ahead with this at

         20  $50 million, that is a big difference in terms of

         21  what is possible.  And yet the MOA gives to

         22  reclamation $19 million.

         23                 I just want to end with one

         24  statement, I think if we proceed with this, we're

         25  putting the cart before the horse and killing the
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          2  horse.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Hold on, Council

          5  Member Eisland.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Thank you

          7  very much, Mr. Chair.  Ms. Muir, I just wondered if

          8  you would amplify on your concerns about the

          9  chemicals that will not only be used but stored at

         10  the site?

         11                 MS. MUIR:  I'm afraid I didn't, I'm

         12  sure there is someone here that has the list, but I

         13  didn't bring them with me. But I know that sulfuric

         14  acid is one of them.  I know that cyanide is one of

         15  the chemicals that they use.  Of course, we know

         16  chlorine is flammable.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Can we get

         18  some clarification from DEP on that?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We intend to

         20  have DEP back to address a number of issues,

         21  perhaps, not today.  Next panel, Richard Fitzsimmons

         22  for the Tunnel Workers.  Wendell Shepherd from the

         23  Teamsters, Dennis Milton, Bronx Board of Business

         24  Agents.  Mr. Fitzsimmons, do you want to start us

         25  off?
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          2                 MR. FITZSIMMONS:  Hi, my name is

          3  Richard Fitzsimmons, Jr., and I am the Business

          4  Manager for the Tunnel Workers, Local 147.  Our

          5  headquarters is in Woodlawn at 4332 Katonah Avenue,

          6  not far from the Van Cortlandt site.  We are a

          7  Bronx- based union and have been a part of the Bronx

          8  community for over 16 years now.  Local 147 is

          9  comprised of over 700 skilled and unskilled

         10  experienced workers, all of whom live and work in

         11  the surrounding area.

         12                 I am speaking on behalf of my members

         13  in support of the Croton Water Filtration Plant

         14  proposed for the Mosholu Driving Range.  As you

         15  know, US Environmental Protection Agency sued New

         16  York City years ago to require the construction of a

         17  filtration plant, in response, City officials have

         18  signed a Consent Decree that says a facility will be

         19  built, a site must be selected for the plant by the

         20  end of next month, July 31st.  And I think that is a

         21  very important point, because I noticed that the

         22  opposition has not come up with any solutions or

         23  have even proposed an alternate site, so I think it

         24  is very important that they have not brought up a

         25  solution or tried to come up with a solution or an
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          2  alternate site in the Bronx.

          3                 Work would begin in 2001, the City

          4  will have to pay millions of dollars in penalties if

          5  the schedule is not followed. Federal and State

          6  Environmental Regulators all believe that filtration

          7  is critical to ensure that the Croton water remains

          8  safe to drink.  Since filtration can no longer be

          9  avoided and a plant must, by law, must be built, we

         10  should build it in New York City at the Mosholu

         11  site, so that jobs and economic benefits remain in

         12  the Bronx, at lease cost to taxpayers.

         13                 In its draft, Environmental Impact

         14  Statement, the New York City Department of

         15  Environmental Protection says that the project could

         16  add up to 55 new jobs in the region.  The

         17  construction jobs will be well paying positions with

         18  a living wage that can support a family.  These are

         19  the kind of jobs and wages that should stay in New

         20  York neighborhoods.

         21                 Building in Westchester guarantees

         22  that most of the jobs will go to people in

         23  Westchester, Putnam County and places north.  The

         24  Mount Pleasant and Greenburg alternatives are both a

         25  24- mile driving distance from the hub of the Bronx,
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          2  there is no public transportation, and many of our

          3  members use public transportation to get back and

          4  forth to work.

          5                 On the other hand, Mosholu is easy

          6  accessible by subway, as somebody had mentioned, the

          7  Number 4 line runs close by. It will cost at least

          8  $127 million and you have heard other figures as

          9  upwards as $200 million to develop and operate the

         10  facility in Westchester.  Why should we send out tax

         11  dollars to lower Westchester tax and to improve

         12  their schools and parks in their communities.  They

         13  have already stuck it to us with the New York City

         14  commuter tax, I know that is not too favorable here

         15  today after listening, but it is just another way of

         16  more New York City dollars leaving the Bronx, and

         17  it's crazy.  How could you turn down new business,

         18  when the City is dying for new business?

         19                 We know that the construction project

         20  sometimes create problems in neighborhoods, but

         21  building at the Mosholu Driving Range will have less

         22  impact on the Bronx resident and all other proposed

         23  sites.  The location is accessible from the Major

         24  Deegan so heavy construction will largely avoid the

         25  residential area.   And I might add, I have worked
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          2  in that neighborhood for 16 years, and that

          3  particular area is not congested now, it is on the

          4  outskirts of the neighborhood, there is no real,

          5  close housing, it is in the park, there is no close

          6  housing.  The housing is a sufficient area away from

          7  the project.

          8                 Our union local has a lot of

          9  experience with this kind of work and we know how a

         10  good neighbor as construction, we know we can be a

         11  good neighbor as construction proceeds.  We will

         12  address any issues that arise, we too are part of

         13  the Bronx community and we understand the importance

         14  of being a good neighbor.  And I might add that all

         15  unions are good neighbors, we're the ones that

         16  provide free flu shots in our union hall, we're the

         17  ones that the Councilmen and the Councilwoman call

         18  on when they need our support, when they want to get

         19  elected, they call on us to rally our people, to get

         20  them elected, and then it seems that they are more

         21  interested in trees than people.  People's health is

         22  at risk here, it's water, it's the basis of life.

         23                 Trees, I'm not really concerned with

         24  400 trees, when we have got people in the Bronx that

         25  are starving and that are malnutrition, they are in
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          2  bad shape, they need jobs, jobs are the most

          3  important thing, it restores self- esteem, makes

          4  people feel good about themselves, and it helps the

          5  community.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Fitzsimmons, your time has expired.  Mr. Shepherd.

          8                 MR. SHEPHERD:  My name is Wendell

          9  Shepherd.  I'm a member of Teamsters Local 282 in

         10  the Construction Trade.

         11                 As you know the Federal Government

         12  has determined that a treatment plant is necessary

         13  to protect New York City's water supply from the

         14  Croton Reservoir.  Building this plant at the

         15  Mosholu site will ensure long- term safety of our

         16  water for our children and our grandchildren, at the

         17  least cost to taxpayers.  We want to make sure that

         18  this facility is built in the Bronx so that the

         19  employment opportunities and economic investment

         20  benefits New York City.

         21                 As you know there is a lot of

         22  construction trades that have apprenticeship

         23  programs.  And construction workers in the Bronx and

         24  the Bronx neighborhood would benefit by this.  I

         25  kept listening to different comments around that
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          2  this place had to be built within one mile of the

          3  reservoir.  Well, I'm here to say that that is

          4  exactly where the Mosholu site is, and I also hear

          5  that there is going to be $22 added to my water

          6  bill.  Well I certainly don't want my $22 going to

          7  Westchester County, and I beg of you to approve this

          8  program for the Mosholu site.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         11  Milton.

         12                 MR. MILTON:  Good afternoon, Mr.

         13  Chairman and Council members.  My name is Dennis

         14  Milton, Business Agent of Local 580 Ironworkers,

         15  also, Secretary Bronx Board of Business Agents.

         16                 These reservoirs were purchased and

         17  engineered, designed by our forefathers.  To put

         18  drinking water at our fingertips.  What they had was

         19  foresight.

         20                 Now the ball is in your court to have

         21  this foresight.  Please think back while you were a

         22  child watching TV, some of this Council are a little

         23  older than myself, no offense, most of you are

         24  younger than myself, but do you recall seeing an

         25  episode of Superman?  I know I did, seeing a villain
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          2  trying to contaminate a reservoir.  Just think about

          3  that for a moment.

          4                 Where do we go, it's a great

          5  question, what could we do?  At this moment nothing.

          6    If you have a filtration plant, you can correct it

          7  at any time.

          8                 This plant should be built on this

          9  issue alone to protect our family's, our children,

         10  our loved ones.  Now we have parasites in our

         11  drinking water, not good for our health.

         12                 I have been around the United States

         13  and traveled around the world, met thousands of

         14  people.  They naturally know where I came from when

         15  I started talking, they would smile and say, you're

         16  from New York, and they would smile and they would

         17  say, New York has the best drinking water.  That

         18  made me feel good, it made me feel good inside.

         19                 You know I was proud to be a New

         20  Yorker, born in the Bronx, where the filtration

         21  plant must be built.  We have to take our hats off

         22  to your forefathers, now we have forewomen or fore

         23  persons, things change.  It's time to protect our

         24  children and our future generations to come, like

         25  your forefathers did and come back to one word,
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          2  insight is foresight.

          3                 These water tunnels were a

          4  construction features that would amazed any

          5  engineering students.  The people who built these

          6  tunnels blasting through rock, shoveling, axe picks

          7  and by hand.  Cuts, blood, sweat, broken bones,

          8  deaths, cave- ins, these men gave it their all to

          9  bring all of us something we take for granted, you

         10  turn on a spigot and you have got water.

         11                 So I beg of you to upgrade our

         12  drinking water, but only with your foresight.

         13                 Thank you very much, I appreciate it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

         15  Milton.  The Committee always appreciates fifties'

         16  TV references, thank you.

         17                 Anthony Blackburn, Karen Argenti,

         18  Tina Argenti.  Mr. Blackburn, do you want to start

         19  off?

         20                 MR. BLACKBURN:  By all means.  My

         21  name is Tony Blackburn.  I'm not here as an

         22  advocate, I am a professional economist, who was

         23  retained about two months ago by the Croton

         24  Watershed Clean Water Coalition to examine the

         25  impacts of the filtration plant on the New York City
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          2  Housing market.  I am fairly familiar with the New

          3  York City Housing market by virtue of past work that

          4  I have done.

          5                 I have prepared a report, which I

          6  believe has been distributed to members of the City

          7  Council, and although, I gave no undertaking to my

          8  client that the report would be helpful to them, the

          9  fact that I'm here from Southern California

         10  indicates that they believe that it may be useful to

         11  advance your understanding of this project.

         12                 All major construction projects have

         13  two sides, there are the benefits and there are

         14  costs.  Most of the discussion today has centered on

         15  the benefits, there are claimed benefits in terms of

         16  enhanced safety of drinking water, and there are

         17  claimed benefits in terms of the construction

         18  trades.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Excuse me, Mr.

         20  Blackburn, could we have quiet in the back, please?

         21  Thank you.

         22                 MR. BLACKBURN:  The benefits in terms

         23  of increased safety of drinking water are believed

         24  by many public spirited individuals and

         25  organizations to be negative or non- existent.
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          2                 The cost of the project, however,

          3  roughly equivalent to a new color TV for every New

          4  York City household are not in question.  But how

          5  will the cost burden be distributed across New

          6  Yorkers and what would be the likely consequences?

          7                 The answer is so unacceptable that it

          8  is by itself a good reason to reject this project.

          9  The cost of the water and sewer system have

         10  historically been paid for by a flat rate levy on

         11  residential customers and metered billing of

         12  commercial and industrial customers.  The

         13  regressivity of the flat rate billing system for

         14  water and sewer did not matter so much in the mid-

         15  1980s when the average bill was about $10 per month

         16  per household.  It certainly matters now that

         17  average bills have more than tripled since 1986.  It

         18  will matter even more in another ten years when the

         19  average bill will be close to six times its 1986

         20  amount.

         21                 By 2010 for the half million New York

         22  City rented households at the lower end of the

         23  income distribution, the average bill per household

         24  will be at least 3.6 percent of household income.

         25  Ten years ago the City committed to convert
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          2  residential customers to metered billing.  In view

          3  of the water conservation achievements of the last

          4  eight years, the need for metered billing now seems

          5  highly questionable.  It is even more questionable

          6  when its probable impact on housing and income

          7  distribution are considered.  The combination of

          8  rapidly escalating costs and conversion to metered

          9  billing promises to be a highly, toxic mixture.

         10                 Metered billing will introduce much

         11  greater variation in the amount of water and sewer

         12  bills per dwelling unit. Buildings with larger than

         13  average size households will have larger than

         14  average size bills, and vice- a- versa.  There is

         15  also considerable variability that cannot be

         16  explained by average household size.

         17                 In 2010, when the average bill per

         18  unit is projected to be $695 per annum, many

         19  buildings would have annual bills of $900 or more

         20  per unit, and without a bill cap a significant

         21  number would have annual bills of over $1,200.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Blackburn,

         23  your time is up, if you could sum up?

         24                 MR. BLACKBURN:  I will sum up.  The

         25  financing proposed for this project violates the
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          2  established principles of equity in public finance.

          3  Under metered billing the lower the income, the

          4  higher the charge for safe drinking water.  This is

          5  hyper aggressive and violates every established

          6  principle of equity.  The effect of the project will

          7  be a broad redistribution of economic well being

          8  through the intermedia of the housing system, from

          9  the less well off to the more well off.

         10                 I have three recommendations:

         11                 Do not become complicit in this

         12  absurd financing scheme by granting site approval

         13  for the filtration plant.

         14                 Push City Hall hard for an all out

         15  commitment to securing approval for filtration

         16  avoidance.

         17                 Express your vigorous opposition to

         18  metered billing for residential customers.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Tina Argenti.

         21                 MS. ARGENTI:  My greetings to the

         22  members of the Land Use Subcommittee and to all the

         23  long- suffering citizens who are sitting in this

         24  room with me today.  My name is Tina Argenti. I'm

         25  Chair of the Friends of Jerome Park Reservoir.
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          2                 It is a sad commentary, indeed, when

          3  citizens have to come to their elected officials to

          4  plead for them to protect parkland.  What is

          5  remarkable is that parks, which should be protected

          6  for the benefit of the public, is at present under

          7  siege by New York City decision- makers.

          8                 Today I ask the members of the

          9  Council to vote your conscience and to view Van

         10  Cortlandt Park in the Bronx as if it were in your

         11  own catchment area.  To use parkland for an

         12  industrial facility is extremely threatening to all

         13  New Yorkers.  But the ultimate insult would be for

         14  this governing body to vote to accept and permit

         15  this action to come to fruition.  Therefore, on

         16  behalf of parks throughout our City, I request that

         17  the Council develop zero tolerance for the severance

         18  of parkland for any project that does not conform to

         19  the historical use of parkland.

         20                 The DEP has said that this project

         21  comes down to a choice between clean water or parks.

         22    It is remarkable that this agency should now be

         23  concerned about providing clean water to New York

         24  citizens, when for the past 30 years or more it

         25  ignored the source and allowed the degradation of
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          2  our water supply.  Now that the dirty deed is done,

          3  they proposed to build a huge and expensive

          4  filtration plant to filter out the garbage it

          5  allowed our neighbors to the North to deposit into

          6  our water supply.  They are hypocrites and are

          7  asking all of you to vote for the treatment plant

          8  thereby condoning their past and continuing

          9  irresponsible behavior within our watershed area.

         10                 Do not condone their robbery of acres

         11  of Bronx parklands so that they can do at Van

         12  Cortlandt that which they did not have the will to

         13  do Upstate, namely, to protect our water. What a

         14  disgraceful action from an agency responsible to

         15  provide clean drinking water to nine million New

         16  Yorkers.  They are worthy of the label of Department

         17  of Environmental Destruction, which is not a label

         18  that I coined, but which we found that the people

         19  Upstate use to describe the DEP.

         20                 Remarkably, in spite of the lack of

         21  protection, the wonderful Croton water supply still

         22  meets Federal and State health standards and is safe

         23  to drink.

         24                 In its deliverables, DEP also states

         25  that the plant will be built underground and that
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          2  they will only temporarily use this land, and they

          3  plan to restore it after the plant is built. DEP,

          4  however, does not share how they will hide the vents

          5  needed for this underground monster.  Visualize the

          6  difficulty of park users and golfers tripping over

          7  vents sticking up to provide air for plant workers

          8  and stakes jutting above ground for the cracking of

          9  ozone necessary for the operation of the filtration

         10  plant.

         11                 Don't be led astray by DEP's talk of

         12  security for our water supply, the pretext used for

         13  eliminating Westchester sites.  Since the FBI is

         14  currently investigating DEP's irresponsible conduct

         15  concerning deposits of Mercury into the Kensico

         16  Reservoir, one could easily conclude that the enemy

         17  we have to protect our water from is the DEP itself.

         18    Security is a bogus excused used by DEP's

         19  leadership to cloud the issue presently before the

         20  City Council.

         21                 I urge the members to vote no on the

         22  DEP's plan to build a filtration plant at the

         23  Mosholu Golf Course site, there are other

         24  alternatives.  Thank you for this opportunity to

         25  comment and your patience.
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          2                 MS. KAREN ARGENTI:  Hi.  I brought

          3  some props, you don't have to read them, but they're

          4  here and I will refer to them.

          5                 Thank you for allowing our voices to

          6  be heard at this hearing.  I know you didn't have to

          7  do it, and we all appreciate it.

          8                 Today, I come before you to talk

          9  about site selection.  Not about flushing a billion

         10  dollars down the drain to clean, clean water, not

         11  about one community bearing the burden of an entire

         12  region, not about supplying jobs to the labor force.

         13    I know you know that this proposal violates

         14  zoning, threatens parks, and sets a bad precedent,

         15  so I will not talk about it.  I know you know this

         16  is not a choice between clean water and parkland,

         17  because the water is already clean, that no one can

         18  take away your free choice by signing it away in a

         19  Consent Decree, and that this siting preference is

         20  not based on security, or threats from terrorists. I

         21  know you know that this is not about mitigation, or

         22  mini mitigation, that the City Planning Commission

         23  approved the largest possible project, and there is

         24  no reason for you to send it back. Just vote it

         25  down.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            224

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 Today, we're here to talk about site

          3  selection.  I know you know this agency is making a

          4  mockery of the fair share process.  This is not the

          5  minimum size needed.  I know you know that the

          6  Consent Decree to filter Croton water does not

          7  require a clearwell or a pumping station.  I know

          8  you know that Croton water's average use is 140 MGD,

          9  not twice as proposed at 290.  I know you know that

         10  this whole community, including Jerome Park

         11  Reservoir, has more than its fair share of

         12  facilities.  I know you know we are not just talking

         13  about comparing 700 million gallon Reservoir with a

         14  well, as the fair share application does.  I know

         15  you know you can defeat this ULURP and still enable

         16  the City to meet the Consent Decree milestones.

         17                 I know you know it was impossible to

         18  file a community- right- to- know, worse- case-

         19  scenario, environmental management plan, yesterday,

         20  for the existing condition at Jerome Park Reservoir,

         21  it will never be filed for the future plant at

         22  Mosholu.  I know you know you could not evacuate

         23  hundreds of thousands of residents, workers,

         24  patients, students and teachers in 10 minutes.  I

         25  know you know this is a terrible site, and that
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          2  there are other alternatives.

          3                 So, now that you know that I know

          4  what you know, let's look at some flawed alternative

          5  study to see other places where we might agree.  I

          6  know you know that the EPA Cat/Del site selection

          7  deliverable from July 1998 stated, "The May 1995

          8  Workshop identified as an issue paying a premium for

          9  construction within New York City."  That is in this

         10  book, I have the number on my statement.  The

         11  process for choosing the preferred site for the

         12  Catskill/Delaware Water Treatment Plant not only

         13  excluded parkland early on, but was a totally

         14  different system than was used for the Croton.  I

         15  know you know it is almost the opposite, since we

         16  knowingly are paying here, the premium for

         17  construction within New York City.

         18                 The following chart is a mock

         19  analysis, comparing the Croton Water Treatment Plant

         20  site selection using Cat/Del criteria, and even

         21  though it is a very simple analysis, which I quickly

         22  did yesterday, it's pretty clear that the reason why

         23  they're siting the Catskill/Delaware Plant in

         24  Eastview are the same reasons why they should site

         25  this plant some place else.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            226

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 And I suggest that you have a choice

          3  and your choice is about whether or not this site is

          4  appropriate, not where else is it going to go, that

          5  is someone else's concern.

          6                 I would like to discuss other

          7  alternatives, such as filtration avoidance, but this

          8  is site selection, so it's not really the issue.  I

          9  will bring to your attention the fact that I have

         10  over a year and one- half of documents, once a

         11  month, that show that the water in the Croton meet

         12  all the requirements.  You can get all these

         13  documents from the DEP, I'm certain.

         14                 And I will just read some of the

         15  reasons - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Your time is up,

         17  if you could sum up?

         18                 MS. KAREN ARGENTI:  Okay.  I'm

         19  finished then.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

         21    I'm going to call the next panel.  Let me just

         22  advise you of a housekeeping matter, this room is

         23  reserved for a long- standing ceremony in about a

         24  half an hour.  If you go out and you come back, and

         25  we're not here, we're somewhere else.  We're
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          2  probably going to be next door in the Committee

          3  Room, that is our likely destination, but we have to

          4  give up the room.  I could send you all home, but

          5  I'm not going to do that because you all waited very

          6  patiently.

          7                 Next panel is Michael McGuire, The

          8  Mason Tenders, Dick O'Kane, Queens Board of Business

          9  Agents, James Mahoney from the Ironworkers.  Who is

         10  missing from this one, now?

         11                 MR. MCGUIRE:  I'm McGuire.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You're McGuire,

         13  okay.  O'Kane, are you still here?  And Mr. Mahoney,

         14  present, not present?  Once, twice.  Mr. Concepcion,

         15  Gregory Concepcion, he is coming, okay, that is two.

         16    How about Mr. Vines?  Come on down.  Mr. McGuire,

         17  do you want to start us off?

         18                 MR. MCGUIRE:  Sure.  Good afternoon,

         19  Chairman and esteemed Committee members, my name is

         20  Michael McGuire, and I represent the Mason Tenders'

         21  District Council of Greater New York and Long

         22  Island.  The Mason Tenders' District Council is

         23  comprised of six local unions with a total of more

         24  than 13,000 members, 12,000 of these members are

         25  employed in the building and construction trades,
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          2  approximately 80 percent of the 13,000 live in the

          3  five boroughs.

          4                 My written statement I'm going to

          5  gloss over a lot because we have heard plenty of the

          6  same stuff today.  I hear a lot about people saying,

          7  it should be built, but not in my back yard. I hear

          8  a lot of far from hopes that after nine years that

          9  the Federal Government will reopen the books and we

         10  won't have to do this filtration plant.

         11                 As I see it, under the Consent Decree

         12  the plant is going to be built, the only question we

         13  have here today is where the plant is going to

         14  built.  As we have already heard it will cost

         15  approximately $200 million more to build and run the

         16  plant in Westchester than it will in the Bronx.

         17  There will roughly be $8 million in taxes paid and

         18  very few of the jobs will end up with New York City

         19  residents.

         20                 Conversely, there are many

         21  advantages, only a few disadvantages to building

         22  this filtration plant at the Bronx site. While the

         23  construction process will obviously cause some

         24  temporary disruptions to the community, the

         25  disruptions will be just that, temporary.  What
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          2  disruptions do occur should not be severe.  The

          3  Bronx site is located near the Major Deegan

          4  Expressway so few, if any, construction vehicles

          5  will have to pass through residential areas.  The

          6  site is surrounded on two sides by the remaining

          7  thousand acres of Van Cortlandt Park, and on the

          8  third side by the 400 plus acre Woodlawn Cemetery

          9  and a short stretch of Jerome Avenue under the

         10  elevator tracks of the Number 4 IRT.  In fact,

         11  should construction vehicles leave and enter the

         12  site from a gate setup at the northeast corner, they

         13  will pass no homes or apartment buildings between

         14  the site and the Major Deegan Expressway.

         15  Furthermore, the budget for the project already

         16  includes funds to cover the cost of remedying any

         17  potential disruptions caused by the construction of

         18  the Bronx site.

         19                 Another temporary disruption is in

         20  the use of that part of the park.  The proposed

         21  Bronx site is currently home of Mosholu Golf Course.

         22    Obviously use of this part of the park will be

         23  lost during the construction phase, but relatively

         24  few people currently use this part of the park.

         25  Assuming one force of golfers goes out every 10
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          2  minutes, from eight o'clock in the morning till five

          3  o'clock in the afternoon, only 216 people can use

          4  this section on any given day, and that number, 216

          5  people is based on the good weather and long

          6  daylight hours of summer.  If I were to make an

          7  educated guess, I would say other parts of Van

          8  Cortlandt Park, such as the swimming pool and its

          9  surrounding area, are used by thousands of people

         10  each day, not just a few hundred.  Moreover, the Van

         11  Cortlandt Golf Course is also located in Van

         12  Cortlandt Park, only a quarter of a mile from the

         13  Mosholu site.  Once again, the loss of the Mosholu

         14  Golf Course will only be temporary, the design of

         15  the plant calls for the vast majority of it to be

         16  underground, and the final step of the construction

         17  process will be the complete restoration of the golf

         18  course.

         19                 These are two inconveniences to the

         20  community, but minor when weighed against the

         21  advantage to the Bronx site.  This project,

         22  according to a New York City Department of

         23  Environmental Protection estimate will create up to

         24  5,500 temporary and permanent new jobs in the region

         25  where it is built.  If the plant is built in
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          2  Westchester, few of these jobs will go to New York

          3  City residents. If the project is built in the

          4  Bronx, The Mason Tenders' District Council will

          5  guarantee to fill as many jobs as possible under our

          6  jurisdiction with union members that reside in the

          7  area of the site.  With more than 1,000 of members

          8  living in the Bronx, this should not prove

          9  particularly difficult.  In addition, as the start

         10  date of the project nears, we will begin an

         11  apprenticeship class within Construction and General

         12  Building Labors, Local 79, recruited exclusively

         13  from the community.  We would ask Borough President

         14  Ferrer, the area City Council members, and the local

         15  Community Boards for assistance in filling this

         16  class.  This will result in not just temporary jobs,

         17  but careers in the construction industry, high

         18  paying jobs with very good health, pension, and

         19  other benefits for members of the local community.

         20                 As for the economic benefit of

         21  building the filtration plant in the Bronx, - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. McGuire,

         23  could you sum up, please, your time has expired?

         24                 MR. MCGUIRE:  I certainly will.  In

         25  summation, I would like to say, last month the New
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          2  York State Legislature, and I know this is not one

          3  of the main points today, but without regard to the

          4  residents of New York City, and with no Home Rule

          5  decision from the City Council, repealed the

          6  commuter tax.  This action will eventually cost the

          7  City more than $400 million per year in revenue.

          8  The people from the suburbs can now come to New York

          9  City and avail themselves of our services at no

         10  cost.  Should we now pay them hundreds of millions

         11  of dollars to see to it that we have clean drinking

         12  water, when we can construct the plant here in the

         13  City, spend less money doing it, and create

         14  thousands of jobs for the New York City residents?

         15  Let us not reward the Upstate politicians by sending

         16  even more money that we need here, out of the City.

         17  That money is needed in the community where the

         18  filtration plant is proposed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. McGuire, you

         20  have got to sum up.

         21                 MR. MCGUIRE:  I have got one more

         22  sentence, Mr. Chairman, if you don't mind I have

         23  been here for six hours waiting to say this.

         24                 It could be used in virtually any

         25  community in New York City to improve schools,
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          2  libraries, and child care.  The suburbs have taken

          3  enough from New York City this year, let's not let

          4  them take millions of additional dollars and

          5  thousands of jobs that are needed right here in the

          6  City by the people of New York.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

          9  Concepsion.

         10                 MR. CONCEPSION:  Good afternoon,

         11  Chairman and members of the Committee.  My name is

         12  Gregory Concepsion, and I'm a Bronx County resident

         13  and a union electrician.

         14                 This job, to me, represents four to

         15  five years of steady work, something I haven't had

         16  in the last nine years.  It also represents for my

         17  family, you know, steady income and maybe the

         18  possibility of buying a house in the future.

         19                 The job is said to create about 1,000

         20  construction jobs when it's going at its full term,

         21  it should make about 1,000 construction jobs, and,

         22  you know, it is going to be filled by union people,

         23  whatever.  And they're going to try to fill that

         24  with, I'm guessing, with Bronx residents.  So I just

         25  see it being good for the Bronx in all ways.  And

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            234

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  also, after it is completed there should be about

          3  2,000 permanent jobs, and those are jobs that are

          4  going to be there forever after we're gone, the ten

          5  years, or whatever it is, when we're there.

          6                 But more importantly it is going to

          7  keep Bronx residents tax money in the Bronx, and I'm

          8  all for that.  And it is also ensuring cleaner

          9  drinking water for, like my family and Bronx

         10  families.  It is just all good to me, you know.

         11                 And I see there is going to be

         12  inconveniences, because you know being from the

         13  Bronx, I live by Westchester Avenue, and for the

         14  last five or six years they have been doing major,

         15  major work on the train line there, on the Number 6

         16  Line, and it's inconvenient to a bunch of people,

         17  but, you know, with progress comes inconvenience,

         18  so, you know, we're going to have to live with it,

         19  and that is about it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         21  Vines.

         22                 MR. VINES:  Yes, good afternoon.  My

         23  name is Alan Vines.  I'm a resident of Riverdale in

         24  the Bronx, which borders Van Cortlandt Park, and I

         25  use the park often.  I use Shandler Field which was
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          2  one of the alternative sites.  And, you know, if

          3  they built it there that would have taken away from

          4  my softball for a couple of years, but I was willing

          5  to build it, because I know the economic effect that

          6  this is going to have on the Bronx community.

          7                 The main thing is the drinking water,

          8  I mean, we're up against a wall here, we had a

          9  decision to make in 1991, we didn't make it, now

         10  your hand is being forced.  Okay?  To me it would be

         11  crazy to build these sites in Westchester County,

         12  lease land, pay them tax money afterwards.  I mean,

         13  I don't know what you would be thinking of, like by

         14  increasing the cost by $200 million, it doesn't make

         15  sense.

         16                 We have the land in the Bronx,

         17  believe me, they're going to their best to restore

         18  it to its original site.  The golfers will still

         19  have a golf course, and believe me, Van Cortlandt

         20  Park, that is really a minor section of the park.

         21                 Now construction, and nobody wants

         22  construction, just a couple of years ago, Ms.

         23  Eisland, she was against a building they were going

         24  to build exactly right across the street from where

         25  I live, a nursing home in Riverdale.  And it was

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            236

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  built, I put up with it, and I mean, you know, there

          3  is some inconveniences, but, believe me, we have

          4  been doing construction for years, we know how to do

          5  it, we know how to do it with the minimum effect on

          6  the community.

          7                 That is about all I have got to say,

          8  thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  The

         10  next panel, Elizabeth Cooke from the Parks Council,

         11  Elizabeth Cooke, Joshua Kleinberg, Carl Schwartz.

         12  Ms. Cooke, do you want to start us off, please?

         13                 MS. COOKE:  Mr. Chairman, thank you

         14  for staying this many hours, other members and

         15  staff.  I'm Elizabeth Cooke.  I'm a resident of the

         16  Bronx, and the Executive Director of the Parks

         17  Council, a non- profit, civic organization dedicated

         18  to the preservation and creation of parks and open

         19  space in all five boroughs.

         20                 The proposed placement of an

         21  industrial water treatment plant in Van Cortlandt

         22  Park is one of the most serious threats to the

         23  security of our parks that we know of.  And I heard

         24  the representatives of DEP this morning say that

         25  this is not an industrial plant, but we contend that
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          2  it is.

          3                 If this chemical treatment plant is

          4  built as currently proposed, it will negatively

          5  effect the park and the community around it.  We

          6  fear it will also set a precedent that will haunt

          7  all City parks into the next century.

          8                 The issues confronting us today,

          9  include whether building a water filtration plant is

         10  necessary, and if it is, whether building it on the

         11  least expensive site to the City, its own parkland,

         12  is more important to us than preserving our

         13  parkland. In some ways New York City is paying a

         14  price here because we're an old, dense, we're the

         15  oldest city in the United States.  We're the most

         16  densely developed City in the United States, and we

         17  don't happen to have an extra 20 or 30 acres around

         18  of vacant land.

         19                 Please, vote no to this proposal to

         20  stop this process.  Your rejection will force the

         21  City and the Federal Departments of Environmental

         22  Protection to renegotiate the Consent Decree, and

         23  provide the time needed to develop a realistical,

         24  alternative proposal.

         25                 We're opposed to the proposal before
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          2  you for the following reasons:

          3                 The draft Environmental Impact

          4  Statement does not fully describe the impact of

          5  constructing and operating the filtration plant.  I

          6  heard DEP repeat, again this morning, references to

          7  other facilities that they have in other parks.

          8  They have huge catchment basins for combined sewage

          9  overflow, they have huge tunnels, they have

         10  switching stations.  They do not have anything like

         11  this plant in any other park in this City.  This is

         12  not the same as their other facilities.

         13                 If the City moves forward with this

         14  proposal, it will violate the City laws protecting

         15  parks.  Section 20 of the State, General City Law

         16  prohibits the City from converting parkland into

         17  non- park use without the specific and direct

         18  approval of the State Legislature.  You have heard

         19  some other attorneys testify to this today, I'm not

         20  going to go into the details, but I am here to say

         21  that my organization very much supports this and we

         22  intend to pursue this option.

         23                 If we use our parkland for government

         24  projects that belong in industrial zones, it will be

         25  a corruption of the power entrusted to us.  When I
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          2  here the unions and others say that it will cost us

          3  somewhere between $150 million or more to build this

          4  outside of the City, the implication is that

          5  therefore we should use our parks because it is

          6  cheaper.  If we build this plant in Van Cortlandt

          7  Park because it's cheaper, then why wouldn't we

          8  build every problematic facility from now on in our

          9  parks because it's cheaper.  The whole reason we

         10  have State and City laws to protect parkland is to

         11  prevent a group of people at a given point in time

         12  pressed with a really difficult decision from doing

         13  something like this.

         14                 Leaders of the Parks Council for

         15  years before I worked there and years before my

         16  current board, fought to get these laws passed, and

         17  we tend to do everything within our power to make

         18  sure that they are respected now.  We understand

         19  this is a difficult decision, but we believe that

         20  the Consent Decree can be renegotiated, and we

         21  believe that an alternative proposal to this

         22  outdated technology can be found.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 Oh, wait, I know I am just running

         25  out, but I heard the City say that the chemicals

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            240

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  being truck in and out are not unstable and are not

          3  flammable.  Sulfuric acid, 6,300 pounds per day;

          4  Sodium Hypochlorite, 2,800 pounds per day; Sodium

          5  Hydroxide 12,500 pounds per day.  I don't know what

          6  they mean when they say these are stable chemicals.

          7  If you walked past a swimming pool, you can smell

          8  these chemicals in the air.  These are caustic,

          9  dangerous, they might not be instantly combustible,

         10  but these are dangerous chemicals.  Human error is

         11  always a possibility and if there is a spill it

         12  cannot be contained or handled in a residential

         13  neighborhood.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         16                 MR. CONGDON:  Good afternoon.  My

         17  name is Tom Congdon.  I'm the Assistant Political

         18  Director of the New York League of Conservation

         19  Voters.  I'm speaking on behalf of the League and

         20  our educational affiliate, the New York City

         21  Education Fund.  These two organizations make

         22  environmental protection a priority with New York's

         23  elected officials, political candidates, businesses,

         24  and voters by mobilizing New Yorkers as a political

         25  force on behalf of the environment.  The League and
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          2  NYCEF oppose building a water filtration plant in

          3  Van Cortlandt Park to filter the Croton Reservoir

          4  system.

          5                 We urge this Subcommittee, the Land

          6  Use Committee, and all members of the City Council

          7  to oppose siting a filtration plant here.  There are

          8  better alternatives available, alternatives that are

          9  better for the environment for local neighborhoods

         10  and for the quality of the water that we drink.

         11                 For three reasons, we believe that

         12  the proposal before you today is seriously flawed.

         13                 First, we believe that filtration is

         14  unnecessary. Croton water currently meets and

         15  exceeds all Federal EPA health related standards for

         16  drinking water.  As recently as this past May, DEP

         17  Commissioner Joe Miele asserted in a public notice

         18  that not filtering the Croton is a technical

         19  violation, one that "poses no threat to the public

         20  health."  The quality of Croton water can best be

         21  protected now and in the future by keeping it clean

         22  and protecting its sources, not by allowing it to be

         23  polluted and then building an expensive filtration

         24  plant to clean it up.

         25                 Rather than build an expensive and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            242

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  unnecessary filtration plant, we urge the City

          3  Council to support measures that prevent pollution

          4  of the water supply.  Point and non- point sources

          5  of pollution that threaten future water quality must

          6  be curbed. Plans for development within the

          7  watershed must take into account the health of the

          8  eight million people who depend on the reservoir

          9  system for clean drinking water.

         10                 Second, Van Cortlandt Park, indeed,

         11  any park, is the wrong place for an industrial

         12  filtration plant.  Parkland is invaluable and should

         13  not be disrupted unless every feasible alternative

         14  has been exhausted.  We would not consider building

         15  an industrial plant in Central Park's Great Lawn,

         16  and we should not consider doing so here.  Building

         17  this plant would effectively close this segment of

         18  the park for five to seven years, shutting down the

         19  only City golf course adjacent to a subway station,

         20  and disrupting nearby playgrounds with a dim dust

         21  and debris of a massive construction project.  For

         22  years heavy trucks will clog local streets and

         23  severely disrupt the neighborhood.

         24                 Clearly protecting the watershed is

         25  the best alternative.  However, if the filtration
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          2  plant must be built, we believe that there is a

          3  better location, the Greenburg site in Westchester

          4  County is already zoned for industrial use, it is

          5  not a park, it is not adjacent to recreational

          6  facilities.  Local officials appear to support

          7  siting a filtration plant here, and the impacts of

          8  construction would likely be far less disruptive.

          9                 Lastly, this plant should not go

         10  forward without guarantees that the resulting park

         11  and nearby public amenities will not only be

         12  maintained, but improved.  Moreover, community

         13  benefits should be identified that will mitigate the

         14  massive disruption, the prolonged construction will

         15  inevitably create.

         16                 We urge close consultation with the

         17  community to identify needed mitigation efforts, as

         18  well as neighborhood enhancements.

         19                 For these reason we urge the City

         20  Council to oppose this unhealthy proposal.  The

         21  proposal is bad for the environment, bad for parks,

         22  and bad for City residents.  We look forward to

         23  working with you to implement an alternative.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Now you have to
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          2  fill out a witness slip, which you haven't done,

          3  right?

          4                 MR. CONGDON:  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, because

          6  you were subbing for the other person of the League.

          7    Mr. Schwartz is not here, Carl Schwartz, okay.

          8  Next panel, Joe Loughery from the Electrical

          9  Workers, Sandra Silverman from the Teachers' Union,

         10  Felix Vega from the Electrical Workers.  Kevin

         11  Horrigan from the Electrical Workers, still here?

         12  Come on up.  Mr. Loughery, start, did I pronounce it

         13  right?

         14                 MR. LOUGHERY:  That is Loughery, but

         15  your close.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Loughery, okay.

         17                 MR. LOUGHERY:  That is pretty close,

         18  normally nobody gets that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Do you want to

         20  start us off, please?

         21                 MR. LOUGHERY:  Yes.  My name is Joe

         22  Loughery.  I'm a Bronx resident, also with Local #3,

         23  Electricians.

         24                 Basically, I plan on raising my

         25  family, I have two kids, I plan on raising them, I'm
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          2  investing in my home, in the neighborhood, in the

          3  Bronx.  I don't plan on leaving and running, and I

          4  want clean water, that is the bottom line, also.

          5  And plus I want the stability of knowing that I am

          6  going to have some work in the neighborhood.

          7                 Now to put a project, to get this

          8  project going, not only does it make the businesses

          9  around it prosper, it brings a lot of money into the

         10  community.  The Bronx needs the money, I don't

         11  understand why we would build it in Westchester and

         12  lose all of that money and pay them.

         13                 After completion, I mean, we heard it

         14  here tonight, after completion, basically, the golf

         15  course goes right back on top.  I know it's a

         16  headache during the construction, but everything is

         17  going, and it goes back and it's not a big eyesore.

         18                 I want to look forward to the future

         19  for my children, like I said, I'm not leaving the

         20  area, I don't want to run up to Westchester, Long

         21  Island, I'm staying in the Bronx with my family, and

         22  I would like to have clean water.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         25  Vega.
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          2                 MR. VEGA:  Yes, ladies and gentlemen,

          3  my name is Felix Vega.  I am a member of Local 3,

          4  International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers.  I

          5  am a Bronx resident for over 40 years.  Once again

          6  we have a project proposal that will be beneficial

          7  to many blue collar workers and to many New Yorkers.

          8    A project that will protect our drinking water to

          9  some Bronx and Manhattan residents.

         10                 But then again, we have people that

         11  say great idea, but not in my neighborhood.  We had

         12  this from time to time again, but be it homes for

         13  the homeless, homes for unwed mothers, homes for

         14  battered women, great, great ideas, but not in my

         15  neighborhood. I may be mistaken, but I don't even

         16  remember so much opposition to any project built in

         17  the South Bronx, Harlem, Bed- Sty, or East New York.

         18    Is this opposition for the privileged?  Now what I

         19  say is for water filtration plant, yes, yes, in my

         20  neighborhood.

         21                 One other thing, if this plant does

         22  go through and we do lose some trees, in memory, I'm

         23  going to throw all away my wood furniture.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.
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          2  Horrigan.

          3                 MR. Horrigan:  Yes, my name is Kevin

          4  Horrigan.  I'm a Local #3 member.  I was born and

          5  raised in Yonkers for 33 years. I happen to live

          6  next to a water filtration plant that is based right

          7  off of Riverdale Avenue in Yonkers.  And playing

          8  ball in the streets, in living in that neighborhood

          9  my whole life, you never knew it was there.  I would

         10  just like to be interested in how many people that

         11  are in this room, have visited a water filtration

         12  plant that is currently working?  There is no odor,

         13  there is no enormous amounts of trucks.  Obviously,

         14  that water filtration plant is smaller than the one

         15  that is projected now, but it did nothing to the

         16  neighborhood to where it destroyed the neighborhood

         17  at all.

         18                 The location that you picked is

         19  between the Deegan and Jerome Avenue, there is

         20  nothing that surrounds it.  There are a few homes

         21  and definitely there would be some people

         22  disgruntled by it, but in the long run the project

         23  would be a great thing for the neighborhood.

         24                 After this project is done, I'm sure

         25  there is a few lawyers in the room, why can't you
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          2  somehow make a deal between these lawyers that after

          3  this is done, if there isn't fields being replaced

          4  and golf course being replaced that you hold them

          5  liable? And also, since you got all that water, why

          6  don't you put a swimming pool on top for the kids in

          7  the neighborhood?  Also, why don't you have two cops

          8  on duty, full- time, put lights in the field and

          9  make it the best park in the Bronx?

         10                 All I hear is problems, I don't hear

         11  anybody with solutions.  Solutions with the

         12  blasting, make the blasting at certain times during

         13  the day.  Problems with the trucks, someone said

         14  about combustible materials, there is millions of

         15  gallons of gas being driven through the five

         16  boroughs, being delivered to gas stations all day

         17  long, not too many of them explode in the middle of

         18  the streets, and if they did, I'm sure you guys

         19  would put a stop to it.  So there are some problems,

         20  but you have got to get the solutions out there.

         21                 The traffic, the trucks, I wouldn't

         22  want 194 trucks going by my house, but to have them

         23  come on and off directly from the Deegan would

         24  eliminate that problem.  I don't see any real

         25  problem with the building of this water filtration
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          2  plant, especially when you are going to spend $8

          3  million a year to Westchester, before the job is

          4  done, you are going to spend $40 million, and that

          5  is actually a county I live in, but I work in the

          6  City and that is where my bread is buttered.

          7                 Other than that, I don't see why you

          8  don't build it in the Bronx.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Next

         11  panel from the Sierra Club Atlantic Chapter, Frank

         12  Eadie, Clifford Ginn, are you here?  State your name

         13  for the record, please?

         14                 MR. EADIE:  My name is Frank Eadie.

         15  I'm a member of Community Board #4 in Manhattan, and

         16  I am also the Chair, as you said, of the Water

         17  Committee for the Atlantic Chapter of the Sierra

         18  Club, which covers New York State.  And I want to

         19  thank you for the opportunity to testify, and for

         20  your patience, we're all going to have, I guess,

         21  saddle burns or something, as a result of this day,

         22  I suspect, but we do appreciate your tolerance and

         23  stamina.

         24                 Much of what I had planned to say has

         25  been said already.  I guess that may not shock you
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          2  too much.  However, we have, I have personally and

          3  many of my friends and collaborators have worked for

          4  the last six to eight years on this very project,

          5  trying to get the City to do the right things.

          6                 We were not there, however, when they

          7  signed the stipulation, which said that the City was

          8  going to build a filtration plant.  We didn't know

          9  it was happening, we didn't know when the EPA signed

         10  the letter saying that that stipulation required the

         11  City to filter and met the requirements of Federal

         12  law.  That was a violation of the law, the fact that

         13  we didn't know.  That we were working hard on this

         14  issue, that we were spending much of our time trying

         15  to get the City to do the right thing on this issue,

         16  and we were out of the loop.  We, not just us, but

         17  all of the public, including yourself, okay.

         18                 And what we're here to do today is

         19  basically to ask you to, when you do have the

         20  opportunity to act, to act.  We don't understand how

         21  you can avoid that responsibility.  You have a

         22  decision to make, you are elected officials, you

         23  will be held accountable, and, in fact, the public

         24  official who was responsible for making the

         25  decisions, which were made illegally, has been held
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          2  accountable.  I saw him the other day downstairs, he

          3  is a great guy, shook hands, he was very nice, but

          4  he is not in office now, he might have been, he did

          5  a number of things wrong, and that was certainly one

          6  of them.  And your decision on this issue will not

          7  be forgotten, I can promise you that, and as you are

          8  probably aware it's not just the Sierra Club that is

          9  concerned with this issue. And we are looking for

         10  some help in addressing a very bad decision, which

         11  was made a long time ago by a person who is not

         12  here, by people who are not here, but you do have

         13  the opportunity now to redress, to take a stand, to

         14  say a bad decision was made, we have to reconsider,

         15  we have to work out a better solution.

         16                 And we have been working, literally,

         17  for years, I have spent thousands of unpaid hours on

         18  that, and many of the other people in this room and

         19  elsewhere have done similar activities. This is a

         20  very important decision for us, for the City as a

         21  whole, for the entire region, for the people from

         22  Westchester who are here today, for their neighbors

         23  and friends and colleagues.  I have been to

         24  Westchester, I know how strongly the people in

         25  Westchester feel about this issue, and the DEP knows
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          2  too, they have been the subject of a great deal of

          3  verbal abuse even, for the bad decisions that they

          4  have made.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Sir, if you

          6  could sum up, or you will be subject to verbal abuse

          7  from me?

          8                 MR. EADIE:  Ah, come on, John, when

          9  are you ever abusive?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Time is up.

         11                 MR. EADIE:  But this is a very, very

         12  serious issue, which impacts the entire region, will

         13  for decades, years, centuries, literally, to come.

         14  All of our children will pay the cost, if the wrong

         15  decisions are made, and we ask you to do the right

         16  thing.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         19  Ginn.

         20                 MR. GINN:  My name is Clifford Ginn,

         21  and I work for the Sierra Club, and I have also

         22  worked extensively with the leaders of the Croton

         23  Watershed Clean Water Coalition.  There has been a

         24  lot of talk today about where are the solutions,

         25  well, I wanted to talk to you about the foundation
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          2  that exists within the City's policies on the end of

          3  the State and Federal levels for watershed

          4  protection and for filtration avoidance.  I'm going

          5  to list steps that the Council can take to avoid

          6  filtration, and you will notice that most of these

          7  steps have already been taken on some level by the

          8  City.

          9                 First of all, protection of wetlands

         10  is extremely important, wetlands play an unusually

         11  important role in the Croton watershed, as there is

         12  an unusually high concentration of them for

         13  watershed lands, and that is a lot of the reason why

         14  the water quality has continued to remain so high,

         15  in spite of tons and tons of development and the

         16  feeding of waste water treatment plants directly

         17  into the watershed.  The City has already passed a

         18  resolution asking the Army Corp of Engineers to

         19  adopt the strictest possible standards for

         20  distribution of wetlands to development permits.

         21                 Secondly, we need to purchase

         22  sensitive lands in the Croton.  As you have heard

         23  earlier, we have over $18 million available for

         24  purchase, but not a dime has been spent in that

         25  regard.  The City needs to aggressively pursue

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            254

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  purchases of land within the Croton watershed and

          3  they need to appropriate more funds as needed.

          4                 Third, we need to encourage the New

          5  York State DEC to upgrade streams feeding into the

          6  Croton, this was referred to earlier.  It is

          7  important that we acknowledge their contribution,

          8  streams contribution to our water quality and

          9  enforcing stricter pollution standards that upgrades

         10  entail.  We are already improving waste water

         11  treatment plants, this will make a tremendous

         12  difference as well.  We have existing development

         13  restrictions within the Croton watershed, if these

         14  are maintained and enforced that will go a long way

         15  towards watershed protection.  We need to improve

         16  enforcement of watershed regulations by increasing

         17  funding of DEP's enforcement arm and increasing

         18  police salaries.  We need to ensure completion of

         19  studies already underway for filtration avoidance.

         20  We need to cooperatively develop specific guidelines

         21  for the activities for the New York State Department

         22  of Transportation and other such agencies, all of

         23  which agencies are eager to participate in such

         24  activities.  We need to fund a watershed non- point

         25  source pollution abatement program.  We need to pass
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          2  a resolution to develop a watershed protection plan,

          3  and we need to negotiate extensions of the Consent

          4  Decree construction deadlines.

          5                 There are support for actions of this

          6  sort.  On the State level there has been a letter

          7  submitted to the Council to that effect from the

          8  Assembly asking that the City not alienate parkland

          9  without required State approval.  There is also

         10  support at the Federal level.  I was in Washington,

         11  D.C. Last week, Congressman Engle's Office is

         12  distributing a letter amongst the New York

         13  Delegation asking that the City apply for filtration

         14  avoidance in showing New York Delegation support.

         15  This issue will also be discussed at the New York

         16  Delegation meeting tomorrow, and so I anticipate a

         17  great deal more support coming from that arena.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         20  Ginn, I just, you know, and we don't want to prolong

         21  this any more than it is, but once in a while we do

         22  like to mix nibble.  You admitted that we are doing

         23  some of those things already, but in today's New

         24  York Times, a spokeswoman for the EPA says,

         25  filtration avoidance is not on the table.  So, which
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          2  is it?

          3                 MR. GINN:  Well, it hasn't been

          4  placed on the table, but - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  She is not

          6  willing to consider it.

          7                 MR. GINN:  Well, there are several

          8  factors that have emerged recently, and there is no

          9  evidence from the EPA standpoint of a willingness on

         10  the City's part to really, really do the things that

         11  need to be done.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, you have

         13  said that we're doing some of them now, I think - -

         14                 MR. GINN:  We're doing some of them

         15  now, but we need to push further.  I mean, we have

         16  taken, like we have budgeted some money for

         17  purchasing land in the Croton, but we haven't spent

         18  a dime of it.  There are several areas where if we

         19  just step up our efforts somewhat, it will make a

         20  big difference.

         21                 MR. EADIE:  And the EPA is notorious

         22  for backing down.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Eadie, no

         24  one asked you a question yet.

         25                 MR. EADIE:  Oh, I thought that - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  No, I was

          3  addressing that to Mr. Ginn, based on his testimony.

          4    All right, I'm going to dismiss this panel.  I'm

          5  going to call the next panel, but a couple of things

          6  are going to happen.  Okay, we're going to do two

          7  little housekeeping things, as soon as Council

          8  Member Abel walks in, we're going to call a roll on

          9  the other two items that we have to vote on.  We're

         10  also going to move rooms into the Committee Room,

         11  which means we will have about a five minute recess,

         12  we will have to set up the tape and stuff like that

         13  there.  So, if we get Council Member Abel in here

         14  and a clerk, I'm going to stop the testimony for a

         15  second.  Here is the clerk, now we need Mike.

         16                 When we move into the next room, the

         17  next panel will be Michael Harrington, are you here?

         18    Richard Navarra, John O'Connell, are you here?  We

         19  will have to figure what is next after that.

         20                 All right, Committee members will

         21  turn to page 6 in the hymnal.  I'm going to call a

         22  vote on two items as a coupled vote.  Land Use 458,

         23  Brooklyn Community Board #6 in Council Member

         24  DiBrenza's District.  This is an application by the

         25  Fire Department and the Department of Citywide
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          2  Administrative Services for acquisition of a

          3  property located in Brooklyn for continued use of

          4  the warehouse.  This application has been modified.

          5                 I'm also going to call Land Use 476,

          6  Manhattan Community Board #1, Council Member Freed's

          7  District, application by the School Construction

          8  Authority for a playground for PS 234- M.

          9                 Will the clerk, please call the roll

         10  on those two items, one of which has been modified?

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Sabini.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Aye on both.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Carrion.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Abel.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL:  Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  The vote

         18  stands 3 in the affirmative, none in negative, with

         19  no abstentions, and it is still open.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We're going to

         21  leave the vote open until tomorrow morning, if other

         22  Subcommittee members come in at that time before the

         23  Land Use meeting.

         24                 We're now going to have a recess,

         25  we're going to move over to the other room, maybe
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          2  some people will leave, but you don't have to.  That

          3  was a hint.

          4                 We will continue the hearing.  I

          5  called Mr. Harrington, not here, right?  Mr.

          6  Navarra, not here.  Mr. O'Connell, not here.  All

          7  right, Terry Moore from the Lathers Union, Dudley

          8  Kinsley, the Plumbers, Local 1, Robert Ledwith,

          9  Metal Lathers.  Okay, now, can we also get the

         10  timing system in here, or is that not possible, is

         11  that up and running?  Or we can get an egg timer.

         12  Yes, but where is the, just hold up one minute and

         13  we will, well, actually you can go, and we can sort

         14  of semi- time you on our own.  Three minutes, she is

         15  a lot tougher with the clock than I am. So, go

         16  ahead.  If the light is off, you're on.  The light

         17  must be on, so you.

         18                 MR. MOORE:  Good afternoon, my name

         19  is Terry Moore. I'm a Business Agent with the Metal

         20  Lathers Union, Local 46 here in New York City, as

         21  well as President of the Bronx Board of Business

         22  Agents, which is an affiliated group of the building

         23  and construction trades in the Bronx.

         24                 For the past six years, I have looked

         25  every morning in the hiring hall at the residents of
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          2  the Bronx who have come before me to try to work in

          3  the Bronx.  That has been an impossibility and it

          4  has been extremely upsetting to the people within my

          5  union and their families.  The jurisdiction that I

          6  have, for those of you who are probably unfamiliar,

          7  we also work in Westchester as well, and for the

          8  past six years, the members that I have who live in

          9  Westchester have done fine.  They have cars, they go

         10  to work throughout Westchester and they do just

         11  great.

         12                 I question the motives of many of the

         13  people here with the aspect of location.  I hear a

         14  lot about City parkland and I would like to ask

         15  everyone here to just think how many people would be

         16  here if we said this was going to be put in Crotona

         17  Park in the Bronx, I don't think we would have

         18  anywhere near the number of people that are here

         19  that are fighting for it than we do. People forget

         20  that the water that is going to be used from this,

         21  is going to be used by residents in New York City.

         22  They tend to believe that you can put it up in

         23  Westchester and everybody is thrilled with that, and

         24  they're happy to have it go there.  And that may be

         25  so, because I also travel Westchester and I see a
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          2  lot of the politicians that they're fighting, they

          3  would like to see the water filtration plant put up

          4  in Westchester, and there is a very good reason for

          5  that, and it's jobs.

          6                 The people in Westchester know that

          7  all of this work will fall under the prevailing

          8  wages of New York City and the Tri State area.  New

          9  York City, the wages that the people will earn on

         10  this job aren't the normal wages that people earn

         11  from many of the non- union projects that go on in

         12  the Bronx itself.  This has proposed a problem for

         13  the agents in the Bronx over the past six years, for

         14  me, we have got all the HUD housing that are going

         15  non union.  People can't earn a living on these

         16  types of jobs.  This will be a job that has to fall

         17  under prevailing wages, and the people who live in

         18  the Bronx and all segments of the Bronx, not just

         19  the better areas of the Bronx, will have the

         20  opportunity to work in this project.

         21                 And, you know, I have today that it

         22  doesn't matter, it's not the issue, jobs is not the

         23  issue here.  It's not, maybe, the people who are

         24  here today issues, but to say that you speak for the

         25  Bronx and not include the people who are the lower
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          2  end of income, because they can't get a job in the

          3  Bronx, it does them a grave injustice to come here

          4  and say that the Bronx doesn't want it, this whole

          5  group of people don't want it.  I have 300 members

          6  alone in my local that do want this project built in

          7  the Bronx, they want it built there, it will be a

          8  direct quality of life issue to those people, they

          9  will be able to live there, work there, and have a

         10  job there for the next five years.

         11                 And that is all I have to say, thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. KINSLEY:  Mr. Chairman, Committee

         15  members, my name is Dudley Kinsley.  I represent

         16  Plumbers Local #1, we have about 6,000 members, 488

         17  live in the Bronx.  I have been here for about six

         18  hours now, and I have heard complaints about noise,

         19  dust, traffic, health problems, human and mechanical

         20  error, toxic waste removal, and the one that tops it

         21  all is economic, environmental racism, whatever that

         22  is.

         23                 I would like to address some of

         24  these, as far as human and mechanical error, not to

         25  build a plant in the Bronx because of human and
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          2  mechanical error, if we took that train of thought,

          3  nobody here would take a plane, a train, a bus,

          4  drive a car, mow a lawn, we would have to lock

          5  ourselves in a room and become recluse.

          6                 As far as the toxic waste removal,

          7  any impurities that are filtered out of the water,

          8  am I led to believe that it is better to drink these

          9  things, than remove it from the water?  I don't

         10  think so.

         11                 As far as the noise, dust, and

         12  traffic, and health problems, this site is going to

         13  be located far enough into the park that the noise

         14  from the work site will be less than the noise from

         15  the elevated train that runs on Broadway.  Blasting

         16  mats will be used to deaden and muffle any blasting

         17  that is done, and through modern technology now,

         18  mobile units, enclosed units equipped with water

         19  spray will be used to further deaden the noise and

         20  keep the dust down.

         21                 As far as the health hazards go, I

         22  sympathize greatly with anybody that has asthma, my

         23  sister, herself, as asthma, and I have seen her

         24  gasped for air.  But the problem with asthma is,

         25  nobody knows for sure what triggers an attack.
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          2  Anybody that is saying that the building of this

          3  plant is going to trigger attacks, doesn't know what

          4  they're talking about, because my sister has had an

          5  attack on a camping trip in the middle of the

          6  forest, with pure, fresh air, and nobody knows why.

          7  The problem with the asthma is already there, it is

          8  not caused by the plant, and the accusation that the

          9  plant will exacerbate the problems is pure

         10  conjecture and supposition, has no truth at all.

         11                 Excuse me, I have to get my bearings

         12  here.  I would like to talk about some facts, I have

         13  heard a lot about statistics, numbers have been

         14  thrown around, I don't know where they got their

         15  numbers from, I don't know who made the study, I

         16  don't know how many people are in the study, I don't

         17  know what they compared it to, what the criteria

         18  was.  The only thing I am going to say about

         19  statistics is what everybody says about statistics,

         20  there is lies, there is damn lies, and then there

         21  are statistics.

         22                 The facts are:  Saint Vincent's

         23  Hospital, 12th Street, a few more minutes and I will

         24  be done, Saint Vincent's Hospital on 12th Street was

         25  built.  They destroyed a building between two
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          2  existing hospitals and built another one without any

          3  detrimental effects to the patients in both

          4  hospitals.  If that can be done in Saint Vincent's,

          5  I'm sure they can build a plant in Van Cortlandt

          6  Park without any or minimal discomfort to the

          7  residents.

          8                 As far as the Bronx being silently

          9  against this, is not true, because 488 members of my

         10  local are in favor of it with their families, and

         11  that is not counting steam fitters, electricians,

         12  and carpenters, and everybody else you have heard

         13  from here.

         14                 As far as the jobs go, there seems to

         15  be discrepancy about the number, well, let me be

         16  safe to say that it is going to provide thousands of

         17  jobs for New York City residents, it's going to cost

         18  anywhere from $127 million to $200 million more to

         19  build it in Westchester, which is no drop in the

         20  bucket, and $8 million every year will go to

         21  Westchester in annual taxes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Kinsley,

         23  could you sum up because your time has been up?

         24                 MR. KINSLEY:  All right.  In

         25  summation, building it in Westchester we will lose
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          2  thousands of jobs, it will cause loss of City

          3  revenue, and a heavy fine if we're not started by

          4  2001.

          5                 Upstate New York they build projects,

          6  and if you don't see the sign, you never know the

          7  project was there, because it blends in so nicely

          8  with the surrounding community.

          9                 Jobs for New York City residents are

         10  important, I see no reason why we should ship them

         11  up to Westchester, and why is Westchester so hot for

         12  this?  If it is such a bad project and it's so

         13  detrimental to the environment, how come they want

         14  it in Westchester?  Do they care less about their

         15  residents than our officials do here?  I think not.

         16  The reason why they want it is for the economic

         17  boom, the $8 million every year, which is

         18  approximately one- third their school budget, which

         19  could be used here to improve our schools, which

         20  right now is in trouble, and $127 million to $200

         21  million could be used to improve the Bronx.

         22                 I hope that you make the right

         23  decision and approve this project, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         25  Ledwith.
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          2                 MR. LEDWITH:  Good afternoon.  My

          3  name is Bob Ledwith.  I'm a Business Agent for Local

          4  #46, elected since 1981 by my membership.  I'm also

          5  President of the Concrete Trade Alliance, a

          6  consortium of concrete trades involved in the

          7  construction industry in the City of New York.

          8                 We're not here to threaten anybody as

          9  some previous speakers are, but to appeal to the

         10  board and the City officials' common sense.  The

         11  question really is of dirty water.  The water that

         12  is being sent down from the Croton system is getting

         13  dirtier and dirtier as the days go by because of the

         14  leaching fields and the septic tanks that are

         15  leaking into that water supply as we speak right

         16  now.  As development gets greater and larger in

         17  Westchester County, you are going to see more and

         18  more dirty water.

         19                 The question is where do we clean

         20  this dirty water, and it seems to me to make eminent

         21  sense both in the word cents in C- E- N- T- S and

         22  sense, in common sense, that we build this plant in

         23  the Bronx.  The taxes are going to be generated from

         24  this plant and in the future both income taxes and

         25  sales taxes and other types of usage taxes are
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          2  unbeknownst to us as we speak, we can just get a

          3  handle on it, but we will never know the future, as

          4  far as how great these taxes and the economic growth

          5  that they will feed in the Bronx, and in this

          6  section of the Bronx, where I heard some residents

          7  up there when they had the community meetings speak

          8  against it.

          9                 But when I asked them questions about

         10  what about the dirty water, do you want to continue

         11  drinking dirty water, do you really feel that

         12  Westchester County deserves these jobs and not the

         13  people from the Bronx, who we in our hiring day in

         14  and day out look at and couldn't provide a job for

         15  because of the not in my neighborhood people, or the

         16  people that were ruined, and they're the ones that

         17  made the decisions?  So we have dealt with this

         18  unemployment situation day in and day out, and the

         19  City of New York has suffered as a result of being a

         20  place that was not friendly to business, business

         21  construction and growth.

         22                 This City and its minority

         23  population, particularly, as I see it has one great

         24  platter of opportunity to get out from underneath

         25  the pressures that they have been under, and that is
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          2  the construction industry, and particularly, the

          3  unionized construction industry.  We feel it is

          4  incumbent upon the City to build this in the Bronx

          5  so that we can provide jobs for our minority members

          6  at the wages and conditions and privileges that they

          7  have gained by going through our apprentice programs

          8  and by having earned membership in our local unions.

          9                 Anybody familiar with the questions

         10  up there in the watershed and in Delaware County and

         11  the counties up there know that the City of New York

         12  had to spend many, many mega- bucks in order to buy

         13  land and continue to buy land and to buy off people

         14  who can't build on their properties?  There is a

         15  tremendous feeling up there of being sold out by

         16  their representatives, that the City of New York

         17  took advantage of them.  I happen to have a place in

         18  the Catskills, I read the paper every week when we

         19  go there, and it's unfortunate that these bad

         20  feelings have developed.

         21                 I would just finally like to finish

         22  by saying that we were in Congressman Engle's Office

         23  just a short time ago asking him for his support for

         24  this project for the Bronx.  Realizing that he was

         25  the Congressman for part of the Bronx, and realizing
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          2  how important his input would be to this.  His

          3  suggestion for our minorities and the people that we

          4  represent in our union, which is close to 40

          5  percent, is that we bus the workers up to

          6  Westchester County.   And my answer to him and to

          7  anybody who says that, how much further indignity do

          8  you want people to suffer, busing to school, busing

          9  out to work, no good, build in the Bronx.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Next

         12  panel will be members of the Mosholu Woodlawn South

         13  Community Coalition, Melissa Muniz, Brenda Irizarry,

         14  if you are here, get up.  Oh, she spoke already,

         15  that is right.  Awilda Mercado, no?  Okay.  Dart

         16  Westphal. You are?

         17                 MS. MUNIZ:  Melissa Muniz.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  And

         19  Victoria Kilanowski, come up and join the fun,

         20  Victoria, where are you?  Okay, state your name for

         21  the record, please, Melissa?

         22                 MS. MUNIZ:  Good afternoon.  My name

         23  is Melissa Muniz, and I will try not to be redundant

         24  as my fellow constituents have made their points

         25  clear, nor will I try to undermine the importance of
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          2  a safe water supply for New York City.  However, as

          3  a budding public health official, professional, as

          4  well as a resident of Norwood, living a block and a

          5  half away from where they're proposing to do the

          6  blasting, I ask you, should the Bronx and its

          7  residents be punished for DEP's failure to protect

          8  the Croton watershed and for missing the opportunity

          9  to do so?

         10                 The area surrounding the golf course

         11  is 45 percent Latino, 16 percent Asian, and 15

         12  percent African- American, and to be quite honest

         13  with you, I'm a little skeptical as to how many of

         14  these young men and women will actually be recruited

         15  into these apprenticeships and actually get these

         16  jobs.

         17                 I also ask, should a community be

         18  punished for its diversity through this blatant act

         19  of environmental injustice? And, yes, environmental

         20  racism is a term.  Also there has been very little

         21  mention by proposers of the project any impact on

         22  the elevated Number 4 train along Jerome Avenue, not

         23  Broadway, any barriers built will certainly not

         24  reach the tracks, so are we do deal with disrupted

         25  service, or a more bumpy commutes to and from work?
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          2                 It's not too late, filtration

          3  avoidance, if properly enforced can protect the

          4  watershed and well into the next century. However,

          5  if avoidance is no longer an option, which has been

          6  said time and again, filtration plant should not be

          7  built in a residential area, period.  Industrial

          8  facilities belong in sites zoned for industrial

          9  functions.

         10                 One of the processes proposed was

         11  ozonation for the water treatment plant.  Ozone is a

         12  chemical that when exposed into the atmosphere it

         13  decreases lung function, heart patients, asthmatics,

         14  people with bronchitis and emphysema are placed at

         15  increased risks.  It is also toxic to plant life,

         16  and this is one of the chemicals we want to put

         17  under our plant.  Any error, either human or

         18  mechanical at this plant would have the potential to

         19  be quite disastrous.

         20                 In conclusion, we have options aside

         21  from the parkland, the endangerment of citizens, and

         22  the ultimate corrosion of residential community, and

         23  so I implore the members of the Council to vote no

         24  on the siting of this plant, and, yes, to the

         25  preservation of our community.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

          3  Westphal.

          4                 MR. WESTPHAL:  Thank you very much,

          5  and we all appreciate all of your patience.  I am

          6  the President of the Bronx Council for Environments

          7  of Quality, and I live on Orlope Avenue in the

          8  Bronx, and I will keep this to chapter heading as I

          9  am here to speak against the proposal.

         10                 This whole project is backwards.

         11  Instead of environmental protection, we have allowed

         12  the water to get dirtier and then we are going to

         13  clean it up later.  Instead of the smallest,

         14  possible project to meet the Consent Order, the

         15  agency is trying to ask for the most they can get,

         16  including expanding use of Croton water, new pumps,

         17  and a redundant clear well.  When they tell us it's

         18  underground, it's really 35 feet tall.  They say

         19  they're going to put grass on top of it, but three

         20  years later they can barely get grass to grow on the

         21  Pelham Bay Landfill, which they were also supposed

         22  to remediate.  They say they will fix everything up

         23  the way it was before, but after 20 or 30 years the

         24  Valve Chamber Tunnel, which was actually

         25  underground, doesn't look any fixed up to anybody.
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          2                 It's an industrial use going into

          3  parkland or a residential neighborhood.  The Consent

          4  Decree promises your decision, before ULURP ever

          5  started, they promised that you would vote in favor

          6  of what they wanted, that can't be legal.  They also

          7  promised that the New York State Legislature would

          8  approve the alienation of parkland, if that were

          9  necessary.  They went to the judge and said, we will

         10  deliver you the New York State Legislature. Now they

         11  say, we don't need that, it's not alienation, even

         12  though it is a 35- story building, this can't be

         13  right.

         14                 A couple of nuances, and I don't

         15  think people are misleading anybody, it's just

         16  different ways of looking at things. The actual

         17  construction jobs that were to be developed by the

         18  Shandler Field site, which was the one the

         19  construction industry was proposing before, are

         20  somewhere between 470 and 720 actual construction

         21  jobs.  The proposal here, for the park is 1,080

         22  construction jobs.  The thousands number that keeps

         23  coming up is the extrapolation of all the economic

         24  activity from making this deal to everything else.

         25  The agency admits that can go over anywhere, it
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          2  could spill all over the place.

          3                 The other thing about the Consent

          4  Order, and this is my last point, there are 13

          5  things, 12 things that the agency said they would do

          6  by now, which they have done, including the final

          7  EIS.  Number 13 is obtain final approval of ULURP,

          8  as if it were a foregone conclusion because some

          9  judge said it was okay for them to sign this piece

         10  of paper.  Thing number 15 is legislation, either

         11  asking for and receiving it, that is 14 and 15, all

         12  the rest of them don't have to happen until June

         13  1st, 2000.  Okay.

         14                 The fine for not doing what they said

         15  they would do in terms of ULURP, in three months,

         16  let's pretend it takes three months to work this out

         17  and you don't finish ULURP at this time, or you say

         18  no, is about $450,000 over three months.  It's big

         19  money, but it is not the millions that have been

         20  thrown around here today.

         21                 I hope there is a way to work this

         22  out, I hope you will vote no.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Ms.

         25  Kilanowski.
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          2                 MS. KILANOWSKI:  Thank you.  Many of

          3  the people have gone before me have spoken very

          4  eloquently about the parkland issue, and I just want

          5  to leave you with one thought.  Van Cortlandt Park

          6  began one of its sites, and I know Councilman Sabini

          7  has visited it, and Councilwoman Eisland has visited

          8  it, and I also have visited Tunnel Number 3, and

          9  what I think about what DEP said, and I also work

         10  for the City, and when I served the City I meant to

         11  serve the people, and I don't think that they mean

         12  not to serve the people, but there is definitely an

         13  element of trust that gets lost when you looked at a

         14  site that borrowed 30 years ago, for five years, for

         15  temporary use, that started out as a forest.

         16  Something that looked like this, 30 years ago, and

         17  today, looks something like this, something that is

         18  bare.  And every time we hear when it will be done,

         19  the project is still continuing.  So how can the

         20  community and how can a parks group trust that we're

         21  not, that there is not going to be somebody here 30

         22  years from now using this project as an example of

         23  what trust has not been fulfilled?

         24                 Van Cortlandt Park and every park

         25  reaches out to the communities to serve it, and when
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          2  you look at the area right there, at Mosholu Golf

          3  Course, right at Jerome Avenue, Van Cortlandt Park

          4  is cut into five pieces by three different highways,

          5  and for that community that is their parkland.  The

          6  site that we just went over, Tunnel Number 3 is 11

          7  acres, you know what it looks like, it's

          8  devastating.  When you look at the site that they

          9  want to use, it's more than double that size.  I

         10  can't even imagine what this site could look like.

         11  They're saying in best case scenario it's going to

         12  look like a mound of dirt, four stories high.  Can

         13  you imagine when they said this would be restored,

         14  and it didn't get restored, imagine what this could

         15  look like with this projection?

         16                 What I ask you to do is to vote no,

         17  and to look at parkland as something that is used

         18  for use as recreation, and is entrusted to each of

         19  us.  Please, don't let 30 years from now, and that

         20  wonderful playground, you just voted on, and to

         21  possibly get this fate.

         22                 I thank you, and please vote no.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Next

         24  panel in support, Peter Romdinone, Local 282, Peter

         25  Romdinone, no?  Joe Dunst, Local 282, Joe Dunst, no?
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          2    Ronald Beebe, Local 15, Ronald Beebe.  John

          3  Gilmartin, Local 3, Electrical Workers, John

          4  Gilmartin.  Warren Kogan, Subcontrators Trade

          5  Association.  You can start, Mr. Kogan.

          6                 MR. ELMER:  Actually my name is Jeff

          7  Elmer.  I'm with the General Contractors

          8  Association, but I'm speaking on behalf of Warren

          9  Kogan for the Subcontrators Trade Association.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Please, fill out

         11  a slip, please.

         12                 MR. ELMER:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Before you leave

         14  fill out a witness slip.

         15                 MR. ELMER:  I will.  On behalf of the

         16  Subcontrators Trade Association, we urge you to

         17  support the construction of the Croton Filtration

         18  Plant to be built at the Mosholu Driving Range. The

         19  project is critically important to the City of New

         20  York and needs the support of the Council.

         21                 The EPA has determined that

         22  filtration is necessary to protect the water supply

         23  from the Croton reservoirs.  The City has signed a

         24  legally binding Consent Decree with the EPA to build

         25  a filtration plant. Constructing this facility
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          2  within the boundaries of New York City will create

          3  up to 5,500 new jobs in the region.  If the plant

          4  were to be built in Westchester, not only would we

          5  lose the jobs, but the City would be responsible to

          6  pay over $8 million in taxes to Westchester.  We

          7  cannot afford to send these jobs and taxes out of

          8  the City.

          9                 The plant has been designed to be

         10  underground, and unlike waste water facilities,

         11  there is no potential odors from water filtration.

         12  The golf course will be fully restored and improved

         13  and the location is readily accessible from the

         14  Major Deegan and Jerome Avenue, thus avoiding any

         15  inconvenience to residential areas.

         16                 The Subcontractors Trade Association

         17  represents over 325 contractors and suppliers in the

         18  New York Metropolitan area, and our membership

         19  stands firmly behind this proposal, which we believe

         20  will benefit the City of New York for generations to

         21  come.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         24  Okay, next panel, Margaret Fogarty, Woodlawn

         25  Taxpayers, Margaret Fogarty, not here. Mary Murphy,
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          2  Woodlawn Taxpayers, not here.  Emelia Seubert,

          3  Friends of Highbridge Park, not here.  Well, we knew

          4  we would wear you all down, eventually.  Well, we

          5  all learn.  Okay, let's bring up some folks who are

          6  here from Westchester, who I think are still here.

          7  Marian Rose, Steven Kaplan, George Nikitovitch,

          8  Melinda Holm, she is coming, okay.  We're still in

          9  this fiscal year, you will have to pay the commuter

         10  tax, I'm sorry to tell you, for joining us here

         11  today.  Please, start, Ms. Rose, why don't you start

         12  off.

         13                 MS. ROSE:  Thank you very much.  My

         14  name is Marian Rose, and I'm President of the Croton

         15  Watershed Clean Water Coalition.  Thank you for

         16  having this hearing.

         17                 I would like to say from the very

         18  start that I have an invisible colleague here, he is

         19  from the Sierra Club, Lower Hudson Group, and he

         20  would have liked to testify, unfortunately, he has

         21  to work and so he couldn't stay, and I was wondering

         22  if we could use a little extra time that he would

         23  have taken for our purposes?  I tried.

         24                 Our Coalition represents 51 groups of

         25  well over 150,000 people, I'm told sometimes is
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          2  400,000 people, but I'm not quite sure of that.  We

          3  have religious, environmental community and housing

          4  groups.  We are a very diverse group, a very diverse

          5  coalition from Westchester, Putnam and New York City

          6  and people with the City.  And what unites us is the

          7  protection of New York City drinking water.  We

          8  maintain that protecting the water at its source,

          9  protecting the City's reservoirs and the tributaries

         10  that feed them from pollution is a far more

         11  effective and cheaper in the long run than building

         12  and maintaining a chemical filtration plant.       Of

         13  all the possible sites that are on the DEP's list,

         14  none could be worst than the proposed parkland.

         15  This site, which was not on the original list was

         16  slipped in at the last minute as though it were an

         17  after thought.  It received far less environmental

         18  review than the other sites.

         19                 I would like to go through now some

         20  of the drawbacks of this site, and some of which I

         21  talked about at yesterday's press conference.  There

         22  are going to be a huge number of chemicals stored at

         23  this site.  Now, you have to remember that a

         24  playground is right next to it.  For instance,

         25  sulfuric acid, 16,000 gallons, it's highly
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          2  corrosive; sodium hydroxide, 72,000 gallons highly

          3  corrosive; sodium hypochlorite, 72,000 gallons, this

          4  could produce toxic fumes while burning;

          5  hydrofluoric acid, 40,000 gallons, extremely

          6  corrosive; sodium hyposulfite, 24,000 gallons, very

          7  irritating to the eye and skin, and listen to this,

          8  it can react violently with water, of all things.

          9                 So this is, I would like to remind

         10  the panel that this is next to a playground in a

         11  park.  They have never established a legitimate need

         12  for this filtration plant, a common argument is that

         13  although Croton water still meets all standards, it

         14  will be unable to do so in the future when standards

         15  are raised. Nothing could be further from the truth,

         16  this is absolute nonsense. No standards have been

         17  set yet, these are goals.  These standards are under

         18  intense discussion in Washington, and I know,

         19  because several of us have attended those meetings,

         20  we have got a thick pile of research work that is

         21  being done, and nobody, absolutely nobody has agreed

         22  on the standards.  They may never be agreed on,

         23  those standards may never come into being.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Ms. Rose, if you

         25  could sum up?
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          2                 MS. ROSE:  I'm sorry?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  If you could sum

          4  up, your time has been up for some time.

          5                 MS. ROSE:  All right.  One of the

          6  alternatives to filtration that was discussed was

          7  alum.  They're talking about 458 tons of alum going

          8  into the Croton every day, over a period of two

          9  years.  We are against such a project without a

         10  thorough review under SEQRA, and we don't agree with

         11  the DEP that this is a solution, it's based on a

         12  model, which may be good, but the data is abysmally

         13  lacking.

         14                 So all in all we feel that parks are

         15  for people, not for chemical industrial sites

         16  filtration plants.  Please, vote against this

         17  filtration plant.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         19  Kaplan.

         20                 MR. KAPLAN:  I'm a member of the

         21  Hudson River Sloop Clean Water.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Identify

         23  yourself for the record?

         24                 MR. KAPLAN:  My name is Steve Kaplan.

         25    I'm a resident of Yorktown, New York, Westchester.
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          2    I'm a member of the Hudson River Sloop Clearwater,

          3  and I'm a member of the Croton Watershed Clean Water

          4  Coalition.  I also hold a valid City fishing license

          5  and boating license for the Croton.  You may wonder

          6  why an outsider, such as myself, would come in and

          7  talk to you today about what is presumably your

          8  business, and I am going to ask you to vote no on

          9  the ULURP Resolution.  It's important, these issues

         10  effect me, my family, and many, many millions of

         11  others, of course.  The issues raised have been

         12  about parks and jobs and many, many other things.  I

         13  think that your business has to be concerned with

         14  those things, but the citing of any filtration plant

         15  should not primarily be about golf or jobs, it must

         16  be about which is the best alternative for operating

         17  the City's water producing organs.

         18                 And you know there are many different

         19  ideas about what the best course to take is.  One

         20  hundred years ago, your City officials showed

         21  commendable foresight in building the Croton

         22  Reservoir system.  Siting a filter anywhere

         23  presupposes that a $1 billion filtration plant will

         24  protect the invaluable resources of the Croton

         25  Reservoir and the City that uses them and all the
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          2  citizens.  The cities in Milwaukee, you have been

          3  told today, and also the city of Sydney, Australia

          4  relied on filtration.  People died in Milwaukee,

          5  people in the city of Australia are still boiling

          6  water.

          7                 Closer to home there are organics in

          8  the Rye Lake section of the Kensico Reservoir, and

          9  it is being investigated where they came from, the

         10  airport, DEP, or whatever.  Relying on filtration

         11  will not protect us from organics in our water, nor

         12  will chlorine, of course, because chlorine makes

         13  organics that much more harmful for humans and

         14  animals.

         15                 Filtration is much like closing the

         16  barn door after the horse is gone, and in this great

         17  City there are very few borrowed or left.  One

         18  billion dollars on a filter makes no sense to me.

         19  Spend that money on what does make sense, a regional

         20  solution, including cooperation with the executives

         21  from Westchester, who I believe will work with the

         22  City, and with Putnam.  And there are a number of

         23  things to do.

         24                 Mr. Mankiewicz, who will speak later

         25  has a good idea what to do, acquiring land near
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          2  reservoirs, reducing rain water runoff directly to

          3  reservoirs, reducing non- functional septic systems,

          4  and not allowing septic systems, no matter what

          5  developers say, to be built on land that has very,

          6  very terrible slopes, you can't correct that, that

          7  is a geological situation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  A lot of people

          9  in Westchester would disagree with these things.

         10                 MR. KAPLAN:  A lot people would, I

         11  live there, and I don't disagree with it, I'm with

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.

         14                 MR. KAPLAN:  I'm asking you to focus

         15  on a regional solution, and recognizing that

         16  political boundaries can't hold back what is a

         17  regional problem.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Ms.

         20  Holm.

         21                 MS. HOLM:  Thank you very much.  My

         22  name is Melinda Holm.  I am a member of the Bedford

         23  Barrow Commerce Block Association, right here in New

         24  York City, and we are one of the areas that, but I'm

         25  delighted to be with Westchester, we're one of the
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          2  areas that actually drink the Croton Water.

          3                 And I have worked the Croton Clean

          4  Water Coalition, and I have been a water activist

          5  since early 1995, just in time to be involved with

          6  the regulations governing the water system.

          7                 About a month ago, I met James

          8  Anderson, who is the President of Metcalf and Eddie,

          9  and Metcalf and Eddie is an engineering firm

         10  responsible for looking at whether a) if we need a

         11  filter plant, and, b) if we do, they will probably

         12  be important in building it.  Mr. Anderson told me

         13  that Croton water is cleaner, better, than any

         14  filtered system in the country.  So now if this is

         15  the case, if our Croton water, which by the way, is

         16  a totally beautiful watershed, my parents live on

         17  the other end of it, so whenever I visit them, I'm

         18  always traveling through there, and to think that we

         19  can't spend those resources that we have been

         20  talking about today, the $900 million it would cost

         21  to build a plant to protect this water is hard to

         22  understand.

         23                 So, I guess, we have gone over all

         24  the stuff, the blasting of the rocks, the debris,

         25  the dust, the diesel, the particulates from the
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          2  trucks that will be coming in and out, I just don't

          3  understand why this time and effort and this money

          4  has to be spent to build a plant, if really the

          5  water is good and we're still in a position to

          6  protect it.  So I would urge you to look at ways to

          7  protect our watershed, and not think that we can

          8  build a filter plant and take care of everything.

          9  When you say filter, it implies that everything is

         10  going to be wonderful, and that everything that is

         11  in that water is going to come out.  But, in fact,

         12  the concentration of chemicals at that site, we're

         13  not talking about cleaning water, we're talking

         14  about chemically treated water.

         15                 Another thing too, it's a little

         16  disconcerting to hear DEP officials talk about

         17  things just kind of toss off these sentences, for

         18  example, to say that the chemicals that they will be

         19  using are not combustible, are not highly volatile,

         20  when, in fact, they are very dangerous and toxic.

         21  To talk about how they worked to minimize the impact

         22  of construction, when we're talking about tons of

         23  dust that is going to dug out, when they talk about

         24  how beautiful it is going to look like when they're

         25  finished and done in five years, when we found out
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          2  today that 30 years after starting the Valve

          3  Chamber, they haven't been able to beautify that

          4  site.

          5                 So I urge you to take their testimony

          6  with a little grain of salt, and to deny, to say no

          7  to the filter plant.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         10  Before I dismiss the panel, our Westchester friends,

         11  you would not be among those who would want to build

         12  a plant at all, not in Westchester, not anywhere?

         13                 MS. ROSE:  Correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I'm talking

         15  about the folks from Westchester.  So your not

         16  Greenburg or Mount Pleasant advocates on this?

         17                 MR. KAPLAN:  It wouldn't be the town

         18  of Greenburg, it would have a great adverse effect

         19  there too.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, thank you.

         21                 MS. ROSE:  They would have to dig

         22  tunnels on the Tarrytown Lake, whether you realize

         23  that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, other

         25  people have advocated this, we're interested in your
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          2  opinion.

          3                 MS. ROSE:  The developers.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Anne

          5  Vaisabel, am I saying that right?  Oh, she is not

          6  here.  Okay, Donald Pochner, Julius Shultz, Karen

          7  Shultz.  Jody Wright, are you still here? Come on

          8  up.  Good evening, I guess it is, Mr. Shultz, do you

          9  want us to start us off.

         10                 MR. SHULTZ:  Okay, can you hear me

         11  now?  This is a rare occasion where I get to speak

         12  ahead of my wife.  I'm also a member of the Croton

         13  Watershed Clean Water Coalition.  I'm also a Board

         14  of Governors Delegate of the Atlantic Sierra Club,

         15  and I'm on there Executive Committee.  I wrote some

         16  very extensive notes, which I tore up several hours

         17  ago, because everything that I was going to say has

         18  already been said twice here.  So I'm just going to

         19  make a few comments.

         20                 First of all, about a year ago, I

         21  heard our County Executive, Andy Spano say, in

         22  answer to a question, that he had no idea when or

         23  where the filtration plant was going to be built,

         24  but he knew where it wasn't going to be built.  He

         25  said it wasn't going to be built in Yorktown or in
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          2  any other place in Westchester County, and that was

          3  a quote of a remark, so I think many of our brothers

          4  and sisters from the union can rest easy on that

          5  point. Most of the people in Westchester, except for

          6  a couple of politicians don't want the plant there.

          7  I have heard a good many other remarks, I think

          8  protection of the watershed is very important.

          9                 Last week, I spent a lot of time

         10  reading the newspapers, particularly in Westchester

         11  and the New York Times, it's now called the General

         12  News, it used to be the Ganet, and it was just one

         13  after the other.  First of all, a Captain of our

         14  Croton Watershed Police, Captain Gotto, is suing the

         15  City of New York because he was removed from his

         16  duties, because apparently he did too good a job.

         17  The FBI search was mentioned earlier, and there are

         18  a good many other examples.

         19                 We have a personal example where we

         20  had been working on a water issue which involves the

         21  Westchester County Airport and the Croton Reservoir,

         22  that is the Croton, I'm sorry, the Kensico

         23  Reservoir, not the Croton Reservoir, and we invited

         24  an official of the DEP to join us at a particular

         25  meeting where this thing was going to be aired.  And
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          2  he said he would happily come, he was a no show and

          3  he didn't call to apologize either.  Personally, I

          4  think DEP could do a better job policing, because if

          5  they don't, 10 years from now we're going to be at

          6  this hearing and it's going to involve building a

          7  plant for the Cat/Del and the Kensico Reservoir,

          8  building a plant for the west of the Hudson, a water

          9  protection, which would be a $6 billion plant, and

         10  we will hear an official of the DEP say that if we

         11  had paid attention back in '99, this could have been

         12  avoided.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LASHER:  Okay,

         15  thank you.  Ms. Shultz.

         16                 MS. SHULTZ:  Well, I want to thank

         17  you, again, for this opportunity and your patience

         18  with all of us and hearing us. I also want to make a

         19  plea for filtration avoidance and watershed

         20  protection.  We have been very involved in water

         21  issues in Westchester, and we are astounded and

         22  appalled at the water that is not protected.  We

         23  live right next to the Kensico, and for the last 10

         24  years, we have pleaded with our officials to please

         25  make sure that the Kensico is protected.
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          2                 The Kensico is a good example of the

          3  whole water system, because it is receiving all the

          4  water.  We make a plea that you note that the

          5  Weschester County Airport, which has been called,

          6  the placement of that Airport has been called an

          7  historical disaster, has already so polluted your

          8  Kensico that in 1991 there was a Consent Order to

          9  divert all that pollution.  But at this moment,

         10  according to a scientist that was recently honored

         11  by all the Westchester Legislators, there is a sea

         12  of petroleum underneath the Airport that is moving a

         13  foot a day, give or take a few inches he says,

         14  towards the Kensico, and we asked and pleaded for

         15  monitors a year ago, and we still do not have

         16  monitors for all the pollution, the dangerous

         17  petroleum going into the Kensico Reservoir, which is

         18  already has been very, very polluted.

         19                 I personally called Jim Benson, to

         20  please, Jim Benson is the official that Jules was

         21  talking about that was a no show at the airport, and

         22  he has not even given me the courtesy of apologizing

         23  for not showing at a very major meeting to get these

         24  monitors in place.

         25                 So our point is, we want this water
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          2  protected, and we don't think that the public, I

          3  mean everybody is busy with their lives, and did you

          4  know about this petroleum?  I will bet you didn't.

          5  Did you know about the 1991 spillages into the

          6  Kensico that is endangering the whole water supply?

          7  I will bet you didn't, it's not highly publicized.

          8  But we have all the information from scientist and I

          9  welcome your participation in helping us protect

         10  this irreplaceable water supply.

         11                 And I thank you, I just want to leave

         12  you on this note, that filtered water cannot be, it

         13  is only as good as the water flowing through it, so

         14  please help us protect this.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Ms.

         17  Wright.

         18                 MS. WRIGHT:  Hello, my name is Jody

         19  Wright, and I'm a concerned citizen.  I live in

         20  Croton on Hudson, and I have also participated with

         21  Croton Watershed Clean Water Coalition.  I think the

         22  watershed represents a remarkable resource which

         23  should be cherished and preserved and upgraded and

         24  maintained.  That the monies to be spent should be

         25  spent on purchasing land and on jobs in maintaining
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          2  the water quality and the land around it, having a

          3  buffer zone, and having greater supervision for

          4  violations to the quality of water.  And I think

          5  that this will represent a much more practical and

          6  cost effective way of dealing with this invaluable

          7  resource, which we all know that once a natural

          8  resource has been compromised that it is very

          9  difficult to rehabilitate it.

         10                 So, I just think that it is a

         11  wonderful, remarkable resource which should be

         12  preserved and maintained and upgraded.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  That

         15  is, in each case here you are also anti- filtration

         16  of any sort, all three, right, including in

         17  Westchester?  Okay.

         18                 If we had more people in Westchester

         19  like these two panels, we wouldn't need this, there

         20  wouldn't be this problem. Thank you.

         21                 Roy Felshin, Roy Felshin.  Susan

         22  Howard, Susan Howard.  David Ferguson, David

         23  Ferguson, oh, okay.  Beth Sopko, Beth Sopko.

         24  Carolyn Ratcliffe, Carolyn Ratcliffe.  I think a lot

         25  of people from the Lower East Side for the other

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            296

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  hearing decided to participate in this just out of

          3  the sheer theater, so they filled out forms.  Carmen

          4  Pabon, not here.  Anna Magenta, no.  Jane Sokolow,

          5  come on up.  Alfred Irizarry, I assume you're not

          6  here. Paul Veneziano, come on down.  We have a panel

          7  now.  Mr. Ferguson, you have been here a long time,

          8  fire away.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON:  Okay, thank you very

         10  much.  It's been a pleasure, I would be here anyhow

         11  filming, so it's not so bad, it's just that there

         12  were a few things that I thought that the union

         13  might be interested to hear, but actually it's for

         14  your benefit, not for their's, so it really doesn't

         15  matter.

         16                 My name is David Ferguson, and I'm

         17  one of the founding board members of the HDFC

         18  Coalition, which represents 1,100 tenants sponsored,

         19  limited equity, buildings throughout the City of New

         20  York.  And I'm the Secretary of the Croton Watershed

         21  Clean Water Coalition, and the past- president of

         22  our block association, and I represent the Chelsea

         23  Council Block Associations.

         24                 And I would like to report that I

         25  have been working up in Westchester and Putnam so
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          2  much that I was written up in the papers being from

          3  Westchester.  I live Chelsea, I actually drink

          4  Chelsea water, and contrary to the Commissioner's

          5  opinion, I have been drinking it for 40 years, and I

          6  don't really feel the worse for the wear out of my

          7  65 years.  So his testimony that somehow the color

          8  and odor is bad, it's actually improved over the

          9  last couple of years.  So to build a billion dollar

         10  plant on the basis of the quality of water that has

         11  improved, mainly because they replaced the water

         12  main in front of our house from one end to the other

         13  on 22nd Street from east to west, so that the

         14  infrastructure was improved.

         15                 And the fact is that I read Hevesi's

         16  report on the dilemma in the millennium, and the

         17  money that is needed to really do a job on our

         18  infrastructure isn't there.  And we're spending this

         19  money on top of the $12 billion plus, that Hevesi

         20  points out, that we need for our total, just basic

         21  needs, water, and sewer in the Jamaica water system,

         22  in every borough in Queens and Brooklyn, in even

         23  Staten Island, not so much in the Bronx, although it

         24  cost more because of the rocks in the Bronx, as much

         25  infrastructure. But it's $4.5 billion that we're
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          2  short on our infrastructure, and this plant would

          3  amount to about one- quarter of that, and that would

          4  make some nice jobs for these people.  There will be

          5  jobs for a generation.  So let's get the jobs where

          6  the work is, it is possible.

          7                 Now you talk about the EPA, we have

          8  been down there, I spent a month of my last year at

          9  meetings in EPA in Chicago, in Philadelphia, in

         10  Washington.  We have been down four times to the

         11  factor meetings on the heightened, enhanced quality

         12  standards, and we have heard things like it would

         13  take 330 gallons a day to get a decent dose of

         14  trialamenthines (phonetic).  We have heard that mice

         15  stay in cages, but people move around, so how are

         16  you going to have an epidemiological study.  We have

         17  heard that our dosage used to be very high for

         18  chlorine, much higher than it needed to be, so they

         19  have lowered the dose.  Well it takes years to get

         20  cancer, like 20 years.  If you are doing an

         21  epidemiological study, one of the scientists asked

         22  the other scientists if they're taking that into

         23  account, and nobody said yes.  And that is just the

         24  tip of the iceberg.

         25                 I have got films, you know, hours and
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          2  hours, and I can look at them because I'm invested,

          3  because this is my life right now, because I have

          4  never seen anything in the history of my life in

          5  this City that is more important to the future of

          6  this City, this City is water, it's what made this

          7  City possible.  And the costs, as Tony Blackburn's

          8  report put out will absolutely damage the future

          9  ratepaying capability, the bond ratings of the water

         10  ratepayers, the dedicated revenue stream, the

         11  competitiveness of corporations to locate here,

         12  because these costs are really going up.  According

         13  to the Times, we're spending more than fifty cents

         14  on the dollar right now in interest on these

         15  charges, it's going up to 58 percent in 2003, and if

         16  we have to build that plant in the Cat/Del, that

         17  would move than double all the figures.  Where would

         18  this City be economically?

         19                 So this plant is a waste, we can

         20  protect this water. People in Putnam are coming up

         21  and the people in Westchester to protect our water.

         22  Why can't the DEP get up it?  They have asked, I

         23  have tapes of meetings, I have been up there, where

         24  the DEP is asked them to come to meetings that I

         25  have also taped, where they were fighting to keep
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          2  septics out of flood plains, and the DEP said, where

          3  Mike Principi said, well, you know, I will take it

          4  back to my people and we will talk about it.

          5                 There are things that can be done

          6  short of spending a billion dollars on a plant that

          7  would do more to protect and improve the water.

          8  We're spending tens of millions - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Ferguson,

         10  your time is up.

         11                 MR. FERGUSON:  All right, I will sum

         12  up with this one last statement.  We are spending

         13  tens of millions of dollars, according to the MOA,

         14  to upgrade, as in this very room the last couple of

         15  weeks, Joel Miele had said, this water is going to

         16  be fantastic, 61 sewage treatment plants, right?

         17  The affluent is going to come up to almost drinkable

         18  level.  Now if we're going to do that much good for

         19  a system that was tested when they were building the

         20  Gatehouse, and they put in, they built in the

         21  Reservoir, and this is the coffer dam they built,

         22  the intake right there at the coffer dam, and that

         23  is when they tested the water to decide whether they

         24  should force us to filter.  And, hey, Metcalf and

         25  Eddie who is going to build the plant, also, built

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            301

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  this.  And it was Metcalf and Eddie because I saw

          3  the trailer there.  He said it was Hanson and Soyer,

          4  but it was Metcalf and Eddie, they had the trailer

          5  right here, they come and go.  Mayor's come and go,

          6  but they're always here.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, could we

          8  get on with our other witnesses?  Thank you.

          9                 MS. SOKOLOW:  My name is Jane

         10  Sokolow.  I'm on the Board of the Friends of Van

         11  Cortlandt Park, and I would like to thank all of you

         12  for your perseverance in hearing us all.  I live in

         13  the Bronx, I drink New York City water.  I'm an

         14  ecologist and conservationist.  I believe in clean

         15  water and in open space and parkland and preserving

         16  the quality of life in my community and my borough.

         17  And I also believe in jobs and job opportunities for

         18  the residents of the Bronx, where they are

         19  appropriate.

         20                 The site selection issue before you

         21  is not about jobs, nor is it about not in my

         22  backyard, nor the need for clean water.  It's about

         23  the process that was or in many instances was not

         24  followed to select a site for the Croton Water

         25  Treatment Plant. And it's about setting a bad
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          2  precedent for parkland in the City of New York.

          3                 I'm going to address only a few of

          4  those things, because you have heard most of what I

          5  also have to say, said earlier today.  The original

          6  siting criteria and the Croton Water Supply Extended

          7  Study Program Report specifically states the

          8  exclusion of sites on parklands as one of the four

          9  limiting criteria plight against the list of

         10  possible sites.  Why were these siting criteria

         11  ignored for the Borough of the Bronx?

         12                 City parks and urban woodlands are

         13  set aside for public use, preserving, protecting,

         14  and maintaining them for that purpose does not

         15  include construction of an industrial facility, even

         16  if it is deemed a "critical public facility."

         17  Alternative industrial zone sites exist.  If a piece

         18  of Van Cortlandt Park can be taken for non- park

         19  use, it sets an extremely ominus precedent. What

         20  parkland anywhere in New York City will be saved

         21  from the next critical public facility?

         22                 As you have heard the plan calls for

         23  the facility to be built underground.  Well, it is

         24  true that some of the project will be underground in

         25  the sense that it will be under the surface of the
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          2  present grade, the northeast end will be under 35

          3  feet of soil.  In other words, the elevational grade

          4  change to the site will be significantly altered.

          5                 You also heard a little bit about

          6  DEP's track record in restoring things in the Bronx,

          7  so I'm not going to go into any of that.  But I

          8  would like to say that I don't think that this site

          9  will actually be restored, nor do I think that it

         10  will come back into public use.  In the end I think

         11  it will turn out that the original use is not

         12  possible because of security reasons, or because the

         13  weight of the vehicles and equipment necessary to

         14  maintain the parkland is too heavy for the rooftop

         15  below the ground, or because it might be hazardous,

         16  or because it will not be possible to use the land

         17  for anything due to the massive construction and

         18  alteration of landscape.

         19                 I understand that it is the Consent

         20  Decree that is of great concern to many of you.  I

         21  urge each of you to go back and read the Consent

         22  Decree, it states only that we have to filter the

         23  water.  There is nothing in the Consent Decree that

         24  says we have to have new pumps and a treated water

         25  storage facility.  These components have been added
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          2  by DEP because it will allow them at the expense of

          3  parkland and the surrounding community to have more

          4  flexibility in the system.  The Consent Decree does

          5  not mandate flexibility, it states only that the

          6  Croton water, the water in the Croton system must be

          7  filtered.

          8                 I guess in summation, because that

          9  was the timer, I would just like to say the proposal

         10  to take public parkland and precious open space for

         11  industrial or any other use other than that

         12  acceptable or appropriate for public parkland is

         13  both an offensive misuse and abuse of the

         14  responsibility of those elected and appointed to

         15  public office.  I urge you not to approve the

         16  application before you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Veneziano.

         18                 MR. VENEZIANO:  Veneziano.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Veneziano.

         20                 MR. VENEZIANO:  My name is Paul

         21  Veneziano, and I'm a resident of Manhattan and an

         22  avid user of the Mosholu Golf Course.  Mosholu Golf

         23  Course being chosen as the designated site for a

         24  filtration plant by the DEP and whoever else was

         25  instrumental in the process is a decision that is
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          2  nothing short of disgraceful, insensitive, and just

          3  plain wrong, and all encompassing, complete,

          4  unadulterated, total and absolute abomination.  The

          5  DEP, the Mayor, the Land Use Committee, and the

          6  whoever and whomever else voted yes for it, look the

          7  other way at it, signed off on it, proposed it,

          8  winked at it, and so on and so forth, they should be

          9  ashamed of themselves, embarrassed for themselves.

         10                 The fact that they would usher this

         11  thing along in the direction that it is going, let

         12  alone the use of City parkland, a golf course, no

         13  less, demonstrates all you really need to know about

         14  these people, the arrogance, the insensitivity, the

         15  total lack of respect, consideration, tact, and

         16  class.  It would never happen in Central Park, why

         17  should it be any different in Van Cortlandt Park?

         18  When a golf course is built, it is meant to be

         19  forever.  It reality, it doesn't always work that

         20  way, I'm cognizant of that, but that shouldn't

         21  preclude one from pursuing the intent of the

         22  forever, the idealism of it.

         23                 I happen to be one of those ones, and

         24  an element of what motivates me to be one of those

         25  ones is a direct quotation from page 32 of the
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          2  Environmental Impact Statement, "both the Van

          3  Cortlandt Golf Course and the Pelham Split Rock Golf

          4  Courses would be improved in order to accommodate

          5  additional users.  Likely improvements may include

          6  installation of irrigation systems, expanded tee

          7  areas, lighting systems, refurbished golf cart

          8  paths, improved drainage and turf maintenance."  If

          9  you decipher this statement, you will see that it

         10  makes no sense whatsoever, because the only way to

         11  accommodate additional users is to have more

         12  daylight hours or build more golf courses, not

         13  destroy them.

         14                 All this being said, ladies and

         15  gentlemen, you have a chance to do the right thing

         16  and vote no for this project.  And when you do, you

         17  will have the feeling of contentment when you're

         18  shaving in the morning looking at the man in the

         19  glass, or if you're a woman, when you're getting

         20  dressed in the morning, you will have known to

         21  yourself, I did the right thing.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         24  Frank Schonfeld, Lowell Green, Lowell Green, Alma

         25  Rodriguez, Anne Basen.
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          2                 MR. SCHONFELD:  Are we ready to go?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Go ahead.

          4                 MR. SCHONFELD:  Do I have to push a

          5  button or what?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  If the light is

          7  off, you're on.

          8                 MR. SCHONFELD:  The light is on.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  All right,

         10  you're okay.

         11                 MR. SCHONFELD: I'm okay?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We can hear you.

         13                 MR. SCHONFELD:  All right.  My name

         14  is Frank Schonfeld, and I am here to urge the City

         15  Council, after going through this wonderful

         16  democratic process where we have all kinds of

         17  important facts uncovered to use a little window of

         18  opportunity which we have, and that is, to move the

         19  projected site from the Mosholu Golf Course to the

         20  Shandler Recreation area.

         21                 Now I fully understand that elected

         22  officials, and since you are all elected officials,

         23  you understand, that they are in a difficult

         24  position when they are asked to support or approve a

         25  site where a significant number of their supporters
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          2  or contributors will be very much upset.  So,

          3  therefore, and I don't say they do it consciously, I

          4  respect my representative, Ms. June Eisland, she is

          5  a wonderful lady, but it's only natural for human

          6  beings to find reasons why they do whatever they do.

          7    They have the highest motive, I don't question it.

          8                 Now I'm a senior citizen student at

          9  Lehman College, and I was the coordinator for the

         10  campaign to keep the filtration plant out of Jerome

         11  Park Reservoir, and I am thankful to everybody,

         12  including Ms. Eisland and everybody else for what

         13  they have done, because it's not, at this moment, at

         14  Jerome Park Reservoir.  And also the student body,

         15  and they have some 10,000 students at Lehman,

         16  advocated not only don't put in my backyard, but

         17  they said put it into Shandler, if you must, because

         18  that would be least disruptive.  At that time, there

         19  was no Westchester site that wanted it, but even the

         20  Westchester sites that want it are really

         21  impractical for many points of view, for various

         22  reasons.  You have to build a 30- foot diameter

         23  tunnel, a thousand feet and pump the water up to the

         24  reservoir, plus pay rent and so forth.

         25                 But what I wanted to say that really
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          2  because of this democratic process and free press

          3  and everybody expresses their opinion, many

          4  wonderful things can come.  And I hope that we will

          5  resolve this issue to whatever extent possible by as

          6  much unity as possible.  Now I know that Democrats

          7  blame Republicans, Republicans blame Democrats, and

          8  people, you know, have all kinds of interest to

          9  propose.

         10                 I must say I am a member of the

         11  union.  First of all, I just started.  I'm a member

         12  of the union, the Brotherhood of Painters.  I was a

         13  house painter, I live in the 80 Van Cortlandt Bronx

         14  South since 1945, and I am happy to say that my

         15  union was a pioneer and persuaded the other unions

         16  to say that we don't, we change our mind about

         17  Jerome Park Reservoir, and we say put it into

         18  Shandler.

         19                 Now, I'm asking you, the City

         20  Council, to use your influence with all the parties,

         21  with the Mayor, with the Assembly and the Senate,

         22  and the Governor.  After all everybody, Republican,

         23  Democrat, rich, poor, we all drink water, and if we

         24  have poor water the whole City goes down.  So use

         25  your influence to persuade them to move a little
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          2  bit.  I think we have sufficient window of

          3  opportunity within the Consent Decree to say, well,

          4  you say the Bronx is essential, okay, Shandler is

          5  essential.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Schonfeld,

          7  why is Shandler better than Mosholu?

          8                 MR. SCHONFELD:  Yes, Sir.  It is

          9  better for this reason, number one, Mosholu Golf

         10  Course is adjoining a thriving neighborhood, with

         11  all kinds of health institutions, hospitals.  My

         12  own, I live in the Amalgamated Houses.  Now my own

         13  development which is largely a north development,

         14  you know, naturally occurring retirement community,

         15  and the Saint Patrick's Home, and Clinton High

         16  School.  They are all within the vicinity, close

         17  vicinity of the Mosholu Golf Course.  It is the

         18  second worse possible site.  I suspect from the

         19  information that I have heard, that the reason they

         20  moved from Shandler to Mosholu Golf Course is that

         21  one of the legislatures, who is very influential,

         22  and I don't question his motives, I'm sure he is

         23  convinced, but doesn't want it in Woodlawn, so they

         24  put it into, you know, Mosholu Golf Course.

         25                 Now, even, all legislators have to
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          2  reconsider, you have a tough job, you represent the

          3  City of New York, you have to be patient with those

          4  people, your fellows who are in that particular

          5  district because they're really on a spot.  All I'm

          6  saying is, if we can make a compromise, certainly,

          7  Mosholu Golf Course is much worse than the Shandler

          8  area.  We have the cemetery, and one, just one

          9  important difference.  The Major Deegan has a whole

         10  group of exits and entrances all leading to 233rd

         11  Street and Jerome Avenue.  So you can have the

         12  traffic go to Shandler without even going through

         13  Jerome Avenue by peeling off as they come up the

         14  ramp, and by building a mitigation, by building an

         15  overpass or an underpass onto that ramp, you can

         16  contact, you can get into the various exits and

         17  entrances going north and south without even going

         18  to Jerome Avenue and disrupting, people don't have

         19  legitimate concerns.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, Mr.

         21  Schonfeld you answered my question.

         22                 MR. SCHONFELD:  I'm sorry.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  That is okay.

         24  Yes, it was great.  All right.

         25                 MS. GREEN:  My name is Lowell Green,
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          2  and I live a 10- minute from where this proposed

          3  water filtration is, so it's my neighborhood, and I

          4  live there.  One thing that has not been discussed

          5  today that really bothers me is this proposed plant

          6  is next to the Number 4 subway train, right, it's an

          7  elevated subway train.  I take it when I came down

          8  to here, my husband takes it to work every day.

          9  Also, as the past- president, the Bronx High School

         10  of Science, I know a vast majority of the high

         11  school students in the Bronx use that subway line

         12  daily to get to school and back.  I know they come

         13  to Bronx Science, they go to Clinton, I know the

         14  kids from Woodlawn take it.  There are high schools

         15  all along the Number 4 subway line.

         16                 In the Environmental Impact Statement

         17  there has been zip, to my knowledge on the effect of

         18  blasting for at least two on the effect of this

         19  elevated Number 4 subway line.  It has not been

         20  discussed.  Now I like trees, but I don't want the

         21  subway to fall down, there is nothing about, if a

         22  subway falls, what will happen. Will dynamiting

         23  being going on while the subway runs, whatever?

         24                 As a past PA President of Bronx

         25  Science and a trustee of the Bronx Federation PA
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          2  Presidents, I was instrumental in getting a letter

          3  written to the MTA asking for a letter about this.

          4  I have a reply here and I will give each on of you a

          5  copy, dated March 23rd, 1999, and I quote:

          6                  "Representatives at the MTA New York

          7  City Transit have informed me that the water

          8  treatment facility to which you refer is plan for

          9  construction only within the confines of the Jerome

         10  Park Reservoir, which is located a considerable

         11  distance from the elevated structure of the Number 4

         12  line.  As such, this construction project will have

         13  no impact, no impact on the New York City Transit's

         14  ability to provide subway service to the Number 4

         15  line's customers."

         16                 This is dated March 23rd, 1999.  No

         17  one has raised that issue today.  I don't know if

         18  there has been any studies done on what dynamiting

         19  for two years into 60 feet of bedrock, and before we

         20  vote on any of this projects, I would like the MTA

         21  to go officially on record on what will happen.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Let me just tell

         24  you that our experience in Queens, right now, we

         25  have a subway line being built under an elevated
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          2  train, and while the train is running, and they're

          3  blasting all the time, that is in Long Island City,

          4  the connector for the 63rd Street tunnel is

          5  literally going on underneath the elevated train.

          6  So, I'm kind of amazed too that none of this bothers

          7  it, but they have managed to do it.

          8                 MS. GREEN:  And I will say that if

          9  any student gets hurt, what is the cost factor?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  As I said, - -

         11                 MS. GREEN:  Students, and I mean $9

         12  million is one thing, the cost to Westchester, but

         13  the City will be paying parents for the rest of the

         14  City's life.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You're right,

         16  but as I say, engineering wise, I have been amazed

         17  that they have been able to do that, they have

         18  actually built a subway under an elevated train

         19  simultaneous to where its running.

         20                 Council Member Eisland.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I just want

         22  to make a couple of comments, I was going to, to

         23  prolong the afternoon, but there have been some

         24  comments made in the past hour and a half that need

         25  to be answered.  First of all, somebody spoke a
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          2  while ago, and I don't remember who it was, talking

          3  about the fact that there was not a community that

          4  lives close to the proposed site.  I don't know who

          5  that person thinks the people were that came down

          6  here today, I don't know if they have looked at a

          7  map, I don't know if they have looked at census

          8  track, but there is a viable Norwood community,

          9  they're vibrant, they're struggling, they have

         10  pulled themselves, literally, up by their boot

         11  straps with a lot of help from the institutions that

         12  are in the area, for which we are most grateful and

         13  most concerned that the work that has been done in

         14  recent years will be for naught.  So let me assure

         15  anybody who is still here, who is awake and paying

         16  attention, and all the other people, I think I have

         17  said this at previous times, that that is a very

         18  precious community, and it's there, make no mistake

         19  about that.

         20                 Mr. Schonfeld has articulated his

         21  plan for, I think about two years now, and was the

         22  first, and I think the only one who has supported

         23  the concept of going into Shandler Field, and I know

         24  that it was looked at very carefully by DEP, it was

         25  considered in one of the first, rather as one of the
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          2  original sites that were being considered by DEP.

          3  There is not community support for that, I

          4  understand what he is saying, but I think it is

          5  important to say too, that not only all of the

          6  elected officials, but all of the community leaders

          7  have been very careful not to say, well, don't build

          8  it in Jerome, but do it in Shandler, or don't build

          9  it Chandler, but do it in Van Cortlandt.  The

         10  community has been pretty much united saying and

         11  educating themselves to the concept of filtration

         12  alternatives, and being united and being educated in

         13  that way, I think has been very important, and I

         14  wouldn't want during the last moments of the process

         15  for an impression to be left that the different

         16  communities want this built in others backyards.

         17  People came from Woodlawn today, and people came

         18  from Jerome Park, where the original sites were and

         19  where they are no longer being considered, to say,

         20  don't build it in Van Cortlandt Park.  The community

         21  has been pretty much united on that.

         22                 Let me talk about the MTA, because I

         23  am somebody who has been talking about the MTA for

         24  the past two years.  I am concerned, this is not,

         25  the facility is not an underground subway, it is an
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          2  above ground subway, it's elevated with pillars

          3  there, with a lot of traffic.  It's an old system

          4  and it's the lifeline to the northwestern part of

          5  the Bronx, not the most westerly portion, but the

          6  portion just east of the Broadway line.  It is

          7  extraordinarily important and I feel no surety at

          8  all or any guarantees that there won't be either

          9  damage or interruption of service to the people

         10  there, and certainly don't feel any surety the

         11  people will be totally safe in riding the northern

         12  portion of the Number 4 line, and I think that is a

         13  very important point that you brought up.  It's one

         14  that I neglected to bring up about eight hours ago,

         15  but I'm glad that you reminded me of it, and I'm

         16  glad that we can put this on the record.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  I'm

         19  going to call up the next panel.  It is my

         20  supposition that many of the people who are in this

         21  stack are dedicated residents for the Lower East

         22  Side who are here for other reasons, and couldn't

         23  bear but miss the fun here, but have mercifully

         24  left, so, I will call now, Paul Mankiewicz, Alma

         25  Rodriguez, Anne Basen, Meredith  DeFrancesco, J.L.
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          2  Quinonos, Anne Wilson, Miranda Martinez, Wilfred

          3  Moore, Tony Velasquez, my supposition appears

          4  correct.  C. Garcia, June Downey, Ken Fitch, come on

          5  up.  Okay, Mr. Mankiewicz.

          6                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  Very quickly, in

          7  front of you, you have the data, all the data that

          8  exists on the quality of the Croton water supply.

          9  To summarize from DEP's data which is the only data

         10   - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  But why don't

         12  you tell us who you are and who you represent?

         13                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  Paul Mankiewicz.  I

         14  am the Excutive Director of The GAIA Institute, and

         15  I'm on the New York City Soil and Water Conservation

         16  District Board, the Vice- President of the Bronx

         17  Council for Environmental Quality, and I got my

         18  Doctorate partly overlooking the Jerome Park

         19  Reservoir and the infrastructure, I guess, running

         20  along the viaduct, the aqueduct of Croton.

         21                 Just a couple of very quick points,

         22  you have the data in front of you that exist for

         23  Croton, it's a data that EPA uses and everyone uses

         24  because DEP has done a very good job gathering that

         25  data.  You can see by looking at it there is not net
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          2  decrease in water quality, in fact, it's either

          3  stayed the same or in the cases of turbidity and

          4  maybe color have gotten better.  So essentially we

          5  are in a position of treating the Croton water

          6  supply under French legals statute which is its

          7  guilty until proven innocent.  So, if it needs to be

          8  filtered, even though were to be suddenly dropped in

          9  Massachusetts, it would be better than Quabon

         10  (phonetic) and of higher water quality than that

         11  system or personally any other unfiltered water

         12  quality, water supply system on the planet.

         13                 What I want to point you towards is

         14  the last picture here, which indicates one of

         15  several hundred to many thousands of erosion sites

         16  around the Croton supply, this is from a parking lot

         17  in Brewster.  There is, as I say, between hundreds

         18  and thousands others we're serving now for DEP and

         19  EPA, and it would be wonderful if the City Council

         20  Land Use could mediate between a position that EPA

         21  has taken where they have no data and they're

         22  requiring filtration following the Consent Decree.

         23  DEP has data and is actually looking for a non-

         24  filtration, but in terms of the siting of a

         25  facility, you don't need to site a facility that is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            320

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  not necessary, and no one has demonstrated any

          3  necessity to this date.

          4                 So if you could possibly get EPA to

          5  address the fact that they are moving a legal

          6  process forward without any kind of information,

          7  that would be an extreme service.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Ms.

         10  Downey.

         11                 MS. DOWNEY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12    My name is June Downey.  I am a golfer and a

         13  former part- time employee at the Mosholu Golf

         14  Course.  In addition to the impact that the building

         15  of a water filtration plant would have on the

         16  neighborhood and on the environment, other effects

         17  would be the workers who maintain the golf course

         18  would lose their jobs.  Some of them who have been

         19  there for years, are not young and might have

         20  difficulty finding other work.

         21                 School groups from Bronx Science,

         22  Clinton, Kennedy, Roosevelt, Smith and Truman use

         23  the course and its practicing facilities several

         24  times a week.

         25                 A physically disadvantaged group from
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          2  the Institute of Applied Human Dynamics, which is

          3  located just across the street on Jerome Avenue,

          4  comes over regularly to play ball and buy something

          5  to eat from the clubhouse.

          6                 A special olympics group of about 25

          7  persons holds competitions on the putting green.

          8                 Mosholu Golf Course is the only

          9  course in the Metropolitan area that is so

         10  accessible by subway.  It is a two minute walk from

         11  the end of the Number 4 line to the clubhouse. Quite

         12  a few of the golfers who come on the train from

         13  Downtown are elderly and have no other means of

         14  transportation.

         15                 It is claimed that arrangements will

         16  be made at other golf courses to accommodate golfers

         17  from Mosholu.  On summer weekends it is not unusual

         18  for some 200 golfers to play there on both Saturday

         19  and Sunday, and that number does not include the

         20  people using the putting green and the two driving

         21  ranges.  When there are special outings taking place

         22  at Van Cortlandt, Pelham or Split Rock, Mosholu will

         23  often get the over flow.  The new course at Fairly

         24  Point, which has been suggested as an alternative

         25  would be expensive, perhaps an $80 green fee as
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          2  opposed to $25 tops at Mosholu.  In addition it may

          3  not be very accessible by bus or subway.

          4                 Wild life will suffer, the site lies

          5  along northsouth migration groups and is home to

          6  many songbirds as well as pheasant and wild turkeys.

          7    The park is being particularly beautiful this past

          8  spring with mature Empress trees and Tulip trees in

          9  full flower.  They will probably have to be cut

         10  down.

         11                 Can this little gem of a park really

         12  be restored some 10 years down the line?

         13                 Thank you for your consideration.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         15  Fitch.

         16                 MR. FITCH:  My name is Ken Fitch.

         17  I'm a native New Yorker and I live in Manhattan.  I

         18  am also a founding member of the National

         19  Organization of Friends for Parks and Public Land.

         20                 Van Cortlandt Park is one of the

         21  great places of the City.  I have known this park in

         22  the northern watershed throughout my life.  As a

         23  park, Van Cortlandt Park serves as a repository,

         24  both symbolically and in actuality for our natural

         25  and civic history.  It is a place where the natural
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          2  character of our land is retained.  It is a place

          3  where one recreates one's human bond with the land,

          4  the natural environment, and our history.  This park

          5  and its surrounding area is a place that bears

          6  evidence to our historic and symbolic connection

          7  with the land, from the native Americans who first

          8  lived on this land, the Van Cortlandt's who settled

          9  and farmed here, to George Washington, who fought to

         10  claim the land for the people of a new nation, and

         11  to the designation of Woodlawn Cemetery as the final

         12  resting place of Herman Melville, Fearello

         13  LaGuardia, Duke Ellington, Miles Davis, and others.

         14                 The park also functions as a place of

         15  transition for the City, it is a destination, but

         16  also an entryway.  A place of transition from

         17  suburban to city, from train to bus, from work to

         18  home.  The magnificent wooded greens in vista of the

         19  Woodlawn Station provide a place of residual calm.

         20  The terrain and the magnificent grove of trees where

         21  their shades of our light and temperatures, and

         22  trees so old that they may have seen the last Indian

         23  battle, serve as a place for reconnecting us with

         24  our root, our past, but also with nature, in ways

         25  that speak deeply to us.
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          2                 Why then, when other alternatives

          3  exist would one destroy this place that so deeply

          4  resides in our experience?  The proposed action

          5  reflects a vision that is unnatural and hazardous,

          6  envisioning the presence of a chemical filtration

          7  plant in a public park is a chemically induced

          8  hallucination, and represents an aberrant abdication

          9  of the City's responsibility to its citizens.

         10  Comprising and degrading their quality of life and

         11  their sense of well being, and the City already

         12  overwhelmed with stress and compression, here is a

         13  facility design for intensification, not relief.

         14  This place, which is the entry to our experience

         15  with natural world should not be an entry for a

         16  daily, chemical procession of potential nightmares

         17  concentrations and constant transfers, not of

         18  persons and visions, but chemicals that burn the

         19  skin, the eyes and the insides.

         20                 As an 11- year- old boy who lives

         21  nearby has said, "If a truck from the plant crashes,

         22  someone might get hurt, get a disease, or even die."

         23    And this is a place where the nearby streets

         24  recorded 79 accidents in the past three years, a

         25  figure that stands without the future considerations
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          2  of a children's medical facility and the expected

          3  190 trucks a day.  As the young man said, now I'm

          4  sure if the plant is built, something bad is sure to

          5  happen, I just hope it doesn't be built.

          6                 One speaks of costs, what is the cost

          7  of life and breath?  And what do you do at three

          8  o'clock in the morning when your asthmatic child is

          9  gasping for breath trapped in his or her body,

         10  unable to breathe, what do you do?  You do anything

         11  you can to eliminate the conditions which contribute

         12  to this nightmare.

         13                 We are in a city, and what happens

         14  here affects and effects all of us, just as surely

         15  as the dust from the site will enter the doors of

         16  those subway cars in the station overlooking the

         17  site and will travel throughout the lifeline of this

         18  City, the same dust that will enter the lungs of

         19  each resident of the neighborhood and travel

         20  throughout each individual respiration.

         21                 And what is the answer?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Finch, your

         23  time is expired, if you could just sum up.

         24                 MR. FINCH:  What is the answer?  The

         25  answer exists, it exists in the natural environment
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          2  that has been given to us, it exists in the

          3  watershed which in its totality filters what may be

          4  harmful, and in the parks which offer balance to

          5  those hazards we have created in concentration.

          6                 In closing, remember, the name of the

          7  station at the end of the line is Woodlawn, not

          8  sludge lawn.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Tim

         11  Becker, Tim Becker, Kirjath Spence, Kirjath Spence,

         12  and then, last, but not least, Robert of Tudor City,

         13  refused to allow his last name to be used.

         14                 Here is what we're going to do gang,

         15  we have exhausted the witnesses, is there anyone

         16  here that wants to testify that hasn't signed up

         17  yet?  Good, okay.

         18                 We will recess this hearing until

         19  tomorrow morning for voting purposes on the other

         20  two items, that has nothing to do with the siting in

         21  Van Cortlandt, which is Land Use 471.  We will

         22  recess again to have a follow- up hearing and an

         23  anticipated vote on Tuesday the 29th of June at

         24  11:00 a.m., at a location to be determined.  You can

         25  call City Hall and find out where we're going to be,
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          2  we may be in this building, we may be in the

          3  building across the street.  Eleven o'clock on the

          4  29th, at that time we will reconvene again, we will

          5  ask DEP any follow- up questions that we may have

          6  had as a result of the questions raised during the

          7  hearing, and Parks, or anyone else that we can round

          8  up that we have questions for.  We will not take

          9  testimony from anyone else at that time, we will

         10  vote.  If there are no modifications, there will be

         11  a Land Use meeting subsequent to that and then a

         12  full Council meeting after that.

         13                 You can find out or confirm the exact

         14  date and time of the next hearing by calling us here

         15  at 212- 788- 7302, that is our Land Use Division, I

         16  guess, and, or you can find it on the Web at

         17  www.Council.nyc.ny.us, and there is a point on our

         18  homepage where you can look up any scheduled

         19  hearings.

         20                 I want to thank our dedicated Land

         21  Use Staff, I want to thank Council Member Abel, who

         22  is while in the minority our hardest working member,

         23  and Council Member Eisland for sticking through all

         24  of this.  And I will recess the meeting until

         25  tomorrow.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 (Hearing recessed at 5:50 p.m.)

          4                 (The following testimony was read

          5  into the record.)

          6

          7  Testimony of:

          8  Joseph Jamison

          9  New York State AFL- CIO

         10

         11                 My name is Joseph Jamison, and I am

         12  Research Director for the New York State AFL- CIO.

         13  I am representing President Dennis Hughes.  Our

         14  state labor federation is comprised of 3,000 local

         15  unions, with 2.5 million members in New York.   I am

         16  speaking today to urge the members of the City

         17  Council to support the construction of the Croton

         18  water treatment plant in the Bronx on the Mosholu

         19  Golf Course in order to ensure the safety of our

         20  water supply for our children and grandchildren.

         21                 Several years ago, New York City

         22  officials signed a Consent Decree with the federal

         23  courts and the EPA that commits us to filtration.

         24  If a site is not selected for the plant by the end

         25  of July, and if construction does not start by
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          2  September 2001, the City will be fined millions of

          3  dollars.   While no one wants to build unnecessary

          4  infrastructure, federal and state environmental

          5  regulators all concur that a filter plant is

          6  necessary to assure that Croton water remains safe.

          7  We believe that since the facility must now be

          8  developed, it belongs at the Mosholu site.

          9                 Building at Mosholu will cause the

         10  least amount of disruption to neighborhood residents

         11  and would cost less than the Westchester

         12  alternatives.  The location can easily be reached by

         13  highway and truck routes, thus assuring that heavy

         14  construction equipment avoids residential

         15  communities.  At other locations, the construction

         16  could impact surrounding neighborhoods.  The

         17  contractors association and unions have all pledged

         18  to work with area community boards to address issues

         19  related to transportation and make sure noise and

         20  dust from construction are minimized.

         21                 Opponents of this project sometimes

         22  seem to neglect the fact that all the operationally

         23  acceptable Westchester alternative sites would

         24  require split facilities.  Related facilities would

         25  still have to be built in Van Cortlandt, Jerome, or
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          2  Harris Park, in order to be close to the City's

          3  water distribution system.  Eight acres of parkland

          4  would be needed for this construction.  Thus, even

          5  if you build in Westchester, there will still be a

          6  need to take away parkland in the Bronx to

          7  accommodate these facilities.  At the mosholu

          8  location, the golf course will be removed during the

          9  construction cycle, and replaced (with improvements)

         10  once the plant is completed.

         11                 The DEP estimates that it would cost

         12  at least $127 million more in life- cycle costs to

         13  develop a water treatment plant in Westchester.

         14  This would be a colossal waste of taxpayer money.

         15  The dollars saved by building on the golf course

         16  could be used to meet the many needs of Bronx

         17  communities.  The Kingsbridge Armory needs to be

         18  redeveloped, ball fields and recreation facilities

         19  in and near the park must be upgraded, new

         20  playgrounds should be built et cetera.  We can't

         21  afford to over spend on filtration, New York City

         22  neighborhoods need attention too.

         23                 The DEP estimates that up to 5,000

         24  new jobs could be added in the region because of

         25  this project.  These jobs are necessary to support
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          2  New York City families, and are especially needed in

          3  the Bronx.  The economic boost represented by this

          4  kind of payroll would be considerable.

          5                 Clearly, Mosholu is the best site for

          6  this plant. This project protects our water, is

          7  environmentally sound, provides needed construction

          8  jobs and has minimal impact on residential

          9  communities compared to the alternatives.

         10  Therefore, we support this proposal, and ask the

         11  subcommittee to do the same.

         12

         13  Testimony of:

         14  Anne Vajsabel

         15  President

         16  Bedford Audubon Society, Inc.

         17

         18                 Dear Chairman Sabini and members of

         19  the Committee,

         20                 Bedford Audubon Society represent

         21  members of the National Audubon Society residing

         22  within northern Westchester and eastern Putnam

         23  Counties, including the headwaters of New York

         24  City's Croton Water Supply System, the Great Swamp

         25  in Paterson, NY. We operate 500 acres of wildlife
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          2  sanctuaries in the middle of New York City's Croton

          3  Watershed.  We were represented at a recent

          4  conference on Wetlands and Watersheds sponsored by

          5  the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.  Non-

          6  fragmented wildlife habitat, and wetlands in

          7  particular, play an important role in groundwater

          8  recharge and had been the subject of extensive

          9  scientific documentation.

         10                 The drinking water now provided by

         11  the Croton system meets or surpasses all federal

         12  standards.  The most effective way to protect this

         13  drinking water is by preventing pollution at its

         14  source, rather than filtering pollution afterwards.

         15  The natural systems that now contribute water to the

         16  Croton system are also important wildlife habitat.

         17                 As an organization priding itself as

         18  a resource on wildlife issues in our region, we

         19  would like to point out that regionally, the

         20  following species will be impacted by destruction of

         21  open spaces and small wetlands that would be at risk

         22  as a result of sprawl that would inevitably

         23  accompany filtration of the Croton Water Supply

         24  System:

         25                 Declining species in our region that
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          2  would be impacted are:

          3                 Green Heron

          4                 Great Blue Heron

          5                 Viginia Rail

          6                 Sora Rail

          7                 Red Shouldered Hawk

          8                 Barred Owl

          9                 Wood Duck

         10                 Many Songbirds

         11                 Also, currently stable populations

         12  such as Louisiana Water thrush and a variety of

         13  ruptures would be impacted.

         14                 We would like to point out that

         15  construction of this unnecessary filtration plant in

         16  the Bronx is in an area which contains a recently

         17  observed species of sedge called Jacob's Ladder on

         18  New York State's Endangered Species list as

         19  extremely rare and vulnerable in New York.  Only

         20  three other populations of this species of sedge are

         21  known to exist in New York State.  This information

         22  is available from the New York State Natural

         23  Heritage Database.

         24                 Wetlands and non- fragmented open

         25  spaces generally have tremendous value to our
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          2  society, providing us with cleaner water and

          3  protection from floods.  They also provide essential

          4  habitat for many species of fish, plants, birds and

          5  other wildlife. Filtration raises serious doubts

          6  about the ability of New York City to protect its

          7  drinking water at the source, the only viable long

          8  term solution to keeping our drinking water and our

          9  natural environment healthy and free of pollutants.

         10                 In many parts of the country, we are

         11  seeing the ecological responses to the habitat

         12  destruction accelerated by poorly planned and

         13  unplanned real estate development.  These responses

         14  vary from aggravated flooding conditions, to

         15  increased stresses on threatened species from

         16  habitat loss, to deteriorated water quality which

         17  impacts wildlife and our king water sources. Let us

         18  make New York City and New York State an example of

         19  how strong land use regulation in our watershed can

         20  both protect our health and the health of our

         21  treasured and imperiled open spaces and wetlands.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 7:00 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 22nd day of June 1999.
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            336

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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         22                 -----------------------

                              PAT WTULICH
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